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 / Years 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
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  

Dividend including dividend 
distribution tax as applicable

4010 3744 2021 2079 0 4092 4400 4822 12589 9471
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Dear Shareholders,

At the outset, I welcome you all on the 71st Annual General 
Meeting of your Company. As I reflect on the performance 
of your Company last year amidst the Pandemic, I am proud 
to inform that your company could sustain the four-figure 
mark in gross revenue for the second year in a row. Last 
year, your Company achieved highest ever Profit Before 
Tax, Total Mineral Production, etc. Production of Rare Earth 
concentrate fell short of previous year figure, due to closure 
of the downstream industries and disruption in supply chain. 
The performance of your Company is well reflected with the 
Board recommending “Excellent” MoU rating for the fourth 
consecutive year in a row.

Your Company issued 100% equity bonus shares amounting 
to ` 86.37 Crore, paid dividend to the tune of ` 94.71 Crore 
(@30% of PAT) for the year 2020-21 and has complied with 
the advisory issued by DIPAM on interim dividend.

Your Company has added two coveted elements to its product 
kitty during the year. These elements are Dysprosium and 
Gadolinium the content of which in the ore is only 1 ppm and 

   / CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

 ,

 ,     71        
              
      ,          
             
        ,       , 
  ,            
             
              
       “”     
        

   ,  2020-21   ` 86.37     
100%      ` 94.71  (  30%)   
         (DIPAM) 
      

              
      ,      
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6.6 ppm respectively, making their extraction complex, difficult 
and multiple stage of concentration. These products were 
developed based on rigorous efforts put in by the R&D team 
to meet the strategic requirement of the Department of Atomic 
Energy.

Your Company celebrated its Platinum Jubilee year on 
completion of 70 years of sustained contribution to the 
Country. The Platinum Jubilee year was celebrated by 
conducting monthly webinars virtually on the theme “Rare 
Earths” and concluding it by holding a Conference on “Rare 
Earth Road Map for Energy Security of Self-Reliant India” in 
association with Rare Earth Association of India during 18th-
19th August 2021. The conference was first of its kind with 
eminent speakers from Atomic Energy, Scientific Institutes 
and Industries, presenting talks on various aspects of Rare 
Earths Sector in hybrid mode.

Two forward looking MoU’s have been entered by your 
Company, one with UKTMP, Kazakhstan for setting up of 
facility for production of titanium slag using ilmenite produced 
from OSCOM mines, while the other one is with Sultanate of 
Oman for cooperation in the field of rare earths.

I am also happy to state that projects on capacity expansion 
of Mineral Separation Plant of OSCOM, Odisha; Rare Earth 
Permanent Magnet Plant, Vizag and Rare Earth Theme Park, 
Bhopal are progressing amidst the severe waves of Pandemic. 
Supply of equipment and site construction activities have been 
initiated. Your Company is widening its footprint by opening 
new areas of operations in Gujarat, Odisha and Tamil Nadu for 
which pre-project activities have been initiated. Similar efforts 
in the state of Andhra Pradesh are not fructifying due to factors 
beyond the control of the Company.

I am proud to state that facilitating the indigenous Nd-Fe-B 
permanent magnet production – a critical product required for 
clean & green energy, electric vehicles and in defence sector, 
which would facilitate in reducing the country’s carbon footprint 
as per long term vision of IREL. Towards this initiative, IREL 
and BARC have collaborated for developing technology for 
production of Nd-Pr metal from Nd-Pr oxide being produced 
by IREL. M/s Ashvini Rare Earth Pvt. Ltd. and M/s Ashvini 
Magnets Pvt. Ltd. has been chosen through an elaborate 
process for transfer of technology under incubation mode. A 
tripartite agreement has been signed between IREL, BARC 
and AREPL in July 2021 for development and production of 
Nd-Pr using Indian Rare Earth resources under incubation 
mode.

 1   6.6  ,    ,  

              

              

          

        70       

      18 -19  2021    

       “ ”    

    “        

  ”          

   ,        

       ,        

        

           ,  

,          

            

 ,             

  

                

,     ,     , 

     ,       

             

      ,      

           ,   

-             

              

          Nd-Fe-B    

  -    ,        

    ,      

              

  ,        

Nd-Pr   Nd-Pr        

          .   

   .         

             

           Nd-Pr  

      2021  ,   

          
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With the onset of Pandemic, many Standard Operating 
Procedures were issued for COVID-19 appropriate behaviours 
which were scrupulously followed by the employees in 
esteem of positivity and spirit. Structured meetings with the 
employees and key customers/ consumer segments by the 
top management helped in sustaining their spirit and ensuring 
continued support, which can well be seen from the top line of 
the Company.

During the year, your Company also received many awards 
instituted by Indian Chamber of Commerce, Greentech 
Foundation, National Feather Award, World CSR Congress, 
Mumbai Town Official Language Implementation Committee, 
etc. In addition, many awards were won by the Units during 
Mines Week Celebrations, towards implementation of 
Rajbhasha, etc.

Continuing with its branding initiatives, important events 
pertaining to the Company have been given wide visibility in 
the social media. Your Company has been carrying out CSR 
activities far beyond the confines of statutory compliances. 
Working for the upliftment of the community has always 
been the mission of your Company and this has helped in 
keeping up with the aspirations of the local inhabitants. With 
the onset of COVID-19 pandemic, widespread activities such 
as distribution of oxygen concentrators, assisting in setting up 
of makeshift covid care centers, installation of oxygen plant, 
providing covid care ambulances, distribution of essential 
food items, masks, sanitizers, tablets to assist students in 
online education, sanitization of villages, offices of district 
administrations in Ganjam, etc were extensively carried out. 
The Company also follows the best practices under Corporate 
Governance.

Macroeconomic landscape

Global resurgence of the COVID-19 Pandemic is a reminder 
of how critical it is to continue maintaining the guard against 
the unpredictable virus. The decline of India’s second wave 
coupled with the vaccination drive has set the stage for 
economic revival. Manufacturing indexes rebounded to 
expansionary zone in July 2021. IMF’s World Economic 
Outlook Update, July 2021 kept global growth projections 
for 2021 unchanged at 6.0% and have revised the GDP 
projections for India to 9.5%. Recent inflationary tendencies 
have been recognized as transitory and expected to gravitate 
to pre-pandemic levels by 2022.

With the second wave abating in most parts of the Country 
and the State Governments lifting the restrictions in phases, 

    ,        

   ()   ,    

            

     /     

            

  ,             

  ,       ,  

,   ,   ,    

 ,         , 

         ,   

     

      ,      

             

            

              

             

  -19     ,    

   ,       

  ,    ,    

 ,     , , ,  

     ,   ,    

            

         

  

            

           

              

     2021       

        ,  

2021  2021       6.0%   

        9.5%    

               

2022  -       

              

     ,        
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there are visible signs of economic rejuvenation. The high-
frequency indicators show an improvement from the downs 
the economy had hit last fiscal. Bright prospects of economic 
normalization are also evident in the external sector indicators 
with consumption of petroleum products recovering, global 
investors continuing to be upbeat about India’s economic 
prospects resulting in increased FDI. Centre continues to 
provide unstinted support of the State for stepping up their 
capital expenditure for faster economic revival.

Mineral sector though exempted from the lock down 
restrictions from the first week of April 2020, suffered a fall in 
output. Among mined products, off-take of coal shrank and 
production of crude oil and natural gas declined (extracts 
from Monthly Economic Report, July 2020, Department of 
Economic Affairs). However, I am happy to state that IREL has 
been able to hold on to its operations, domestic and export 
commitments till date.

Business environment & industry structure

The pandemic had a recessionary impact on all the economies. 
The global GDP growth shrunk by 3.5% Y-o-Y in 2020 – the 
deepest global recession since the Great Depression. India’s 
FY 2020-21 GDP contracted 7.3% Y-o-Y despite the various 
measures taken by Government of India to perk up the 
economy.

IREL and Kerala Minerals and Metals Ltd., a Kerala State 
Government Enterprise are the two players in the heavy 
minerals sector while IREL is the sole player producing mixed 
Rare Earth Concentrate and High Pure Rare Earth compounds 
in the domestic market. Owing to the number of stages 
in which IREL operates, IREL has a large product portfolio 
comprising over 30 products. Ilmenite continues to be the 
major contributor owing to its volume in mineral assemblage, 
with major consumers located near its plants and overseas 
customers in far East Asia and European region.

World over, ceramic sector is the main consuming sector 
of Zircon but with Nuclear Fuel Complex a DAE constituent 
becoming major client of Zircon produced from IREL’s MK 
mines, the production of MK Zircon is being almost exclusively 
earmarked to meet India’s nuclear energy requirement. IREL’s 
customer segment is skewed towards Zircon sponge market. 
The logistic and other challenges faced by NFC during the 
pandemic impacted the sales of Zircon. Refractory and 
Foundry sector are other market segments of IREL.

Welding electrode industry which is the end-use segment of 
Rutile recovered substantially from the effect of pandemic due 

            

              

        ,   

           

              

            

     2020         

   ,           

,            (  

,  2020,      ) ,  

            , 

         

    

         2020   

      -- 3.5%   -   

             

              2020-

21    -- 7.3%    

           

,       ,     

             

            

 ,          30  

            

     ,        

            

  ,          , 

            

         ,    

            

              

             

            

         

  ,       ,   

             
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to announcement of liberal financial package for MSME by 
Government of India, as the year went ahead mainly due to 
the thrust on Infrastructure industry and Industry revival seen 
in the second half of the year. While world over the major end-
use industry for Rutile is Titanium pigment / sponge industry, 
in India IREL almost exclusively caters to the need of welding 
electrode industry whose constituents fall under MSME 
category.

The mainstay of refractory industry which is the major 
consumer of Sillimanite i.e. Steel Industry registered negative 
growth during 2020-21. However, IREL’s initiative to diversify 
to international market in anticipation of increased production 
from expanded capacities in FY2021-22 and tying up of sales 
for major tonnage of anticipated production of Sillimanite of 
OSCOM unit helped in improvement in sales.

Garnet sales are heavily dependent on the fortunes of 
petroleum industry especially the coarser variety. This industry 
was in doldrums as the world-wide lockdown during the major 
part of the year meant drying up of markets for petroleum 
products from automobile and aviation sector. Consequently, 
the prices moved southwards and a shift in demand towards 
finer variety was witnessed. IREL finetuned the marketing 
strategy to meet the market expectations.

The end-user industries for rare earths viz. Automotive, 
Steel & Metal, Petroleum, Electronics, Infrastructure had a 
challenging year. Consequently, barring Dysprosium and 
Terbium, the market for other products was lacklustre or just 
stable.

Outlook:

The pandemic of COVID-19 took the form of an ocean in no 
time from a tickle at the beginning of March 2020. Entire world 
had come to the standstill for a couple of months after which the 
activities were allowed to begin in stages gradually by various 
Governments all over the globe. Just when the pandemic 
looked like subsiding in January 2021 and the economies 
were getting back on track, the second wave hit India in March 
2021. The Governments and the Industry began fast tracking 
the process of Vaccine development and various different 
types of Vaccines have been developed and immunization 
program has been rolled out by various countries. In India 
too, the vaccination drive has gained momentum as the year 
2021-22 rolls ahead. While the effect of second wave on the 
economy was not as severe as the first wave, the growth 
prospects of India for 2021-22 have been pegged down to 9.5 
% by the RBI and IMF.

       ,        

               

             

 /  ,       

         ,   

     

            

   2020-21       , 

  2021-22          

            

            

           

              

               

          

             

,             

             

   

        ,   

, , ,        

 ,     ,   

     

:

 2020     -19         

                

   ,        -  

              

2021             

  ,   2021          

               

            

       ,        

  2021-22          

        , 2021-22     

       9.5%   

  
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However, this is a welcome relief from the contraction of 
economy seen in 2020-21. The experts have warned about 
prospect of third wave in later half of year 2021 and the 
authorities have already geared up for the same. The speeding 
up the vaccination process is likely to reduce the effect of the 
pandemic and as more and more people are vaccinated, 
the COVID-19 is expected to take the form of endemic as 
per World Health Organisation. The prospects of industry 
for FY2021-22 are dependent on how the pandemic unfolds 
further and effectiveness of the authorities in dealing with it.

The recession brought in by the pandemic was much severe 
than that witnessed in 2009 due to financial meltdown. While 
initially the recession was forecast to be “U” shaped which 
meant longer time for the world economy to revive, the world 
economies have emerged out of the recession earlier and the 
recession turns out to be V shaped. This bodes well for the 
industry.

IREL’s Outlook:

In terms of impact on IREL’s operations, the resurgence of 
TiO2 pigment has spurred growth prospect for the Titanium 
feedstock segment. The ramping up of production by TiO2 

pigment producers to meet the increasing downstream 
demand partially due to restocking is expected to firm up the 
market sentiments and take the prices northwards. However, 
other major consuming sector of Titanium feedstock viz. 
Titanium Sponge industry is yet to come out of the impact of 
the pandemic as its fortunes are dependent on the aviation 
sector which is badly affected due to the restrictions still in 
place especially on international travel.

Zircon market which was down for better part of FY2020-21 is 
now looking up and the prices are likely to firm up further as the 
year 2021-22 advances. The Government of India’s measures 
such as Affordable Rental Housing Complexes (ARHCs) for 
Migrants Workers a sub-scheme under Pradhan Mantri AWAS 
Yojana- Urban (PMAY-U) launched in October 2020, the PMAY 
and other economic measures announced to support the real 
estate and construction sector could in turn provide a boost 
to the ceramics industry which is major end-use segment of 
Zircon. Refractories market of Zircon is also seeing buoyance 
as the refractory makers seek to fulfil the backlog of orders 
kept in abeyance by the end-user industry in 2020-21. The 
ambitious program of Nuclear Power Corporation of India 
for setting up of more Nuclear Power Plants will further drive 
growth in this market segment. To meet the increased demand 
from NFC, IREL has initiated collaborative process with NFC 

,  2020-21          
      2021        
               
               
   -         , 
     -19       
   2021-22          
              
   

    2009          
           “”    
    ,        
      ,      
                
 

  :

       , TiO
2
     

            
             
 TiO

2
            

             , 
          
             
              
       

     2020-21       ,  
          2021-22     
             
   ()   -  
(-)    2020      -, 
            
              
             
           2020-21  
-             
            
            

         ,     

             
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for using Zircon from OSCOM mines instead of MK mines, 
where production is constrained owing to limited mining lease.

The steel industry in India is poised to register positive growth 
in 2021-22 after registering fall in 2020-21. This will help in 
demand for refractories moving upwards after a dismal 2020-
21 and lead to demand uptick for Sillimanite. The prices of 
crude oil are moving up after drastic drop in 2020-21 that saw 
index turn negative. Though this will boost sales of Garnet, the 
lack of availability of containers is likely to peg the momentum 
back as Garnet has limited domestic market and a large chunk 
of the production has to be exported.

The market for magnetic rare earths viz. Neodymium, 
Praseodymium, Dysprosium and Terbium has been quite 
bullish of late in wake of demand for rare earth permanent 
magnets required for Electric Vehicle and clean and green 
industry sector. The prices of these products are continuing 
to move northwards. Even Samarium, used in niche SmCo 
magnets, is seeing price increase from earlier stable price 
scenario.

How the automobile industry is able to meet the supply chain 
challenges especially the shortage of semiconductors will 
have reflection on associated products like Zircon, Sillimanite 
and Rare Earths. Other challenge IREL faces is in form of 
disposal of large tonnage of Lanthanum and Cerium which 
get generated while producing coveted magnetic rare earths 
like Neodymium and Praseodymium. Owing to huge supply 
and relatively limited demand the prices of these products are 
abysmally low and continue to move downwards.

The uptick in almost all of the end of the value chain products 
coupled with industry friendly measures of Government of India 
like Make in India, Atmanirbhar Bharat, PLI scheme in various 
manufacturing sector with the list expanding over time is likely 
to have positive impact on IREL’s performance. On its part, 
IREL has selected industry for production of Nd-Fe-B magnet 
through an elaborate selection process spanning Expression 
of Interest and Request for Proposal stage. IREL shall provide 
the critical raw material – Nd-Pr oxide to this industry. This 
will enable setting up of value chain of Rare Earth Permanent 
Magnet which have gained critical importance for driving the 
Government’s plan of reducing the carbon footprint by moving 
to E-mobility by 2030 and clean and green energy.

Acknowledgement:

On behalf of your company’s Board of Directors, I place on 
record my earnest gratitude to our valued shareholders for 
your continued support, ideas and trust. This will motivate us to 

     ,        
 

    2020-21       2021-
22           2020-21 
             
             
2020-21        ,    
         ,   
              
             

            
              
, ,          
               
SmCo              
       

           
 ,         ,  
           
                
          
            
               

          ,  
,    -       
  ,             
           
 ,          Nd-Fe-B 
         ,     
            
   - -(Nd-Pr)    
            , 
 2030  -        
              
    

:

       ,    ,  
           
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excel in all our activities, create and add value for you as well 
as for the nation. Your Company will continue to play critical 
role in various flagship programme of Government of India 
aimed at Self Reliant India. It will be our endeavour to work 
relentlessly for sustained growth, expansion and prosperity of 
the Company.

I appreciate the abundant support and valued guidance 
received from the Department of Atomic Energy, Govt. of India. 
I also express my sincere thanks to other Central Government 
Ministries and Departments, State Governments, Employees, 
Trade Unions, Auditors, Consumers, Suppliers and all other 
stakeholders for their continuous cooperation and support.

I also place on record, appreciation for the commitment, 
enthusiasm, unstinted efforts rendered by the employees 
at various levels to keep the Plant/Units operational in the 
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. The Company’s consistent 
growth was made possible due to belongingness, solidarity, 
co-operation and support received from all fronts. I firmly 
believe that your Company, with this renewed team-focussed 
environment, is poised for more exhilarating performance, 
even in difficult times.

Jai Hind

D. Singh
Chairman & Managing Director

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 24th September, 2021

            
,              
            
         ,  
          

   ,         
             , 
 , ,  ,  , , 
           
     

      -19    /    
          , , 
             
 , ,          
    ,     -   , 
          

 
 

   
 : 
 : 24    2021
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     “ 
          
(-2021)”     
  

Distinguished Speakers delivering 
talks during the virtual National 
Conference “Rare Earth Road Map 
for Energy Security of Self-Reliant 
India (REES-2021)”.

“        
   (-2021)” 2021 
       
   

Eminent Speakers delivering 
Presentations during the virtual 
National Conference “Rare Earth 
Road Map for Energy Security of Self-
Reliant India (REES-2021)”. 

     “ 
          
(-2021)”    
 

Release of Monograph and Souvenir 
during the virtual National Conference 
“Rare Earth Road Map for Energy 
Security of Self-Reliant India (REES-
2021)”.

Platinum Jubilee Celebrations
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e-Webinars

. () . , , 
- “-
   -  
”    

Dr. (Mrs.) N. Kalaiselvi, Director, 
CSIR-CECRI delivering a Lecture on 
“Metals-Electro Positive as well as 
Energy Positive”.

.   , , - 
“         
 -  ”    
Dr. Prabodh Kumar Trivedi, Director, CSIR-CIMAP 
delivering Lecture on “Medicinal and Aromatic Plants 
based Agro-Technologies and services to the farmers 
and entrepreneurs”.

“        -”         ,  ,  

Professor Dr. Aniruddha B. Pandit, Vice Chancellor ICT, Mumbai delivering lecture on “Leaching Intensification using cavitations 
and the problem of E-Waste”.
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“                ”     .  , 
  ,  
Dr. Dinesh Srivastava, Chairman & CE, NFC delivering lecture on “Challenges and Opportunities in Nuclear Fuel Fabrication & 
Innovative Manufacturing Techniques for Nuclear Power Production Application”.

     2021   “  -    ’         ,  
CMD, IREL’s presentation on “Rare Earths Industry- The Inherent Challenge and Dilemma’ during Y M Mehta Memorial Lecture 
2021.

  “            (-)”   
   
IREL conducted a Webinar on “Interdisciplinary Expertise of Council Of Scientific And Industrial Research–National Institute For 
Interdisciplinary Science And Technology (CSIR–NIIST)”.
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  ‘  ’ 
  2020-21      
  

IREL awarded with third prize for 
Excellent implementation of Raj 
Bhasha for the year 2020-21.

 -2021    
   ,   
        
      
        


On the auspicious occasion of 
Hindi Pakhwada-2021, CMD, IREL 
inaugurating the program and 
giving prizes to the winners of Head 
of Department and Unit Head of 
Corporate Office through virtual mode

       ,  
         

CMD, IREL addressing Units on the occasion 
of New Year Celebration through Video 
Conferencing.
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To,
The Members,
IREL (India) Limited

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 
71st Annual Report on the business and operations of the 
Company along with Audited financial statements for the year 
ended 31 March, 2021.

1.0	 Financial Results

	 Highlights of performance

1.1	� The highlights of the operations and performance of the 
Company for the year 2020-21 and its comparison with 
the previous year have been presented in the following 
table:

 (` in lakh)
Sl. 
No.

 Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

1 Total Revenue 107812 109523 107812 109523
2 Profit / (loss) before 

depreciation and 
amortization expenses 
& exceptional items

45479 44440 45476 44439

3 Less: Depreciation and 
amortization expenses

3968 4146 3968 4146

4 ADD/(Less): 
Exceptional Items

0 0 0 0

5 Profit / (loss) Before Tax 41511 40294 41508 40293
6 Less: Tax Expenses 9942 11118 9942 11119
7 Profit / (Loss) for the 

period
31569 29176 31566 29174

8 ADD/(Less): other 
comprehensive Income

(1200) (810) (1200) (810)

9 Total Comprehensive 
Income

30369 28366 30366 28364

10 Foreign Exchange 
earnings

51473 53742 51473 53742

2.0	 Sales and Marketing:

2.1	� The year has been unprecedented as the same 
witnessed the pandemic of COVID-19 gripping the 
entire world and paralyzing all activities – a once in a 
century phenomenon. The glimpse of things to come 
was seen in the second half of March 2020 itself 
when the country-wide lock down was implemented 
which took toll of the business activities. IREL’s sales 
during 2019-20 had some impact of this. However, the 
worse was to come in the FY2020-21. This financial 
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1.0	  

	  

1.1	�  2020-21         
          
    :

(`  )
. 
.

     
2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

1   107812 109523 107812 109523
2    

   /
(),   

45479 44440 45476 44439

3 :   
 

3968 4146 3968 4146

4 /():  


0 0 0 0

5    /() 41511 40294 41508 40293
6 :   9942 11118 9942 11119
7    /

()
31569 29176 31566 29174

8 /() :  
 

(1200) (810) (1200) (810)

9    30369 28366 30366 28364
10    51473 53742 51473 53742

2.0	   :

2.1	�           -19   
           
    -          
       2020    
           , 
     2019- 20   
        ,  
 2020-21           
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year started with invocation of Force Majeure due to 
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. IREL’s business 
was disrupted initially due to lock down and movement 
restriction throughout the world as countries across the 
globe tried to minimize the impact. Major infrastructure 
projects came to a standstill. Production shutdown of 
different industries and drop in demand from clientele in 
end of the value chain sectors like travel and aviation, 
automobile, steel, petroleum, housing and infrastructure 
impacted sales of IREL products. However, favorable 
Government initiatives for exemption of certain 
restrictions for Mineral sectors like resumption of 
production, relaxed movement norms and export to 
international market etc. within a fortnight of imposing 
pandemic restrictions helped IREL to continue operation 
from early second week of April 2020. However COVID 
protocol and guidelines issued by various authorities 
from time to time were adhered.

2.2	� Though, IREL left no stone unturned to revive the faltering 
sales, the first quarter of the year had been tough in 
terms of revenue generation. However, by continuous 
engagement with customers – with top management of 
the company actively engaging with the key customers, 
agile marketing strategies and effective utilization of 
resources, IREL could achieve a sales turnover of about 
` 954 Crore - nearer to that of the ever highest turnover 
land mark of previous year. A laudable feat by all the 
concerned – especially production, marketing, sales & 
logistics, in view of the several impediments faced and 
dismal first quarter revenue figures that were lower by 
33 % with respect to the first quarter of FY2019-20.

2.3	� Streamlining of canalization procedure and innovative 
way of remote monitoring boosted the revenues from 
exports under canalization by over 48 % from ` 19.83 
crore to ` 29.40 crore despite the challenges faced due 
to the pandemic. A total tonnage of about 16,500 ton 
shipped during FY2020-21 under canalization compares 
with 11,900 ton shipped in the earlier year.

2.4	� IREL has been pioneer in supporting the MSME sector. 
The Government’s thrust to this sector has further 
galvanized IREL’s efforts in this direction. Apart from 
some customers of Ilmenite, Zircon, Sillimanite and RE 
Chemicals, IREL domestic customer base is constituted 
by the MSME segment. During the lockdown, special 
attention was given to this sector by communicating with 
customers of various product segment to understand 
their problems and assure them about IREL’s unstinting 
support by way of prompt despatches and otherwise 
despite the trying conditions being faced on logistic 
front.

-19          
            
            
              
           
       , , , 
,          
            
   ,       
       ,      
            
           
  2020           
          
      

2.2	�           
  ,          
   ,        
         ,   
       ,  
 954         ,  
             
  2019 -20          
    33 %         
           
   ,         
  

2.3	�          
           
      19.83     
48 %    29.40       
       11,900       
2020-21    16,500      

2.4	�            
             
    , ,      
     ,     
           
,           
             
            
           
    
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2.5	 The end of the year saw the second wave of the 
pandemic. Though it was severe in impact than the 
first wave, the Company was better geared to meet the 
challenges as well the effects were more at local levels 
which meant minimal effect on the operations of the 
Company.

3.0	 License to Operate

3.1	 LTO office has been established for centralized 
monitoring & managing the regulatory compliances, 
required to achieve and sustain the targeted production 
plans. Centralized monitoring and control of statutory 
compliances is enabled through database dashboards. 
Units are sensitized for complying with the statutory 
requirements at regular intervals. Manavalakurichi, 
Chavara and OSCOM units are continuing their 
operations in a sustainable manner. OSCOM has 
deposited the statutory fees and complied the conditions 
prescribed under the Stage-I Forest Clearance towards 
obtaining the Stage-II Forest Clearance. Chavara Unit 
received the environment clearances for all its mining 
lease areas. Nodal officers are appointed at each Unit 
for regular monitoring and complying the conditions 
prescribed under various clearances / permissions 
/ Licenses etc towards sustainable operations. LTO 
office establishes the processes & tools for proactive 
information gathering and structuring of regulatory 
requirements.

4.0	 Production

4.1	 The comprehensive stringent lockdown and restrictions 
imposed to contain COVID -19 pandemic by the 
government resulted in hampering of industrial activity 
and disruption of supply chain. The effect of pandemic is 
also felt in the mineral sector which is the backbone of the 
nations’ economic growth, however because of timely 
intervention by Government of India, mineral production 
activity could be resumed with least disruption. Despite 
various constraints including restriction in mobilization 
of manpower resource, company took various proactive 
steps to meet the challenges, thereby mineral production 
of the Company stood at 4.60 lakh tons having a growth 
of 3.4% w.r.t. previous fiscal year.

4.2	 In the chemical sector, there was disruption in supply 
chain of key input chemicals for Rare Earth Extraction 
Plant (REEP). Also because of pandemic, the down 
stream industries operations and market sentiment 
were affected which hampered the offtake of finished 
goods. Under these circumstances, with concerted 
effort chemical plant operation could be sustained with 

2.5	              

       ,      

              

          

3.0	    

3.1	            

         

          

         

         

          

,        

             

   - II       - I   

             

            

   //      

           

         

          

      

4.0 

4.1 	   -19         

        

         .   

             

   ,         

,           

            

  ,         

   ,      4.60 

  ,      3.4 %   

4.2	   ,         

          

 ,          

 ,          

,            
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a marginal drop of production by 5.5% as compared to 
last fiscal year. In case of production of High Pure Rare 
Earths, company witnessed a growth of about 43% 
compared to last fiscal year.

5.0	 Projects

5.1	 Rare Earth Permanent Magnet:

	 The plant is being set up in BARC campus, Achitapuram, 
Vizag for production of Samarium-Cobalt permanent 
magnet for use in Atomic Energy, Defence and Space 
sectors. M/s Engineering Projects (India) Limited (EPIL) 
were appointed as the EPC contractor and the site 
activities commenced from November 2021. Civil work 
construction work of plant and building are at various 
stages of progress and orders have been placed for 
various process and characterisation equipment. The 
scheduled date of completion of the project is November 
2022. Total Capital Expenditure as on 31st March 2021 
is ` 15.95 Crore.

5.2	  Rare Earth & Titanium Theme Park:

	 The theme park is being set up at Acharpura, Bhopal 
with the objective to demonstrate technologies in the 
value chain of Rare Earths & Titanium and develop 
Entrepreneurs and skilled workforce to set up and 
operate the future commercial plants. Pilot plant Agency 
has been on-boarded for taking forward the laboratory 
scale technologies developed by BARC to Pilot scale. 
Basic engineering of few of the pilot plants has already 
been completed. Civil Construction Contractor has been 
engaged to carry out the civil construction activities 
along with all associated works. The civil construction 
is expected to be completed by end of 3rd Qtr of 2021. 
The entire project encompassing multiple Pilot Plants is 
scheduled for completion by March 2024. Total Capital 
Expenditure as on 31st March 2021 is ` 21.64 Crore.

5.3	  Capacity Expansion of OSCOM Plant:

	 The construction activity for proposed Capacity 
expansion of Mineral Separation plant at OSCOM 
is being undertaken by EPC contractor. Detailed 
engineering has been completed and all the major 
supplies including imported equipment against the 
project have been received. Civil foundations of various 
plants is nearing completion and structural fabrication 
& erection is under progress. The scheduled date of 
completion of the project is February 2022.

5.4	 Subsidiary IREL- IDCOL Limited (IIL):

	 The Joint Venture company was established to harness 
the beach sand mineral deposit in the state which in turn 

    5.5 %         
          ,    
      43 %   

5.0	 

5.1	    :

	  ,          
-         , 
 ,         
 ()  ()     
          2021 
             
              
        2022 

5.2	       :

	            
           
           
,           
         
             
           
          - 
           
 2021            
          2024 
     31  2021     21.64 
  

5.3	      :

	            
           
            
            
            
             
  2022 

5.4	   -   (IIL):

	              
               



17

IREL (India) Limited

71st Annual Report 2020-21

will widen the footprint of the Company. Groundwork 
towards declaration of the precise area after completion 
of DGPS survey and preparation of cadastral map 
has been completed. Department of Atomic Energy 
recommended IREL IDCOL Ltd as prospective lessee 
under AMCR-2016 and forwarded its recommendations 
to Govt. of Odisha for grant of Mining Lease. Government 
of Odisha is in the process of grant of mining lease in 
favour of IREL IDCOL Ltd. Pre-project activities such as 
obtaining environment clearance, preparation of mining 
plan, etc necessary for execution of the mining lease 
deed will be taken up in the current fiscal.

5.5	 Integrated IT System:

	 M/s. CMS Computers Limited, Mumbai who were 
appointed as system developer & integrator continued 
with the activities towards implementing enterprise 
resource planning on open-source platform. 
Functionalities in the basic modules – HRMS, Sales 
and Marketing, Materials Management & Finance have 
been developed and are undergoing rigorous testing for 
acceptance. Expected date of completion of the project 
is by end of second quarter of 2021.

5.6	 Ambadongar RE Project:

	 The project has been initiated to harness the carbonatite 
deposit explored by AMD in the state of Gujarat. IREL 
engaged MECON for preparation of Techno-economic 
feasibility report (TEFR) towards ascertaining the 
economic viability of the project. The TEFR studies 
carried out based on the technical reports submitted by 
AMD and BARC. The economic viability is being studied 
for two process routes viz; RE Oxalate and RE Double 
Sulphate from the Ore. Suitable decision would be taken 
up based on the final TEFR from MECON.

5.7	 Private Freight Terminal (PFT):

	 M/s. Gopalpur Ports Limited (GPL), the terminal 
operating company (TOC) has carried out the phase-I 
activities under PFT which include Renovation and 
repair of existing go-downs. Construction of PFT 
Control cum Crew Rest Room along with Up-gradation 
of Rail Track. The PFT has become operational from  
3rd December 2019 and total nos. of rakes handled 
during the financial year was 1128.

5.8	 Desalination Plant at OSCOM:

	 The 5 million litres per day (MLD) hybrid sea water 
desalination plant is being set up at OSCOM based on 
technology developed and funded by BARC. The civil 
construction works of the building is being undertaken 
by us on behalf of BARC which is nearing completion. 

            
             
     AMCR-2016     
           . 
           
             
               
          
              
    ,      
          

5.5	   :

	            
  -         
           
 - ,   ,   
              
           2021   
    

5.6	     :

	            
           
          
 ()         
         
           
       ;      
           
    

5.7	    (PFT):

	     (),    
()     - I      
           
   -        
  3  2019         
       1128 

5.8	    :

	           
    5     (() 
           
              
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Other activities such as Sea water intake-outfall works, 
extension of the existing 132kV sub-station towards 
providing power supply to the desalination plant, 11kV 
electrical substation work for internal electrification, 
SWRO Plant equipment & machineries, MED Plant 
equipment & machineries, Utility system (Product 
Transfer, Steam & condensate pipelines) etc have been 
taken up. Scheduled date of completion of the project is 
September 2022.

6.0	 Corporate Planning

6.1	 Agency has been engaged to prepare Corporate Plan for 
the next decade covering various growth opportunities 
where IREL can venture into, for enhancing its areas of 
operation, market share and profitability.

6.2	 New Areas of operation: Opportunities were identified 
with a view to enhance geographical footprint and 
increasing the market share. For the greenfield 
operation in Kanyakumari District of Tamil Nadu, IREL 
has obtained reservation under AMCR, 2016 from the 
Ministry of Mines, Government of India. Further, activity 
towards obtaining mining lease is under progress. 
Similarly, for obtaining mining lease, pre-project 
activities are under progress for the Brahmagiri mining 
area in Odisha.

6.3	 Foreign ventures: In order to secure the Rare Earths 
and critical material requirement of nation, IREL has 
been given mandate to explore and acquire rare earth 
resources abroad. In this regard, formation of separate 
entity is under progress for which Cabinet Committee on 
Security has given its concurrence. Formal approval is 
awaited.

6.4	 Titanium Slag: IREL has entered into an MoU with M/s 
Ust-Kamenogorsk Titanium and Magnesium Plant JSC, 
Kazakhstan for setting up of Ti slag plant in India.

7.0	 Human Resources Management

7.1.1	 Human Resources & Administration, as a strategic 
Business Partner, focused on Business Continuity 
by ensuring effective implementation of Work From 
Home (WFH) which became the new normal in the 
unprecedented pandemic situation. By utilizing the 
electronic channels of communication, HR facilitated 
implementation of Hybrid Model containing the elements 
of WFH and ‘Work from Workplace’ thus ensuring 
supplies to customers without disruption. Further, the 
pandemic period was used to make available enhanced 
virtual learning opportunities to employees in varied 
domains and disciplines with the overall objective of 
developing the competencies of employees.

         - 
,          
 132kV -  ,    
 11kV   ,    
 ,     ,   
 )    )    
          2022 

6.0  

6.1 	              
 ,         ,  
   ,        
        

6.2 	     :       
            
       ,   
 ,     2016    
             
    ,      ,   
          

6.3	  :         
     ,     
           
               
           
     

6.4	  :      (Ti)   
     -  
    ,      
   

7.0	   

7.1.1	     ,     
  ,    (WFH)      
           
            
   ,         
’   ’         
  ,          
     ,     
           
           
       
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7.1.2	 As a part of its constant endeavour to review and 
update HR policies, IREL reviewed the Recruitment 
Policy by incorporating various amendments 
necessitated by Guidelines / Instructions issued by the 
Government from time to time and the cadre of Non-
Unionized Supervisory personnel newly introduced by 
the Company.

7.1.3	 The manpower strength as on 31.03.2021 was 1096 
employees, comprising 356 Executives and 740 
Non-Executives. As a measure of strengthening the 
executive cadre, newly recruited 15 Management 
Trainees were put on regular rolls of the company in 
various Units / Projects after successful completion of 
their training.

7.2	 Employees Welfare Activities

	 The Company is periodically reviewing its welfare 
policies so as to cater to its employees’ needs and 
has been incorporating best practices from across 
industries to improve employees’ welfare.

	 Some of the best practices followed in the Company 
would include Service Charter for the employees to 
ensure that the services are delivered within specified 
timelines. Other welfare measures extended to 
employees include loans and advances, incentive 
related to education, social security measures etc. In fact 
the company has a comprehensive medical treatment 
policy that covers both in-patient and outpatient 
treatment. The Company has empanelled reputed 
hospitals in and around cities / towns surrounding its 
Units / Mumbai so as to ensure that the employees and 
their families get the best of health care facilities.

	 In the last month of FY 2019-20, the COVID-19 
pandemic spread rapidly, forcing governments to 
enforce lockdowns of all economic activities. With such 
unprecedented measures taken by both the Central 
and respective State Governments, the Company took 
proactive measures to comply with various directions 
/ regulations / guidelines issued by the Government 
and local bodies to ensure safety of workforce across 
all its Units / HO. The Company in accordance with 
the various guidelines issued by Government of India 
shifted the workforce to an entirely new ‘work-from-
home’ model during the lockdown 1st phase. At the 
same time, it was ensured that there was no disruption 
of services to its customers.

7.3 	 Reservation Policy

7.3.1	 IREL has a strong team of 1096 employees as on 
31.03.2021 as against 1222 of the previous year. The 
representation of Scheduled Castes and Scheduled 

7.1.2	           
       ,     
-   - /     
      -     
        

7.1.3	 31.03.2021     1096  , 
 356   740 -    
        ,   15  
          
 /          

7.2	   

	             
           
            
   

	            
            
           
         ,   
 ,        
             
          /  
   /    -   
          

	   2019-20    ,  -19  
  ,         
           
            
,      /      
           
  /  /       
            
          
     ’  ’      
 ,           
   

7.3 	  

7.3.1       1222    31.03.2021 
 1096       31.03.2021  
        
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Tribes as on 31.03.2021 is 223 and 36 respectively, 
whereas that of Ex-servicemen and Persons with 
Disabilities on the rolls of IREL is 29 and 10 respectively. 
Since April 2020, 3 persons have been recruited and 
131 have ceased to be in employment on account of 
resignations / retirements / deaths / termination etc.

7.4	 Employee Relations:

7.4.1	 The Employee Relations scenario has been cordial 
and peaceful during the year. Smooth Relations 
are maintained by having constant discussions and 
interactions with union representatives on all issues. In 
fact, the settlements on wage revision of workmen were 
for the first time in the history of the Company signed for 
a period of ten years after holding smooth and cordial 
discussions. Similarly in order to ensure that smooth 
relations are maintained and sustained, different 
committees at the plant level such as safety committee 
etc. are constituted with adequate representation 
of management and workmen. Consequently, all 
workplace related issues that arise are discussed and 
effectively sorted out.

8.0	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) & 
Sustainability:

8.1	 Purusant to the provisions of Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and DPE 
Guidelines, the Company has undertaken various 
activities as per the CSR policy of the Company. CSR 
initiatives are taken up in line with the Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Company has a Corporate 
Social Responsibility policy approved by the Board of 
Directors. A Committee on CSR & Sustainability has 
been constituted which is headed by an independent 
director.

8.2	 A report on CSR activities for the financial year 2020-
21 is annexed as Annexure-II in pursuance of Rule 8 of 
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 
2014.

9.0 	 Implementation of Official Language Policy

9.1	 IREL (India) Limited is committed to the implementation 
of official language policy and in pursuance of the same, 
the following initiatives have been undertaken in the 
year 2020-21.

	 i)	 Efforts were made to fulfill the targets set for the 
implementation of official language policy of the 
Government of India and the said targets were 
achieved, demonstrating our commitment and 
determination, despite the challenges posed by the 
pandemic situation.

223  36 ,        
      29  10 
  2020 , 3        131  
///        
  

7.4	   :

7.4.1	           
            
        ,    
           
            
             
   ,        
            
    ,      
            

8	    ()   :

8.1	  , 2013   135  ,  ( 
  ) , 2014    
 ,          
      , 2013 
  VII          
         
           
         

8.2	  (  ) , 2014   8  
    2020-21      
  -II     

9.0	    

9.1	  ()        
      ,  2020-21   
   

	 i)	           
           
     ,    
           

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	 ii)	 To encourage the use of Official Language, 
several workshops were organized by virtual 
mode throughout the year. These workshops 
have increased the progressive use of Hindi by 
employees of the Company in their day-to-day 
working.

	 iii)	 Various competitions were organized during 
Hindi Day / Hindi Pakhwada through virtual 
mode to promote the progressive use of the 
official language. The use of Hindi by company’s 
employees in their daily activities has increased 
due to these competitions and other activities.

	 iv)	 IREL (India) Limited’s in-house half-yearly Hindi 
magazine ‘Veral Darpan’ was switched over 
to digital version by our Company in 2020 on 
account of the pandemic situation and the same 
has received wide appreciation not only from 
employees but also from other organizations.

	 v)	 For the promotion of Official Language (Hindi), 
the Company is presenting the CMD’s Rajbhasha 
Shield to the units for excellent performance in 
Hindi. For the year 2020, the Shield was awarded 
to Rare Earths Division and the Runner up Shield 
to Manavalakurichi Unit.

	 vi)	 Similarly, an award for excellent work in Rajbhasha 
is presented to the Heads of the Departments in 
Corporate Office for the promotion of Hindi. For the 
year 2020, this award was given to the Marketing 
Department and the Technical / Project Department 
was presented with the Runner-up Award.

	 vii)	 IREL’s Corporate Office was conferred with runner-
up prize for outstanding work in implementation 
of Official Language Policy during the year 2020-
21 by the Mumbai PSUs Town Official Language 
Implementation Committee.

	 viii)	 Besides the above, employees of the Company 
were trained in the LILA- Rajbhasha (Learn Indian 
Languages through Artificial Intelligence), a multi-
media based intelligent self-tutoring application for 
learning Hindi, recently launched by Rajbhasha 
Department, Government of India.

10.0	 Right to Information Act, 2005

10.1	 The Company, in order to promote transparency 
and accountability, has put in place appropriate 
mechanisms in line with the RTI Act, 2005. Central 
Public Information Officer (CPIO), Assistant Public 

	 ii.	            
         
          
          

	 iii.	           
     /      
       
         
         

	 iv.	  ()   -  
  ’ ’     2020  
          
           
     

	 v.	  ()  -      
         
      2020  ,    
          
  

	 vi.	           -
         
     2020      
     / 
    

	 vii.	         
2020-21         
         
    

	 viii.	   ,     - 
(       ), 
        ,   
     -   
-     

10.	    , 2005

10.1	            
, 2005         
   (),    
 (),    ()  
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Information Officer (APIO), First Appellate Authority 
(FAA) and Transparency Officer have been notified and 
utmost care is being taken for timely compliance and 
providing requisite information as per the provisions of 
RTI Act, 2005.

10.2	 During the year 2020-21, 125 RTI applications including 
opening balance as on 01.04.2020 of 8 RTI applications 
were received. 115 of them were disposed of by the 
CPIO and 11 First Appeals were received and disposed 
of by the First Appellate Authority. Besides the above, 
01 Second Appeal was received & 1 disposed of by the 
Hon’ble Central Information Commission (CIC) during 
2020-21.

10.3	 As a system improvement in RTI Management, copies 
of RTI Applications received through post and their 
respective replies are being uploaded in the RTI Request 
& Appeal Management Information System (RTI-MIS) 
maintained by Central Information Commission.

11.0 Vigilance

11.1.1 The Aim of Vigilance at IREL is to build confidence in 
managers to take the right business decision thereby 
inculcating a culture wherein the fear of vigilance is not 
used as an excuse for inaction. IREL vigilance believes 
in aiding decision making in the organization through 
the proactive, educative and participative interventions.

11.1.2 Vigilance Department worked as an effective link 
between CVC and organization. Complaints received 
were timely investigated and appropriate actions were 
taken in consultation with the concerned authorities 
including CVC and Department of Atomic Energy (DAE).

11.1.3 Vigilance officers are appointed at each Unit of IREL to 
carry out the regular vigilance related activities in line 
with the vigilance guidelines and directions of CVO, 
IREL.

11.1.4 16 CTE type examinations, 48 Periodic inspections and 
192 Surprise inspections of the units were conducted 
during the year. Proper, prompt and timely action was 
ensured in respect of the advice given by agencies like 
CVC in their investigation reports.

11.2 The following activities were carried out in the field of 
Systemic improvement:

	 Surprise Checks and CTE type examinations were 
carried by the Unit Vigilance Officers on works/items 
as per the instructions provided by Corporate Vigilance 
Department.

	  Rotation of officers in sensitive posts was carried out.

          
, 2005         
          
 

10.2  2020-21   8     01.04.2020 
    125       
115        11   
          
 , 2020-21       
()  01      1    


10.3          ,    
           
          
   (- )    
  

11.0 

11.1.1	         
             
              
       ,  
            
    

11.1.2	            
             
     ()    
      

11.1.3	   (),    
        
           
      

11.1.4	   16    , 48   
   192        
            , 
         

11.2	         

	           
/           
     

	        
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11.3	 Vigilance Awareness Week

	 Vigilance Awareness Week (VAW) was observed from 
27th October to 2nd November 2020 at IREL Corporate 
Office and all the field Units of IREL with the theme as 
“Satark Bharat, Samriddh Bharat”.

	 a)	 VAW - 2020 opened with the administration of 
Vigilance Pledge and Integrity Pledge in presence 
of CMD and other officials at Corporate Office 
on virtual platform and in all the Units, Vigilance 
Pledge and Integrity Pledge were administered 
by the respective Unit Head with strict adherence 
to extant COVID-19 prevention guidelines. 
Messages received from His Excellency Hon’ble 
President of India, Hon’ble Vice President of India, 
Hon’ble Prime Minister and Central Vigilance 
Commission were circulated amongst various 
departments and field Units of IREL during the 
observance of Vigilance Awareness Week.

	 b)	 Internal Housekeeping along with other activities 
were taken up in campaign mode as per the 
directives of CVC in Corporate office and field 
Units of IREL as part of Vigilance Awareness 
Week.

	 c)	 Banners highlighting observance of Vigilance 
Week were displayed at Corporate office and 
respective Units of the organization. Vigilance 
Badges in trilingual form were distributed in field 
units of IREL.

	 d)	 Interactive session with Vendors, Contractors and 
Suppliers was organized on virtual platform/online 
mode in the field units viz. Manavalakurichi, 
Aluva and Chavara Units of IREL. Employees 
and the stake holders of IREL were motivated 
to participate in various activities designed 
during VAW -2020 and encouraged to undertake 
e-pledge. Social media platforms were used for 
spreading the theme and awareness during VAW-
2020.

	 e)	 During this week various competitions i.e. Quiz 
Competition, Slogan writing competition, Debate, 
Poster competition, Elocution and Essay writing 
competition among employees, housewives 
of colony across field Units of IREL along with 
Corporate Office were organized through online 
mode. Prizes were distributed to the winners of 
the various competitions held during the Week on 
the valedictory function day.

11.3	   

	    () 27   2  
2020        
    “ ,  ”    
 

	 ) 	    () - 2020   
         
        
         ,  
    -19   
          
        
       ,   
 ,       
         
       

	 ) 	         
          
         
      

	 ) 	          
           
          
   

	 ) 	    ,     
    /   
      , 
       
   -2020     
           
 -        
  () -2020     
        
  

	 .) 	        - 
     ,  
        
,   , -,  
,        
         
         
     
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12.0	 Disclosure of information on public procurement 
notified by the Government under the Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

12.1	 Total value of goods & services procured from MSEs 
(including MSEs owned by SC/ST entrepreneur) during 
the financial year 2020-21 is ` 163.42 Crore i.e. about 
58.92 % of Annual Procurement value of ` 277.35 crore. 
Considering the total annual procurement of ` 173.49 
crore (items for which MSEs representation are existing), 
the MSME procurement value is ` 94.2%.

13.0	 Public Awareness Initiatives

13.1 	 With its constant striving efforts to reach out to varied 
sections of the society. IREL is conducting and organizing 
outreach and awareness activities. The intent of these 
activities is to educate different stakeholders regarding 
IREL, its activities, its products namely rare earths and 
heavy minerals keeping in mind the broad objective of 
propagating IREL’s vision and mission.

13.2	 IREL undertakes public awareness and interaction 
activities at all its Units. These activities encompass 
presentations, talk sessions, customer meets, vendor 
development programs for SC/ST entrepreneurs for their 
economic empowerment, professional development 
sessions for youth, industrial visits and internships for 
students from educational institutions and participation in 
various science exhibitions / fairs to promote sustainable, 
community welfare sessions for local public.

13.3	 During the testing times of COVID-19 pandemic, the 
programs were conducted strictly adhering to COVID-19 
protocols which included social media campaigns 
with infographics and videos in a resolute manner, 
showcasing IREL’s contribution to society and the 
different uses and applications of IREL’s products to 
reach out to the targeted audience.

14.0	 Research & Development (R&D)

14.1.1	 IREL (India) Limited has invited research projects 
pertaining to improvement in recovery of heavy minerals, 
improvement in plant & energy efficiency and value 
addition of Ilmenite, zircon and rare earths compounds 
during the financial year 2020-21. IREL Technology 
Development Council has approved three projects with 
a value of ` 132.56 lakhs during the financial year in the 
field of recovery of heavy minerals from the mining tails, 
recovery of sillimanite and garnet from the tails of Heavies 
Upgradation Section of MSP and recovery of 99.99% 
pure Yttrium oxide from 92% Yttrium concentrate.

12.0	 ,      , 2006   
        

12.1	   2020-21    ( /    
   )        
 ` 163.42      ` 277.35  
  58.92%  173.49   (    
    )        
      ` 94.2% 

13.0 	  

13.1 	            
       
           
 ,  ,      
            
           

13.2	          
      ,  , 
 ,  /     
        , 
     ,      
           
    /   ,    
     

13.3	 -19      ,   
-19          
 ,         
  ,         
          
      

14.0	    (.  .)

14.1.1	   2020-21    ()   
     ,     
     ,       
          
      2020-21    
     ,       
      92 %   99.99 
%         132.56   
         
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14.1.2	 The first two projects are in line with National Mineral 
Policy (NMP) - 2019 and scientific mine closure 
guidelines to restore ecology and regenerate bio-
diversity. Successful completion of both the R&D 
projects will help to maximize contribution of heavy 
minerals to Indian economy and promote zero waste 
mining.

14.1.3	 The third R&D project is aimed at demonstrating and 
validating the laboratory process for recovering 99.99% 
pure yttrium oxide from 92% Yttrium concentrate 
produced from monazite source. The technology will 
help to produce high purity Yttrium oxide and other 
heavy rare earths which are considered critical due to 
their demand in high technology areas.

14.2	  Benefits derived from IRELTDC projects

	 i)	 A technology has been developed to produce 
200g of 99% pure neodymium metal from IREL 
supplied Neodymium Chloride. The R&D project 
work was funded to CECRI, Karaikudi to find 
out a suitable electro–chemical process to 
produce neodymium metal for permanent magnet 
application. Evaluation of key parameters such 
as electrode geometry, inter-electrode distance, 
molten salt bath composition and effect of 
viscosity and temperature could be established.

	 ii)	 Urea assisted low temperature combustion 
synthesis process has been developed at NIIST, 
Thiruvanthapuram for nano ceria product. The 
process can be scaled up to produce kilo quantities 
of nano cerium oxide suitable for environmental 
friendly three way catalyst.

	 iii)	 Use of Lanthanum and Cerium salts as 
environmental friendly dye fixative on Cotton 
and silk has been developed at BTRA, Mumbai 
which can replace carcinogenic transition metal 
salts and their compounds. This will open up a 
new application area for RE compounds and 
will promote the consumption of Lanthanum and 
Cerium.

14.3	 In–house R&D works carried out during 2020-21:

	 i)	 IREL through its in-house R&D initiatives has 
developed technologies in laboratory & bench 
scale for production of high purity fine garnet 
with less than 2% Ilmenite. The process can be 
implemented in Mineral Separation Plant (MSP) 
to produce desired quality of garnet fine product.

14.1.2	        - 
       , -2019  
            
          
           
     

14.1.3	           
92%    99.99%       
          
           
    ,        
     

14.2	      

	 i)	 99 %       
    200     
          
    ,   
          
          
-        
, - ,     
         
       

	 ii)	      ,  
         
           
          
         

	 iii)	           
        ,  
          
           
          
    

14.3 	 2020-21         


	 i)	    -       
 2%           
          
          
          
()      



26

 () 

71    2020-21

	 ii)	 Based on the in-house technology developed and 
implemented at RED, 100 Kg of 99.99 % pure 
Gadolinium nitrate hexahydrate [Gd(NO3).6H2O] 
was produced at RED. The material is suitable 
for use in nuclear reactor as well as for high 
temperature thermal barrier coating application.

	 iii)	 A process has also been developed to produce 
zinc phosphate pigment from Tri sodium 
Phosphate suitable for anti corrosive formulation. 
The product has a brightness index of 95% and 
is comparable with other white materials such as 
alumina, magnesia, Titania and zirconia.

15.0	 Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption & 
Foreign exchange earnings & outgo

15.1 	 In accordance with the requirement of Section 
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 information and 
details in respect of Conservation of Energy, Technology 
Absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings and Outgo 
is annexed hereto as Annexure- A and forms part of this 
report.

16.0	 Auditors’ report

16.1	 The Statutory Audit of the Books of Accounts of 
the company has been done by M/s Pathak HD & 
Associates, the Statutory Auditor of the Company 
and the Statutory Auditors’ report are annexed to the 
accounts. The Statutory auditor has not qualified the 
accounts, so no comments on the same are placed.

16.2	 Further, in pursuance of provisions of Section 143(6) 
of Companies Act, 2013, the Comptroller & Auditor-
General of India has conducted the supplementary audit 
and noted ‘NIL Comments’ on the financial statements 
of standalone and consolidated accounts of IREL (India) 
Limited in their report.

17.0	 Taxation

17.1	 Company has exercised the option of shifting to lower 
tax rate along with consequent reduction in certain 
tax Incentives permitted under Section 115BAA of the 
Income Tax act, 1961, as Introduced by the Government 
of India through Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 
2019 w.e.f. financial year 2019-20. Accordingly, the 
Company has recognized Provision for Current Tax for 
the year ended 31st March, 2021 and re-measured its 
Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities on the 
basis of the rates prescribed in the said section.

	 ii) 	        - 
   , 99.99%    
 ( (3) 6  2   100  
          
            
       

	 iii)	          
             
       95%    
       ,   
        , 
,       

15.0	   ,        


15.1	  , 2013   134(3)()   
   () , 2014     , 
          
    -        
    

16.0	    

16.1	           
    ,       
           
        ,     
    

16.2  ,  , 2013   143(6)  
   ,   -  
         () 
          
’ ’   

17.0	 

17.1	    , 1961   115   
             
       ,      
  () , 2019     
 2019-20      ,   31 , 
2021             
             
         
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18.0	 Dividend

18.1	 The Board of Directors has recommended a total 
dividend of ` 94.71 Crore for the year 2020-21. Out 
of which, Interim Dividend amounting ` 71.00 Crore 
has already been paid to the shareholders. Board of 
Directors in 370th meeting held on 13th July 2021 has 
recommended a Final Dividend of ` 23.71 Crore for 
the year 2020-21. The final dividend shall be paid after 
approval at Annual General Meeting of the Company.

19.0	 Public Deposit

19.1	 During the year under report, the Company has neither 
invited nor accepted any deposit from public within the 
meaning of section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013.

20.0	 The details of directors or key managerial personnel 
who were appointed/ resigned/ superannuated 
during the year

20.1	 During the year under review, Shri Mervin Alexander, 
ex- JS (I & M), DAE ceased to be nominee director 
w.e.f. 20.05.2020. Shri Sanjay Garg IAS, formerly the 
Principal Secretary to Government of Kerala, Industries 
Department ceased to be nominee director w.e.f. 
20.07.2020.

20.2 	 During the year, Shri A.R. Sule, JS (I & M), DAE and 
Shri Sanjay Kumar, JS (A & A), DAE were appointed as 
nominee director with effect from 20.05.2020. Shri A P 
M Mohammed Hanish IAS, Secretary to Govt of Kerala, 
Industries Department was appointed as nominee 
Director w.e.f. 24.08.2020.

21.0	 Particulars of Employees

21.1	 IREL (India) Limited, being a Government Company, 
is exempted from the provisions of Section 197(12) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Rules in view 
of the Notification dated 05.06.2015 issued by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs (MCA). The functional directors 
of the Company are appointed by the Administrative 
Department i.e. DAE within the terms & conditions as 
per DPE guidelines.

22.0 	 Auditors

22.1	 M/s Pathak H.D & Associates LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, Mumbai was the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for the FY 2020-21. They have audited the 
Financial Statements for the FY 2020-21 and submitted 
their report which forms part of this report. There is no 
qualification in the Auditors Report on the Financial 
Statements of the Company. Notes to the Accounts 
referred to in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory 
and therefore do not call for any further comments.

 18.0	

18.1	     2020-21   94.71    
           
  ` 71.00         
  13  2021   370     
  2020-21    23.71      
           
      

19.0	  

19.1	    ,    , 2013   
73                
   

20.0	            
   /  /     .

20.1	    ,   ,    
(  ),   20.05.2020     
    ,    ,    
 ,  20.07.2020     

20.2 	  ,  .. ,   (  ),  
     ,   (  ),  
    20.05.2020       
         , , 
 ,     24.08.2020   
       

21.0	   

21.1	  () ,      , 
    ()     
05.06.2015    , 2013   
197(12)           
          
           
  

22.0 	 

22.1	   .   ,  , 
   2020-21        
    2020-21       
               
            
           
-         
 
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23.0	 Cost Audit

23.1	 Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 
Amendment Rules, 2014, the Cost Accounts maintained 
by the Company for the FY 2020-21 are being audited 
by Cost Auditors M/s. R. K. Patel & Co., Vadodara.

24.0	 Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting 
the financial position of the company which have 
occurred between the end of the financial year of 
the company to which the financial statements 
relate and the date of the report:

24.1	 No such changes and commitments occurred between 
the end of the FY and the date of the report which may 
affect the standalone as well as consolidated financial 
position of the Company.

25.0	 Directors’ responsibility statement

25.1	 As required under clause (c) of sub-section (3) of section 
134 of the Companies Act, 2013, directors, to the best of 
their knowledge and belief, state that:

	 a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures;

	 b)	 the directors had selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of 
the financial year and of the profit and loss of the 
Company for that period;

	 c)	 the directors had taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

	 d)	 the directors had prepared the annual accounts 
on a going concern basis.

	 e)	 The Directors, in the case of a listed company, had 
laid down internal financial controls to be followed 
by the Company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively - Not Applicable

		  The Company is not a listed Company. However, 
an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting were operating effectively 
during the year ending on 31.03.2021 and same 

23.0	   

23.1	  , 2013   148     ( 
   )  , 2014  ,  
   2020-21         
        ,    
  

24.0	           
 ,   ,         
      ,      :

24.1              
         - 
      

25.0	     

25.1	    , 2013   134  - (3) 
  ()    , ,     
  ,    : 

	 )	�      ,    
         
  ;

	 )	           
           
            
            
          

	 )	            
          
          
        ;

	 )	           
 

	 )	            
          
           
    -  

	 )	      ,    
      31.03.2021 
             
   , 2013    , 
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was checked and certified by the Statutory 
Auditors in their report, as per the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

	 f)	 the directors had devised proper systems to 
ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and operating effectively.

26.0	 Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors 
under section 143(12) during the year under review

26.1	 No frauds were reported by the auditors to the Audit 
Committee or the Board under section 143 (12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

27.0	 Declaration by the Independent Directors

27.1	 The independent directors have submitted the 
declaration of independence, as required pursuant to 
section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that 
they meet the criteria of independence as provided in 
section 149 (6) of the said Act.

28.0	 Statement on development and implementation of 
Risk Management Policy including identification of 
elements of risk

28.1	 IREL has in place a robust “Enterprise Risk 
Management (ERM)” policy and in line with the ERM 
policy, the Risk Officers at Unit level identify various 
risks in consultation with each functional department 
and suggest mitigation measures for each identified 
risk. After reviewing the applicable risks and mitigation 
measures suggested by Risk Officer along with action 
taken reports, Head of the Unit submits the Quarterly 
Risk Reports to Chief Risk Officer(CRO) at Corporate 
Office. CRO evaluates these risks and categorizes 
these risks into High /Medium/Low intensity risks 
based on their potential impact on the Organization and 
submits the consolidated report to Risk Management 
Committee (RMC) for Review at Corporate Office 
for further direction towards mitigation. This RMC 
reviewed various risks identified by the Units on half-
yearly basis. The observation and recommendations 
of RMC on the potential risks reported to Units and 
Business Heads (Concerned Director) for necessary 
action.

28.2	 During the year 2020-21, Board level Risk Committee 
was constituted for reviewing the High and Medium 
Intensity Risks on half-yearly basis, chaired by one 
Independent Director. Board level Risk Committee 
conducted risk review meetings during July and 
December 2020. High intensity risks were reported to 

          
   

	 )	          
           
            


26.0	      143(12)     
       

26.1	  , 2013   143 (12)    
             
 

27.0	    

27.1	     , 2013   149(7)  
      ,      
     149 (6)       
    

28.0	            
   

28.1	    “   ()”   
       ,     
          
            
            
          ,  
        () 
           
           
     /  /      
              
          
()        - 
           
         
   ( )      
  

28.2  2020-21         -
           
            
       2020    
           
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Board of Directors through Board level Risk Committee 
for information and necessary direction of Board.

29.0 Safety, Healthcare & Environment

29.1	 Details of Safety, Health Care and activities related to 
Environment Protections undertaken by the Company 
are given in the Annexure ‘B’ forming part of this report.

30.0	 Corporate Governance

30.1	 A separate section on Corporate Governance along with 
a Compliance Report on the Corporate Governance 
certified by a practicing Company Secretary and the 
Management Discussion & Analysis Report are placed 
in Annexure ‘C’ and forms part of this Report.

31.0	 Compliance of Secretarial Standards

31.1	 During the year under review, the company complied 
with applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

32.0	 Significant and Material Orders Passed by the 
Regulators or Courts

32.1	 There have been no significant and material orders 
passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting 
Company’s going concern status.

33.0	 Copy of the Annual Return

33.1	 In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, the copy of the Annual Return for the financial year 
ended 2020-21 in the Form MGT-7 as per provisions of 
section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 is placed at the website of the company at 
www.irel.co.in.

34.0	 The Whistle Blower Policy

34.1	 IREL has formulated a “Whistle Blower” Policy which 
facilitates its employees to report to the management 
and in exceptional cases to the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee about unethical behaviour, actual or 
suspected fraud, or violation of the company’s general 
guidelines on conduct or ethics policy. This policy 
provides employees of IREL to genuinely blow the 
whistle on any misconduct or unethical activity taking 
place in the Company and to protect the whistleblower. 
Board noted that during the year 2020-21, Company 
has neither received any complaint under the Whistle 
Blower Policy nor any employees has been denied 
any personal access to the Audit Committee during the 
year 2020-21. Whistle blower policy is available on the 
company’s website www.irel.co.in.

       -    
       

29.0 ,    

29.1	     ,      
            
 ‘’    

30.0	  

30.1	        -   
         
        ‘’  
         

31.0	    

31.1	    ,       
         

32.0	         

32.1	            
           

33.0	    

33.1	   2013         
         -7  
2020-21    , 2013   92(3) 
  12(1)   (  ) , 2014 
    www.irel.co.in    

34.0	   

34.1	            
  “ ”,    , 
           
           
             
           
           
              
2020-21  ,          
            2020-21 
             
         www.irel.
co.in   
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35.0	 Complaint Mechanism for Women

35.1	 As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules made there under, 
Internal Compliance Committees are in place at 
various locations of the company to redress complaints 
received regarding sexual harassment. IREL (India) 
Ltd has been conducting training / workshops both for 
male and female employees sensitizing them about 
the issues and law relating to sexual harassment. 
During the year under report, no complaint of sexual 
harassment has been received.

36.0	 Loans, guarantees or investment U/s 186 of 
Companies Act

36.1 	During the year under review, the company has not 
made any loan, guarantee or investment (except 
investment into equity share capital of subsidiary 
company) under section 186 of the companies Act, 
2013.

37.0 	Related party transactions:

37.1	 There have been no related party transactions between 
the company and the Directors, the management or 
the relatives except for those disclosed in the financial 
statements. During the year, the Company has made 
an investment into equity share capital of its subsidiary 
company i.e. IREL IDCOL Limited whose accounts are 
consolidated with holding company and placed before 
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting 
for approval. Accordingly, particulars of contracts 
or arrangements with related parties referred to in 
Section 188 (1) along with the justification for entering 
into such contract or arrangement in Form AOC-2 does 
not form part of this report.

38.0	 Awards / Accolades

	 During the year, the Company participated in number 
of award competitions to have better visibility and to 
enhance its brand value. The following accolades won, 
speak on the growth of the Company in various fields:

	 	 PSE Excellence Award in the 10th Edition of 
PSE Conclave conducted by Indian Chamber of 
Commerce.

	 	 National award for excellence in PSU under the 
category “reskilling of employees” conducted by 
World CSR Congress.

	 	 Greentech Safety Award 2020 during the 19th 
Annual Greentech Safety Summit.

35.0	     

35.1	       (,   

) , 2013        

  ,        

           

   ()      

            

     /      

            

36.0	     186   ,   

36.1 	       , 2013   

186    ,    (    

     )   

37.0	   :

37.1	           , 

            

  ,        

         ,  

            

            

,  188(1)         

     -2      

            

38.0	  / 

	   ,            

          

,           :

	 	          

10     

	 	         
  “  ”     


	 	 19         
 2020
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	 	 OSCOM Unit won Gold First Quality Circle Award 
for the year 2020 at 29th QCFI (Quality Circle 
Forum of India, Koraput Chapter Convention).

	 	 IREL, Chavara is graded as ‘A-Grade’ among 
government institutions for adopting green 
initiatives and practices by Kerala Govt 
Suchinthwa Mission.
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	 	    29  (   
 ,   )   2020   
     

	 	           
   ,      
 ’-’       

39.0 	

39.1	  ,   ,    , 
         , 
          
           
  

39.2	              
      

      

		   ( )
    

 : 24 , 2021
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Annexure ‘A’
(Annexure to the Directors’ Report)

A. 	 Conservation of Energy

i.	 Steps taken and impact on conservation of energy:

	 Replacement of Conventional light fittings with Energy 
efficient LED light fittings, installation of LED Light gear 
for high mast lights, conversion of shaft driers’ fuel from 
HSD to LPG, introduction of timer panels in lighting 
circuits, load management including downsizing of 
existing motors, procurement of energy efficient motors, 
introduction of VFDs in pumps, procurement of battery 
operated forklifts etc.

	 In view of above, there was a saving of 7.1 lakh units of 
electricity. Further an amount of ̀  9.89 lakhs was earned 
towards incentive from respective State Electricity 
Boards for maintaining the required power factor.

ii. 	 Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

	 i.	 Installed and commissioned 11 kW Rooftop Solar 
unit commissioned at MK Unit.

	 ii.	 Roof top solar units of 60kW and 100kW 
capacities were installed at RED and OSCOM 
units respectively.

	 iii.	 Installed and commissioned 100 lpd Solar water 
heater in MK unit for drinking purposes.

iii 	 The Capital Investment on energy conservation 
equipment:

	 Total Capital investment on energy conservation 
equipment for the year 2020-21 is about ` 143.33 lakhs.

B. 	 Technology Absorption

(I)	 Efforts made towards technology absorption:

	 a)	 Installation of auto samplers for accurate 
assessment of performance of HUS and in Zircon 
Circuit.

	 b)	 Installation of additional two nos. of vacuum filter 
systems for TSP filtration

	 c)	 Installation of Chiller unit in the evaporated lye 
section to improve efficiency of evaporation

	 d)	 Installation of condensate recovery system for 
attack and RE evaporation section.

	 e)	 Installed AMF (Automatic Mains Failure) panel to 
the 250 kVA DG set.

	 f)	 Replacement of IRMS with RERMS in Zircon 
Circuit.

 ‘’
(    )

 .	   

i.	         :

	            
,          , 
         ,  
     ,     
  ,      ,   
  ,      

	     7.1        
           
       9.89      
  

ii.	           :

	 i.	    11       
   

	 ii.	         60kW 
 100kW         


	 iii.	         100    
     

iii	      :

	  2020-21          
 143.33   

.	  

(I)	         :

	 )	           
    

	 )	          
   

	 )	          
     

	 )	          
  

	 )	 250       (  
) 

	 )	        
  
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	 g)	 Installation of RERMS in Sillimanite circuit to 
remove Staurolite for export grade Sillimanite 
product.

	 h)	 Installation of HG10i spirals and 12 Tph Hydrosizer 
in Wet Circuits of MSP.

	 i)	 Developed technologies in laboratory & bench 
scale for production of high purity fine garnet with 
less than 2% Ilmenite.

	 j)	 Developed to produce zinc phosphate pigment 
from Tri sodium Phosphate suitable for anti 
corrosive formulation. The product has a 
brightness index of 95% and is comparable with 
other white materials such as alumina, magnesia, 
Titania and zirconia.

	 k)	 R&D process has been developed for production 
of 4N pure Gadolinium Nitrate required for 
strategic application. Similarly R&D process 
developed for high temperature thermal barrier 
coating application of gas turbine.

(II)	 The benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution as a result of the above efforts:

	 a)	 Modification of Agitator design in RE extraction 
tanks from disc type to pitched blade type lead to 
reduction in power consumption by 56kW/ton of 
monazite.

	 b)	 Optimization of pH of MH-HCl dissolution slurry to 
reduce the cycle time of dissolution and filtration 
by 20%.

	 c)	 Total 1935 tons of coal saved with condensate 
recovery systems.

	 d)	 MG6.3 spiral introduced in HUP circuit resulted in 
reduction in HM content in tails by 21%(2.8% to 
2.2 %).

	 e)	 Indigenous development of process for production 
of Nuclear Grade Gadolinium Nitrate for strategic 
use.

	 f)	 Zircon recovery in MK unit improved by 3.4% from 
the previous year.

	 g)	 MSP can produce high pure desired quality fine 
garnet.

	 )	           
      

	 )	  (MSP)     HG10i    
12 Tph   

	 )	 2 %           
          
  

	 )	         
          
     95 %    
      , ,  
     

	 )	      4N   
         
           
         
    

(II)	      ,   , 
        :

	 )	            
          56kW 
/      

	 )	        20 %   
   -       


	 )	      1935     


	 )	       6.3   
      21% (2.8%  
2.2%)   

	 )	          
      

	 )	            
3.4%   

	 )	          
   
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(III)	 In case of imported technology (imported during the 
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year)

	 a)	 The details of technology imported – Nil.

	 b)	 The year of import – NA

	 c)	 Whether the technology been fully absorbed – 
NA.

	 d)	 If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has 
not taken place, and the reasons thereof – NA.

(IV)	 The expenditure incurred on Research & 
Development

Particulars (` in lakh)
Capita 9.06
Revenues 173.88
Total 182.94

	 Capital Expenditure

Particulars (` in lakh)
From own reserve 6028.65
From Budgetary support for 
DAE sponsored projects
Rare Earth & Titanium 
Theme Park 224.97
Rare Earth Permanent 
Magnet 1217.42 1442.39
Total 7471.04

	 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

	 Earnings by way of export – 	 ` 51,473.11 lakhs
	 Outgo by way of import - ` 406.04 lakhs

(iii)	      (     
        

	 )	     -  .

	 )	    -  

	 )	           -  .

	 )	         ,     
   ,    -  .

(iv)	       

 (` /)
 9.06
 173.88
 182.94

	  

 (` /)
   6028.65
     
  
      224.97
    1217.42 1442.39
 7471.04

	     

	      - ` 51,473.11 
	      - ` 406.04 
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Annexure ‘B’
1.	 Safety, Health Care & Environment

	 ●	 Safety, Health Care and Environment of the 
employees and neighborhood of operating plants 
and other units are given due significance and 
attention. This approach has enabled the company 
to achieve efficient utilization of resources, higher 
productivity, safe working environment and better 
quality products/services.

	 ●	 All the operating plants are accredited with 
ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015, OHSAS 
18001:2007 and ISO 45001:2018 certification and 
Corporate Research and Safety unit is accredited 
with ISO 9001:2015. All the mineral and chemical 
laboratories of the company obtained certificate of 
accreditation from NABL in accordance with the 
standard ISO/IEC 17025:2017

2.	 Safety

	 REL, having Safety as one of its core values, is 
committed to provide safe and healthy work environment 
for the prevention of work related injuries and well-being 
of its employees and other stake holders. Safety is 
given paramount consideration in all aspects of day to 
day operations including in the case of project activities. 
IREL is of the firm belief that accidents are preventable 
and safety is not compromised in the pursuit of 
commercial advantage.

	 In IREL, the Safety Policy is inculcated by the Top 
Management as a resolve towards ‘Zero Accident 
Policy’ (ZAP) as its ultimate goal. This is implemented 
by adopting the policy of Management by Objectives, as 
under:

	 ●	 Work related injuries of any nature is avoidable

	 ●	 Capacity building of the employees along 
with all connected stakeholders lead to better 
performance

	 ●	 Analysis, reporting and dissemination of data is of 
paramount importance to prevent recurrences

	 ●	 Keeping abreast latest developments

	 Company has also formulated a Corporate Safety 
Management Plan covering all activities including 
Mining, Mineral Processing and Chemical Plants 
and the same has been circulated to units and its 
implementation is being monitored by Corporate Safety 
Department.

 ‘’
1.	  ,    

	 ●	�   ,      
          
            
 ,  ,     
    /       
 

	 ●	 �    9001:2015,  
14001:2015,  18001:2007  
 45001:2018       
      9001:2015 
          
   / 17025:2017 
         

2.	 

	 ,          ,  
          
          
           
-           
            
            
  

	  ,         
   ’  ’ ()       
             
   ,   :

	 ●	            

	 ●	           
   

	 ●	        ,   
  

	 ●	       

	   ,        
           
             
          
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	 The company has established and maintained safe work 
environment with suitable facilities, procedures and 
training to ensure health and safety of the employees. 
A regular and systematic method for assessment and 
evaluation of safety standards of all the operating 
plants is in place in the company. An expert committee 
with members of prominence in the field of safety 
visit all operating units and assess the safety, health, 
environment, energy & water conservation conditions 
of the operating units and recommended for the award 
of CMD shield in the said areas. Barring few minor 
accidents, there was no fatal accident during the year.

3.	 Health Care

	 ●	 All the operational units of the company are 
having occupational health centers with qualified, 
experienced, trained & competent male and 
female medical practitioners and para medical 
staff along with adequate medical facilities to 
look after the health of the employees and their 
dependant family members. As part of corporate 
social responsibility, company conducts medical 
camps, provide assistance to schools, in the 
nearby villages.

4.	 Environment Care

	 ●	 After completion of mining, the mined out area is 
refilled, leveled and reclaimed to earlier levels. The 
mining units of the company are planting saplings 
in the mined out areas, colony and residential 
areas with a view to restore and maintain ecology. 
Rain water harvesting points, water recharging 
are set up to improve the water table of the mined 
out area. Solar lighting systems are installed to 
reduce the carbon foot print.

	 ●	 The company is committed to provide clean 
environment both at the work place and 
surrounding areas. The operational units of 
the company are adhering to all safety norms / 
standards fixed by the respective state pollution 
control boards / Central Pollution Control Board 
and other statutory bodies which are closely 
monitored and maintained well within prescribed 
limits.

	             
 ,        
           
           
            
           
   , , ,    
            
            
 ,         

3.	  

	 ●	       , ,  
         
       ,   
         
         
      ,   
       ,   
   

4.	  

	 ●	     ,         
,            
         : 
           , 
           
            , 
            
       

	 ●	          
          
    /   
         
/     ,    
           
    
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Annexure – ‘C’
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.0	 Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

	 The Company believes that good Corporate Governance 
emerges from the application of the best and sound 
management practices and compliance with the laws 
coupled with adherence to the highest standards of 
transparency and business ethics. At IREL, we ensure 
that we evolve and sincerely follow the corporate 
governance guidelines issued by Department of Public 
Enterprise (DPE), Government of India. The company’s 
policy is reflected by the very values of transparency, 
professionalism and accountability. We consider it our 
inherent responsibility to disclose timely and accurate 
information regarding our financials and performance, 
as well as the governance of the Company. The 
company has been graded as “Excellent” for the year 
2019-20 by the DPE on the compliance of guidelines on 
Corporate Governance for CPSEs.

2.0	 Board of Directors

2.1	 Composition and category of Directors

	 The Board of the company comprises of Functional 
Directors, Non-Executive Government directors and 
Non-official (Independent) Directors. As on 31.03.2021, 
the Board of the Company comprised of 9 directors out 
of which 3 are whole time Functional Directors and 6 
are Non-Executive Directors. Out of 6 Non-Executive 
Directors, 4 are part time Official/ Nominee Directors 
and 2 are Independent Directors. None of the Directors 
are related with other Directors as per the meaning 
of relatives provided under section – 2(77) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

2.2 	 Meetings

	 The Board of Directors met four times during the year 
2020-21 and the gap between two meetings did not 
exceed four months. The dates on which said meetings 
were held are as follows:

	 3rd July, 2020, 21st September, 2020, 18th December, 
2020 and 15th March, 2021. Required quorums were 
present at all the Board meetings.

 - ‘’
   

1.0	      

	            
          
            
   ,        
  (),       
           
,        
        -    
            
          
         2019-20  
 “”       

2.0	  

2.1	     

	      , -  
  - ()    
31.03.2021 ,     9   ,   
3      6 -    
6 -    4  / 
   2     , 2013  
 - 2 (77)           
        

2.2 	 

	  2020-21            
             
     ,    :

	 3 , 2020, 21 , 2020, 18 , 2020   
15 , 2021.         
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	  2020-21            31 , 2021          
 :

	 Attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings held during the year 2020-21 and their outside directorship as on  
31st March, 2021 are given hereunder:

.  
.

         




Sl.
No.

Name of the Director Board Meetings No. of outside 
Directorships

Remarks
  

 


Held during 
the tenure

Attended

1   
Shri Deependra Singh

4 4 2

2
   
Shri K K Mohanty

4 4 1

3
   
Shri A Roy Chowdhury

4 4 1

4
   
Shri A R Sule

4 4 5
20.05.2020   

Joined on 20.05.2020

5
  
Shri Sanjay Kumar

4 4 2
20.05.2020   

Joined on 20.05.2020

6
   
Dr.Dinesh Srivastava

4 3 1

7
   
Shri Ved Prakash Yajurvedi

4 3 0

8
 () . . 
Col. (R) B.B. Pandian

4 4 0

9
     
Shri A P M Mohammed Hanish

3 3 4
24.08.2020   

Joined on 24.08.2020

2.3	 21 , 2020 (3  2020  )   
70    ()    :

 	    :

	 1.	     -  (   )

	 2.	  . .  - (   )

	 3.	    - 

	 4.	    	 - 

	 5.	    - 

3.0	   

3.1.1	           :

	 )	       /   
  

2.3	 The attendance at the 70th AGM held on 21st 
September, 2020 (Adjourned on 3rd November 2020) 
were as under:

	 Name of the Shareholders

	 1.	 Hon’ble President of India - Present (through 
representative)

	 2.	 Shri K.N. Vyas - Present (through proxy)

	 3.	 Shri D Singh - Present

	 4.	 Shri A R Sule - Present

	 5.	 Shri Sanjay Kumar - Present

3.0	 Audit Committee

3.1.1	 Brief description of the terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee are as follows:

	 a)	 Review the quarterly/annual financial statements 
before submission to the Board.
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	 b)	 Review of internal audit, statutory audit and 
Government audit reports.

	 c)	 Reviewing with the management, statutory 
auditors and internal auditors about internal 
control system and its adequacy.

	 d)	 Ensure compliance with the applicable Accounting 
Standards and other statutory requirements for 
the preparation of financial statements.

	 e)	 Review of Significant Accounting Policies and 
changes, if any.

	 f)	 Reviewing audit qualifications, if any.

	 g)	 Recommending appointment of cost auditors.

	 h) 	 Recommending to the Board for the fixation of 
audit fees of statutory auditors & Cost Auditors.

	 i) 	 Appointment & fixation of remuneration of Tax 
Auditors.

	 j)	 Approving payment to statutory auditors for any 
other services, which are not statutorily prohibited.

	 k)	 Review of Cost Audit report and Tax Audit report.

	 l)	 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant 
findings and follow up thereon.

3.1.2	 Composition & other particulars of Audit Committee

	 The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors was 
reconstituted on 16.06.2020 and constitution of the 
committee consists of Shri V.P. Yajurvedi, Independent 
Director as Chairman, Col. (R) B.B. Pandian, 
Independent Director, Shri A.R. Sule, Nominee Director 
and Dr. Dinesh Srivastava, Nominee Director as other 
members. The Committee met four times during the year 
on 3rd July, 2020, 21st September, 2020, 18th December, 
2020 and 15th March, 2021. The name and attendance 
of the members at the Audit Committee Meetings were 
as follows:

Sl.

No.

Name of Director Category of 
Director

No. of 
meetings 
attended

Remarks

1. Shri V.P. Yajurvedi Independent 3

2. Col. (R) B.B. 
Pandian

Independent 4

3. Shri A R Sule Nominee 4 Joined as 
a member 
w.e.f. 
03.07.2020

4. Dr. Dinesh 
Srivastava

Nominee 3

	 )	  ,     
   

	 )	          , 
         
 

	 )	           
      

	 )	       ,   


	 )	     ,   

	 )	       

	 )	         
         

	 )	         

	 )	           
   ,       

	 )	           


	 )	           
     

3.1.2	       

	        16.06.2020   
       	   .. ,  
    ,  () .. ,  
,  .. ,    .  , 
          3 , 2020, 
21 , 2020, 18 , 2020  15 , 2021  
            
     :

. 
.

     


 
  





1.  ..   3

2.  () 
. . 

 4

3.  . .   4  
03.07.2020  
     
  

4.     3
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	 Chairman & Managing Director and Director (Finance) 
are permanent invitees and the Company Secretary 
acts as Secretary to the Audit Committee.

4.0	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

4.1.1	 Terms of reference in brief:

	 To decide on the payment of Performance Related Pay 
and policy for its distribution across the executives and 
non-unionized supervisors, within the prescribed limits 
and such other matters as the Board may from time to 
time refer to the remuneration committee to examine 
and approve.

 4.1.2	Composition & other particulars of Remuneration 
Committee

	 The Company has a Remuneration Committee of 
the Board of directors consisting of independent and 
nominee directors and it is headed by independent 
director.

4.1.3	 Meeting and attendance during the year

	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee met on 
22nd January, 2021. All the members of the committee 
namely Shri V. P. Yajurvedi, Chairman and Shri A.R. 
Sule and Dr. Dinesh Srivastava as other members were 
present in the meeting held during 2020-21.

4.1.4	 Remuneration policy

	 Performance Related Pay (PRP) is driven by the overall 
performance of the Company vis-a-vis performance of 
each executive and non-unionized supervisors across 
the company.

5.0	 Remuneration paid to Independent Directors

	 During the year 2020-21, the Company paid sitting 
fees @ ` 10,000/- per meeting to its Non-Executive 
Independent Director for attending each meeting of the 
Board and Board appointed committees. The Company 
also pays daily allowance to outstation Independent 
Directors and reimburses local conveyance, travelling 
expenses and accommodation expenses incurred 
by the Independent Directors for attending meetings 
of the Board and committees thereof. An amount of 
` 3,06,800/- was paid to the Independent Directors 
towards sitting fees during the year 2020-21.

      ()     
            

4.0	    

4.1.1	     :

	   -        
             
        -   
           

4.1.2	      

	            
          
 

4.1.3	     

	       22 , 2021   
      .. ,    
..   .   2020-21     
     

4.1.4	 

 	    ()       
    -      
 

5.0	      :

	  2020-21  ,        
        -   
       @ ` 10,000 / -   
            
            
     ,      
        2020-21    
       3,06,800/-    




42

 () 

71    2020-21

5.1.2	         

5.1.2	 Details of remuneration paid to the Key Managerial Personnel

	              

	 Remuneration paid to the individual key managerial personnel is stated as under.

 `  / Amount in `

1	       

I	 Remuneration particulars of individual key management personnel 

 
 

 / Particulars   
Shri D. Singh             

 .. 
Shri K K 
Mohanty          

 . 
Shri A. Roy 
Chowdhury

   
 ()

Shri Rupender 
Dhiman (CS)

 / A   1961   17(1) 
     
Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income tax Act 1961

8595543 8580520 5103126 1784865

 / B   1961   17(2) 
    
Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of 
I Tax Act 1961  

1450908 298431 765706 186746

 / C   1961   17(3) 
     
Profits in lieu of salary u/s 17(3) 
of I Tax Act 1961   

0 0 0 0

 / D  / Others:

/   
     
Employer contribution towards 
PF/Superannuation and 
actuarial provision

1040660 1346055 1082686 643397

 / E Total 11087111 10225006 6951518 2615008

 / F       / Remuneration paid to Independent Directors  `  
Amount in Rs.

    / Sitting fees
    / Boopathi Pandian 165200

    / Ved Prakash Yajurvedi 141600

 / Others
   / Boopathi Pandian 0

    / Ved Prakash Yajurvedi 0

 / Total 306800
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6.0	 General Body Meetings

6.1	 The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company 
were held at registered office of the Company at 
Prabhadevi, Mumbai. Meetings were held on following 
dates:

Financial year Date Time
2019-20 03.11.2020 10:30 AM
2018-19 28.09.2019 11.45 AM
2017-18 25.09.2018 1.00 PM

6.2	  Annual General Meeting for the FY 2019-20 was initially 
scheduled on 21.09.2020 and adjourned AGM was 
held on 03.11.2020 upon receipt of CAG comments on 
21.10.2020.

6.3	 Date, Time & Venue of the Current years AGM:

	 The 71st Annual General Meeting of the Company will 
be held on 24th September, 2021 at 1.00 PM through 
video-conferencing and deemed venue of the meeting 
is the registered office of IREL (India) Ltd, Mumbai.

7.0 	 Means of Communication

7.1 	 Unaudited quarterly financial results are reviewed by the 
audit committee and approved by the Board which are 
furnished to the Administrative Department (AD). Since, 
IREL is un-listed company, external communications 
are made as required by the Government from time to 
time.

8.0 	 Audit Qualifications

8.1	 There is no qualification in the Audit Report either from 
the Statutory Auditor or the Government Auditor for the 
financial year 2020-21.

9.0	 Plant Locations

9.1	 Mining & Mineral Separation Plants are located at 
Manavalakurichi - Tamil Nadu, Chavara – Kerala, and 
Chatrapur - Odisha. The REEP plant is located at 
Chatrapur- Odisha and the Rare Earths Division dealing 
in chemicals is located at Aluva Kerala.

10.0	 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
REPORT

10.1	 Business environment & Industry Structure

10.1.1	 The pandemic brought about by the Corona Virus 
had a recessionary impact on all the economies. The 
global GDP growth shrunk by 3.5% Y-o-Y in 2020 – the 
deepest global recession since the Great Depression. 
India’s FY 2020-21 GDP contracted 7.3% Y-o-Y despite 
the various measures taken by Government of India to 
perk up the economy.

6.0	   

6.1	            
,           
  : 

     
2019-20 03.11.2020 10:30  
2018-19 28.09.2019 11.45 
2017-18 25.09.2018 1.00  

6.2	   2019-20        21.09.2020 
      21.10.2020     
   03.11.2020       

6.3	        ,    :

	   71    24 , 2021   
1.00  -        
    () ,    
 

7.0	   

7.1         
            
   ()      , 
 -  ,    -
       

8.0	   

8.1	   2020-21          
        

9.0	   

9.1	      -, -
  -      -
             
    

10.0	     

10.1	     

10.1.1	          
    2020        
 -- 3.5%   -       
            
         2020-21  
  7.3% --  
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10.1.2	 In India, IREL and Kerala Minerals and Metals Limited, a 
Kerala State Government Enterprise are the two players 
in the heavy minerals sector while IREL is the sole 
player producing High Pure Rare Earth compounds in 
the domestic market. Owing to the number of stages in 
which IREL operates, IREL has a large product portfolio 
comprising over 30 products.

10.1.3	Though IREL has a varied product portfolio, Ilmenite 
continues to be the major contributor with major 
consumers located near its plants and overseas 
customers in Asia and European region.

10.1.4	World over, ceramic sector is the main consuming 
sector of Zircon but with Nuclear Fuel Complex, a DAE 
constituent becoming major client of IREL’s MK Zircon 
– the production of MK Zircon being almost exclusively 
earmarked to meet India’s nuclear energy requirement, 
IREL’s customer segment is skewed towards Zircon 
sponge market. The logistic and other challenges faced 
by NFC during the pandemic impacted the sales of 
Zircon. Refractory and Foundry sector are other market 
segments of IREL.

10.1.5	Welding electrode industry which is the end-use 
segment of Rutile recovered substantially from the effect 
of pandemic as the year went ahead mainly due to the 
thrust on Infrastructure industry and Industry revival 
seen in the second half of the year. While world over the 
major end-use industry for Rutile is Ti pigment / sponge 
industry, in India IREL almost exclusively caters to the 
need of welding electrode industry whose constituents 
fall under MSME category.

10.1.6	 The mainstay of refractory industry which is the major 
consumer of Sillimanite – Steel Industry registered 
negative growth during 2020-21. However, IREL’s 
initiative to diversify to international market in anticipation 
of increased production from expanded capacities in 
FY2021-22 and tying up of sales for major tonnage of 
anticipated production of Sillimanite of OSCOM unit 
helped in improvement in sales.

10.1.7	Garnet sales are heavily dependent on the fortunes of 
petroleum industry especially the coarser variety. This 
industry was in doldrums as the world-wide lockdown 
during the major part of the year meant drying up 
of markets for petroleum products from automobile 
and aviation sector. Consequently, the prices moved 
southwards and a shift in demand towards finer variety 
was witnessed. IREL finetuned the marketing strategy 
to meet the market expectations.

10.1.2	           
     ,      
          
            
         30  
   

10.1.3	       ,   
           
          
  

10.1.4	  ,        ,  
           
        -     
           
       ,     
            
           
         

10.1.5	  ,       , 
              
              
             
   -    /   , 
          
     ,      
  

10.1.6	         
  -    2020-21     
  ,   2021-22     
           
          
             
    

10.1.7	             
 ,              
          
          
     ,       
            
          
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10.1.8	 The end-user industries for rare earths viz. Automotive, 
Steel & metal, Petroleum, Electronics, Infrastructure 
had a challenging year. Consequently, barring 
Dysprosium and Terbium, the market for other products 
was lackluster or just stable.

10.2	 Strength and Weakness

10.2.1	 Strengths

	 •	 Leader in domestic atomic minerals market with 
established process flow sheet and products for 
niche applications.

	 •	 Experienced manpower, skill intervention over 
long period due to being early starter.

	 •	 Only entity in the Country in the field of Rare Earth 
extraction and processing

	 •	 Established brand of products

	 •	 All processes are certified by QMS including 
NABL accreditation for QC laboratories

	 •	 Strong in-house R&D setup for continuous 
improvement and new product development.

	 •	 R&D support from reputed and eminent 
laboratories of DAE

	 •	 State Trading Enterprise for export canalization of 
BSM and its value added products.

	 •	 Established business model

	 •	 Ethical & robust core values and beliefs

	 •	 Environment friendly process.

	 •	 Process renders the area suitable for inhabitation 
by way of reduction of background radiation, 
backfilling of low lying areas, etc.

	 •	 Multiple element production are source of 
multifaceted value chain, creation of avenue for 
industry sector.

10.2.2	 Weaknesses

	 •	 Low volume and low value products with higher 
span of operations.

	 •	 Legacy orientation due to one of early 
establishments.

	 •	 Hindrance in operations by local inhabitants 
having low emotional quotient, irrational blind 
beliefs, susceptible to being misled by groups 
having vested interests.

	 •	 Increasing expectation of private land owners in 
Southern units.

10.1.8	        , 
  , , ,     
    ,    
 ,         

10.2	   

10.2.1	

	 •	          
        

	 •	  ,        
  

	 •	            


	 •	    

	 •	        
    (QMS)  

	 •	           
     .

	 •	         
    

	 •	          
    

	 •	   

	 •	       

	 •	     .

	 •	     ,     
           

	 •	 -    ,    
      

10.2.2	

	 •	            
 

	 •	          

	 •	   ,   ,   
          
    

	 •	         
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10.3	 Opportunities and Threats

10.3.1	 Opportunities

	 •	 Performance enhancement quotient in various 
industrial sectors providing avenues for minerals, 
Rare Earths and R&D.

	 •	 Only Government Agencies are mandated to 
mine Atomic Minerals and prescribed substances.

	 •	 Availability of limited processing technologies and 
knowhow other than China.

	 •	 Alignment of market dynamics with availability of 
product.

	 •	 Sourcing of heavy rare-earths concentrates from 
abroad.

	 •	 The growing demand for rare earth permanent 
magnets owing to growth in high-tech including 
electric vehicles and renewable energy sectors.

10.3.2	 Threats

	 •	 Expected market downturn and supply chain 
disruption due to COVID-19.

	 •	 Inhabitation tendency higher in area of natural 
occurrence of minerals causing hinderance in 
obtaining surface rights.

	 •	 Expansion of MSP is prohibited in CRZ.

	 •	 Non-implementation of AMCR by respective State 
Governments in true letter and spirit.

	 	 Vested interest created over period of time due to 
opening up of BSM sector.

	 	 Prone to natural calamities/ high maintenance as 
operations are in coastal areas.

	 	 Development of Habitation/ Occupation over 
virgin mineral deposits before harnessing.

	 	 Lack of coordination by state holding the mineral 
leading to change in the land use/classification.

	 	 Gradual depletion of heavy mineral content in 
beach washings at southern units and sterilization 
of mining lease areas due to inhabitation.

	 	 Complex Socio-political issues in Kerala and 
Tamil Nadu.

	 	 Statutory compliances for Atomic Mineral sector 
similar to conventional major minerals viz; iron 
ore, bauxite etc.

10.3	   

10.3.1 	

	 •	 ,          
          


	 •	         
     

	 •	        
  .

	 •	          


	 •	         

	 •	         
           


10.3.2	

	 •	  -19         
 

	 •	            
           


	 •	       

	 •	           
  

	 	            
 

	 	          /  
   

	 	         /  


	 	            
 /     

	 	            
           


	 	      - 

	 	           
 ;  ,  
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	 	 Generation of by-products having limited market 
potential.

	 •	 Allowing the development of high-value real estate 
by changing CRZ classification from CRZ III to 
CRZ II may sterilize atomic mineral resources in 
various states especially Kerala, Odisha, Andhra 
Pradesh and Tamil Nadu.

10.4	 Segment-wise or product- wise performance

10.4.1	 IREL’s fortunes continue to be pegged with that of 
Ilmenite which contributed about 70 % in volume terms 
of sales of total minerals sold by the company. In value 
terms too Ilmenite remained the major source of revenue 
with little less than 50 % of the overall turnover of IREL.

10.4.2	 Overall, the revenue from mineral sales contributed 
over 89 % of IREL sales turnover. Besides Ilmenite, 
other minerals portfolio consists of Rutile / Luecoxene, 
Zircon / Zirflor, Silimanite and Garnet. On the other 
hand, portfolio of chemicals contributed 11 %.

10.4.3	 The TiO2 industry and the aviation sector were affected 
by the COVID-19 pandemic with aviation sector being 
more severely affected. Coupled with this phenomenon 
and the problems in logistics, IREL’s sales volume of 
Ilmenite dipped with respect to the earlier year owing 
to lesser exports. As IREL’s domestic customer base 
is situated near the production centers, the sales 
in domestic market were not affected – albeit they 
registered a growth of 6 %. The improved domestic 
sales and firming up of the market as the year went by, 
especially the TiO2 industry coming out from the shadow 
of the pandemic, resulted in sales revenue from Ilmenite 
to be pari pasu with the earlier year’s figures.

10.4.4	 The imposition of nationwide lockdown due to COVID-19 
brought the construction activities to a complete halt. 
New projects were postponed and delivery of on-
going projects was delayed. This had a severe impact 
on the demand of ceramic tiles and sanitary ware that 
services the real estate industry as part of building and 
construction materials. The replacement demand of 
tiles and sanitary ware was also affected owing to fears 
of virus contraction and job losses due to pandemic. As 
such, the tepid demand for Zircon world-wide resulted 
in prices moving southwards and IREL revenue from 
Zircon fell by a whopping 30 %.

10.4.5	 In contrast to Zircon sales, though Rutile demand was 
on the lower side in the first quarter, the same started 
picking up as the year progressed and IREL was able to 
almost achieve the last years revenue figures for Rutile.

	 	     -  

	 •	     III   II  
          
     , ,    
         

10.4	  -  - 

10.4.1	         ,  
             70% 
             
        50    
  

10.4.2	 ,         
  89%         , 
    /, /, 
      ,    
 11%   

10.4.3	TiO
2
      -19     

            
     ,      
              
          
 ,        -   6% 
    -   ,      
    ,    2   
      ,     
          

10.4.4	 -19        
            
            
         ,  
             
            
          
     ,        
            
    30 %      

10.4.5	    ,      
   ,  -   ,   
            
     
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10.4.6	  The logistic issues faced in shipments, lack of availability 
of containers, etc. resulted in shrinking exports both in 
volume and value terms. But for the efforts of the logistic 
and export teams the scenario would have been much 
worse. As such, IREL was able to contain the reduction 
in sales of Garnet by improved sales of Sillimanite and 
the combined sales of both Garnet and Sillimanite were 
only marginally lower than last year’s achievement by 
about 4 %.

10.4.7	 Sales of Chemicals were severely affected especially as 
the supply chain for major contributor to revenue from 
this segment was affected owing to lockdown and other 
restrictions in place at the end-user side. The efforts to 
mitigate the potential revenue loss by focusing on other 
products in this category yielded some fillip to the bottom 
line and the contribution from this segment for the year 
was 11 % as compared to about 13.5 % achieved last 
year.

10.5	 Outlook

10.5.1	 The pandemic of COVID-19 took the form of an ocean 
in no time from a tickle at the beginning of March 2020. 
Entire world had come to the standstill for a couple of 
months after which the activities were allowed to begin 
in stages gradually by various Governments all over the 
globe. Just when the pandemic looked like subsiding 
in January 2021 and the economies were getting back 
on track, the second wave hit India in March 2021. 
The Governments and the Industry began fast tracking 
the process of Vaccine development and various 
different types of Vaccines have been developed and 
immunization program has been rolled out by various 
countries. In India too the vaccination drive has gained 
momentum as the year 2021-22 rolls ahead. While 
the effect of second wave on the economy was not as 
severe as the first wave, the growth prospects of India for 
2021-22 have been pegged down to 9.5 % by the RBI. 
However, this is a welcome relief from the contraction 
of economy seen in 2020-21. The experts have warned 
about prospect of third wave in September-October 
2021 and the authorities have already geared up for the 
same. The speeding up the vaccination process is likely 
to reduce the effect of the pandemic and as more and 
more people are vaccinated, the COVID-19 is expected 
to take the form of endemic as per World Health 
Organisation. The prospects of industry for FY2021-22 
are dependent on how the pandemic unfolds further and 
effectiveness of the authorities in dealing with it.

10.4.6	     ,      
            
            
     ,    
             
            
     4%  

10.4.7	            
           
          
            
             
         13.5 %     
        11% 

10.5	 

10.5.1	 2020     -19       
               
      ,        
   -       
       2021      
         ,  2021  
            
             
          
             
   2021-22        
          , 2021-22 
         9.5%  
    ,  2020-21     
          - 
2021             
           
             
  -         , 
     -19      
   2021-22        
              
     
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10.5.2	 The recession brought in by the pandemic was much 
severe than that witnessed in 2009 due to financial 
meltdown. While initially the recession was forecast 
to be U shaped which meant longer time for the world 
economy to revive, the world economies have emerged 
out of the recession earlier and the recession turns out 
to be V shaped. This bodes well for the industry.

10.5.3	 In terms of impact on IREL’s operations, the resurgence 
of TiO2 pigment has spurred growth prospect for 
the Titanium feedstock segment. The ramping up 
of production by TiO2 pigment producers to meet 
the increasing downstream demand partially due to 
restocking is expected to firm up the market sentiments 
and take the prices northwards. However, other major 
consuming sector of Titanium feedstock viz. Titanium 
Sponge industry is yet to come out of the impact of the 
pandemic as its fortunes are dependent on the aviation 
sector which is badly affected due to the restrictions still 
in place especially on international travel.

10.5.4	 Zircon market which was down for better part of 
FY2020-21 is now looking up and the prices are likely 
to firm up further as the year 2021-22 advances. The 
Government of India’s measures such as Affordable 
Rental Housing Complexes (ARHCs) for Migrants 
Workers a sub-scheme under Pradhan Mantri AWAS 
Yojana - Urban (PMAY-U) launched in October 2020, 
the PMAY and other economic measures announced 
by the various government to support the real estate 
and construction sector could in turn provide a boost to 
the ceramics industry which is major end-use segment 
of Zircon. Refractories market of Zircon is also seeing 
buoyance as the refractory makers seek to fulfill the 
backlog of orders kept in abeyance by the end-user 
industry in 2020-21. The ambitious program of Nuclear 
Power Corporation of India for setting up of more 
Nuclear Power Plants will further drive growth in this 
market segment. To meet the increased demand from 
NFC, IREL has initiated collaborative process with NFC 
for using Zircon from OSCOM instead of MK Zircon 
whose production is constrained owing to limited mining 
lease.

10.5.5	 The steel industry in India is poised to register positive 
growth in 2021-22 after registering fall in 2020-21. This 
will help in demand for refractories moving upwards 
after a dismal 2020-21 and lead to demand uptick for 
Sillimanite. The prices of crude oil are moving up after 

10.5.2	    2009         
             (U) 
       ,     
        ,  
            
         

10.5.3	       , TiO
2
   

           
           
      TiO

2
       

             
     ,      
           
             
             
  

10.5.4	     2020-21       
,            2021-22  
            
       () 
  -  (-)    
2020      -,     
           
            
            
        2020-21  -
            
           
           
            , 
          
           
,         

10.5.5	    2020-21       2021-
22           2020-21 
            
            
  2020-21        ,  
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drastic drop in 2020-21 that saw index turn negative. 
Though this will boost sales of Garnet, the lack of 
availability of containers is likely to peg the momentum 
back as Garnet has limited domestic market and a large 
chunk of the production has to be exported.

10.5.6	 The market for magnetic rare earths viz. Neodymium, 
Praseodymium, Dysprosium and Terbium has been 
quite bullish of late in wake of demand for rare earth 
permanent magnets required for Electric Vehicle and 
clean and green industry sector. The prices of these 
products are continuing to move northwards. Even 
Samarium, used in niche SmCo magnets, is seeing 
price increase from earlier stable price scenario.

10.5.7	 However, how the automobile industry is able to meet 
the supply chain challenges especially the shortage 
of semiconductors will have reflection on associated 
products like Zircon, Sillimanite and Rare Earths. 
Other challenge IREL faces is in form of disposal of 
large tonnage of Lanthanum and Cerium which get 
generated while producing coveted magnetic rare 
earths like Neodymium and Praseodymium. Owing to 
huge supply and relatively limited demand the prices of 
these products are abysmally low and continue to move 
downwards.

10.5.8	 The uptick in almost all of the end of the value chain 
products coupled with industry friendly measures of 
Government of India like Make in India, Atmanirbhar 
Bharat, PLI scheme in various manufacturing sector 
with the list expanding over time is likely to have positive 
impact on IREL’s performance. On its part, IREL has 
selected industry for production of Nd-Fe-B magnet 
through an elaborate selection process spanning 
Expression of Interest and Request for Proposal stage. 
IREL shall provide the critical raw material – Nd-Pr oxide 
to this industry. This will enable setting up of value chain 
of Rare Earth Permanent Magnet which have gained 
critical importance for driving the Government’s plan of 
reducing the carbon footprint by moving to E-mobility by 
2030 and clean and green energy.

10.6	 Internal control system and their adequacy

10.6.1	 The Company has a well-established Internal Control 
System that is adequate and commensurate with the size 
and nature of its business comprising Internal Auditors, 
who conducts internal audit of various operational and 
financial matters on on-going basis. M/s Shinde Chavan 

          

 ,          

            

        

10.5.6	    , ,   

           

             

               

       SmCo      

              

 

10.5.7	,         

    ,          

,          

            

           

           

           

          

10.5.8	          , 

 ,    -   

      ,       

          

       ,   

,         --   

       ,     

           

    - -    

            

,  2030  -       

           

        

10.6	       

10.6.1	           

           

     ,       

           
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Gandhi and Company for Head Office, Mumbai, M/s J N 
Gupta and Co. for Chavara, M/s Ananthan & Sundaram 
for Manavalakurichi, M/s J N Gupta and Co. for Alwaye 
(RED) and M/s Tej Raj & Pal for OSCOM have been 
appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company for the 
year 2020-21.

10.6.2	 The recommendations and observations of the Internal 
Auditors are reviewed regularly by the Audit Committee 
constituted by the Board of Directors. The adequacy & 
operational effectiveness of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting has been reviewed by the Audit 
Committee. Audit Committee also met the Company’s 
Statutory Auditors to ascertain their views on financial 
statements, including the financial reporting system, 
compliance to accounting policies and procedures, 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control 
systems followed by the Company. The performance 
of the Company is regularly monitored by the Board of 
Directors.

10.7 Discussion on financial performance with respect to 
operational performance

10.7.1	 Overall performance

	 During the year, the Company recorded total revenue of 
` 1078.12 crore and profit before tax (PBT) of ` 415.11 
crore. Despite COVID-19 situation.

	 Company achieved 98% of revenue of previous year 
and surpassed the PBT of previous year.

10.7.2	 Revenue from operations

	 During the year, total revenue from operations was  
` 974.14 crore which is 6.39% lower than the previous 
year. Total sales comprise of 47.16% domestic and 
52.84% export.

10.7.3	 Profit after tax

	 Profit after tax of the Company during the year is  
` 315.69 crore after making adjustment of ` 99.42 crore 
towards income tax.

10.7.4	 Dividend

	 The Board of Directors has recommended a total 
dividend of ` 94.71 Crore for the year 2020-21. Out of 
which, Interim Dividend amounting ` 71.00 Crore has 
already been paid to the shareholders. Further, Board 
of Directors at their 370th meeting held on 13th July 2021 

,         ,   

      ,      

 ,  (  )        

,           2020 -21  

          

10.6.2	          

          

           

         

    ,     

 ,         

          

            

           

       

10.7           

10.7.1	 

	   ,    -19    ` 1078.12 

       415.11      

()  

	        98%      

  (  )    

10.7.2	  

	   ,     974.14     

     6.39%        47.16%   

   52 . 84 %   

10.7.3	   

	    . 99.42         

      ` 315.69   

10.7.4	

	     2020-21   94.71     
           
  ` 71.00          
 ,    13  2021   
 370     2020-21   23.71   
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 () 

71    2020-21

has recommended a Final Dividend of ` 23.71 Crore for 
the year 2020-21. The final dividend shall be paid after 
approval at Annual General Meeting of the Company.

11.0	 MOU

	 The Company has signed MoU for 2020-21 with 
Department of Atomic Energy (DAE), Government of 
India and MoU ratings for the previous 3 years are as 
follows:

Sl. 
No.

Financial Year MoU ratings

1 2020-21 Excellent (Provisional)
2 2019-20 Excellent (Provisional)
3 2018-19 Excellent

	 The Company’s MoU rating is “Excellent” (Provisional) 
during the current financial year 2020-21 which indicates 
the better performance of the Company.

           
            


11.0	 

	   2020-21      (),  
           3  
      :

. 
.

    

1 2020-21  ()
2 2019-20  ()
3 2018-19  

	    2020-21       “” 
()           
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“Annexure – II”
FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT  

ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN 
THE BOARD’S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL 

YEAR COMMENCING ON OR AFTER  
1ST DAY OF APRIL, 2020

1.	 Brief outline on CSR of the Company.

	 Vision: To be a corporate with CSR policies demonstrating 
its social responsibilities that is embedded in the core 
business and aligned for inclusive growth of the society.

	 Mission: To implement/schemes that uplifts and enhance 
the living condition of the community surrounding by way 
of initiatives in the areas of health, literacy, infrastructure 
developments, clean drinking water, environment 
protection, sustainability and other socially relevant 
matters.

“ - II”
1 , 2020        

           
       

   
1.	        

	 :          
          
           

	 : , ,    ,  , 
 ,        
             
            

2.	       : 

2.	  Composition of CSR Committee:

. .     /             
      

  

        
       


Sl.
No.

Name of Director Designation / Nature of Directorship Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee held 

during the year

Number of meetings of 
CSR attended during 

the year

1)
 .. 
Shri V.P. Yajurvedi

   
Chairman and Independent Director

3 2

2)
 ()  
..
Col (R) B.B. Pandian

   
Member and Independent Director

3 3

3)
   
Shri K.K. Mohanty

  ()
Member and Director (Marketing)

3 3

3.

           ,      
             
Provide the web link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects 
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company.

https://www.irel.co.in/csr

4.

 (   )  2014   8    (3)    
          ,    (  )
Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub rule 
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, if applicable 
(attach the report).

  
Not Applicable

5.  (   ) , 2014   8  - (3)            
         ,   :
Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for the set off for the financial year, if any:
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. 
.

         
   (` )

        
  ,    (` )

Sl. 
No.

Financial Year Amount available for set-off from 
preceding financial year (in `)

Amount required to be set-off from preceding 
financial year, if any (in `)

1 2018-19  / Nil  / Nil
2 2019-20  / Nil  / Nil
3 2020-21  / Nil  / Nil

TOTAL  / Nil  / Nil

6.  135(5)       
Average net profit of the company as per section 135 (5)

` 24,224.58  / lakh

7.()
7.(a)

 135(5)          
Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135 (5).

` 484.49  / lakh

7.()
7.(b)

            
Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial year

 / Nil

7.()
7.(c)

        ,   
Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any

  / Not Applicable

7.()
7.(d)

       (7 +7  -7)
Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c)

` 484.49  / lakh

8.()
8.(a)

        
CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year

      
   ( )

     ( ) / Amount Unspent (in `)
 135(6)     

    
 135(5)       VII    

        
Total Amount Spent 

for the Financial Year. 
(in `)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per section 135 (6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135 (5)

 4,22,15,000           
 Amount  Date of transfer Name of the Fund  Amount Date of transfer
73,00,000 28/04/2021

8.()                :
8.(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
. .      

 VII 
  
   

 

 
  
(/ 
)

    
 

  
  
 ( 

 )

   
    

  
(`  )

 135 (6)  
   
  

    
(  ))

  
  ( )

     
  

Sl.
No.

Name of the 
project

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
Schedule 
VII of the 

Act

Local 
area
(Yes/
No)

Location of the 
project

Project 
duration

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project

(in ` Lakh)

Amount 
spent in 

the current 
Financial 

year
(in ` Lakh)

Amount 
transferred to 
unspent CSR 

Account for the 
project as per 
Section 135 (6)  

(in ` Lakh)

Mode of 
implementation
Direct (Yes/No)

Mode of implementation 
Through Implementation 

Agency
     

 
State District Name CSR 

Registration 
Number

1.   
    
Create Arjipalli 
Panchayat as 
Adarsh Gram

(x)  / 
Yes

 / 
Odisha

 / 
Ganjam

3  /  

3 years
90.00 49.49 9.01  / Yes - -

 / TOTAL 90.00 49.49 9.01
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8.()                  :

8.(c) Details of CSR amount spent other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

. .       
 VII  
  
   

   
(/  ) 

      
     

(`  )

     
(/)

      
 

Sl.
No.

Name of the 
project

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
Schedule VII 

of the Act

Local area
(Yes/No)

Location of the project Amount spent 
for the project (` 

in lakh)

Mode of
implementation

Direct
(Yes/No)

Mode of implementation Through 
Implementation Agency

       
State District Name CSR Registration 

Number
1.  ,  

   
(i)

 , , 


Kerala,Odisha, 
Tamil Nadu

, , 
 

Kollam, Ganjam, 
Kanyakumari

130.57



- -Preventive health, 
Water supply and 
sanitation

Yes Yes

2.    
  

(ii)



47.15



- -Education 
Empowerment 
enhancing skills

Yes Yes

3.   
(iv)


19.93


- -Environment 

Sustainability
Yes Yes

4. , , 
  

(v)



6.31



- -Protection of 
culture, heritage, 
etc

Yes Yes

5.  
(vi) 2.00


- -

Armed forces Yes

6.   
(viii) 100.00


PM Cares Yes

7.   


(x)



66.70

 

- -Rural 
development 
project

Yes Yes

 / TOTAL 372.66

()	        : 
(d) 	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

()	       ,    :  
(e) 	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

()	          : (8 +8 +8 +8): ` 422.15 
(f) 	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year: (8b+8c+8d+8e): ` 422.15 lakh
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()	     ,   
(g)	 Excess amount for set off, if any

. 
.

  (`  ) 

SI. 
No.

Particular Amount (` in lakh)

(i)
 135(5)          
Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

484.49

(ii)
        
Total amount spent for the Financial Year

422.15

(iii)
        
Excess amount spent for the financial year [ (ii)-(i)]

 / Nil

(iv)
            ,   
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial years, if any

 / Nil

(v)
         [(iii)-(iv)]
Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years {(iii)-(iv)]

 / Nil

9.	 ()               :
9.	 (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

. 
.

  


 135 (6)   
   
   ( 

 )

   
     

(`  )

 135(6)    VII   
      ,  

  

    
     

 ( )

SL
No.

Preceding
Financial

Year.

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR 
Account under 
section 135 (6)

(` in lakh)

Amount spent 
in the reporting 
Financial year  

(` in lakh)

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

section 135(6), if any.

Amount remaining 
to be spent in 
succeeding 

financial years.
(in `)  

 
  

( )
   

Name 
of the 
Fund

Amount 
(in `)

Date of transfer.

1. 2018-19  / Nil 150.58 - - -  / Nil

2. 2019-20  / Nil 271.80 - - -  / Nil

3. 2020-21 73.00 422.15 - - - 53.33

 / TOTAL 73.00 844.53 - - - 53.33



57

IREL (India) Limited

71st Annual Report 2020-21

	 ()    ()                :
	 (b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
. 
.

 
   

       
  

   

 
  

 
  
 
  

(`  )

 
  

  
   

   
(`  ) 

   
   
    
  

(  )

  
/    



SI. 
No.

Project 
ID.

Name of the Project Financial Year 
in which the 
project was 

commenced.

Project 
duration

Total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 
project  

(` in lakh)

Amount 
spent 
on the 
project 
in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year  
(` in lakh)

Cumulative 
amount 
spent at 

the end of 
reporting 
Financial 

Year.
(` in lakh)

Status of 
the project 

Completed /
Ongoing

1. -     
  /

Create Arjipalli 
Panchayat as Adarsh 

Gram

2019-20 3 
3 yrs

90.00 49.49 80.99    / 
Ongoing

 / Total 90.00 49.49 80.99

10. 	 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish 
the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 
through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise 
details)

(a)	 Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

	 31.03.2021, 25.03.2021, 25.03.2021, 31.03.2021, 
30.12.2020, 30.12.2020, 30.01.2021, 16.12.2020, 
23.03.2021, 01.09.2020 & 10.06.2020

(b)	 Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of 
capital asset.

	 ` 9.95 lakh, ` 5.44 lakh, ` 9.19 lakh, ` 49.79 lakh, ` 4.00 
lakh, ` 2.40 lakh, ` 0.84 lakh, ` 2.80 lakh, ` 6.90 lakh,  
` 1.50 lakh & ` 22.50 lakh

(c)	 Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary 
under Whose name such capital asset is registered, 
their address etc.

	 St. Joseph LPS, St. Legory’s LPS and KV in Kollam 
District, Kerala, Village Committee and Gram 
Panchayat and Sarpanch of Sana Arjipalli panchayat, 
Odisha, Arjipalli Panchayat, Odisha, Correspondent, 
St. Ignatius Higher Secondary School, Tamil Nadu, 
The President, Periavilai Makkal Munnetra Sangam, 
Tamil Nadu, Executive Officer, MK Panchayat, Tamil 
Nadu, Executive Officer, MK Panchayat, Tamil Nadu, 
President, Pillayarcoil Oor, Tamil Nadu, Executive 
Officer, Manavalakurichi Panchayat, Tamil Nadu & 
Executive Engineer, PWD, Tamil Nadu

10.	         ,     
             
      (- )

()	   ()      

	 31.03.2021, 25.03.2021, 25.03.2021, 31.03.2021, 
30.12.2020, 30.12.2020, 30.01.2021, 16.12.2020, 
23.03.2021, 01.09.2020, & 10.06.2020

()	             
 

	 `  9.95 ,  ` 5.44 , `  9.19 , ` 49.79 ,  
` 4.00 , ` 2.40 , ` 0.84 , ` 2.80 ,   
6.90 , ` 1.50 ,  ` 22.50 

()	            
    ,   .

	   ,      ,  , 
,         , 
  ,  , , ,  
   , ,  ,  
  , ,  ,  , 
,  ,  , , , 
, ,  ,  

,    , , 
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(d)	 Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired 
(including complete address and location of the capital 
asset).

	 Smart class room, Community sanitary complex, fishnet 
repair centre, community hall, toilet block, facilitation 
centre, infrastructure for environment sustainability, 
access infrastructures, construction of culvert.

11.	 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to 
spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5).

	 Implementation of certain CSR Schemes such 
as preventive health care, sports, distribution of 
educational aids could not be implemented for a long 
time as permission for such activities were not accorded 
by district authorities. Further, procurement activities got 
delayed on account of disruptions in the supply chain 
due to COVID-19.

Sd/-

D. Singh
(Chairman and  
Managing Director).

Sd/-

V. P. Yajurvedi
(Chairman CSR 
Committee).

()	     (       

) ()    

	   ,   ,   , 

 ,  ,  ,   

  ,  ,   

11.	    135(5)         

     ,      

	   , ,      

           

          

      , - 19    

         

 /-

 
(   ).	

 /-

.. 
(  ).
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    / CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
To,
The Members,
IREL (INDIA) LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance by IREL (INDIA) LIMITED (hereinafter referred 
as “Company”) for the Financial year ended March 31, 2021 
as stipulated in the Guidelines of Corporate Governance for 
Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) issued by the 
Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Government of India.
We state that compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance is the responsibility of the management and our 
examination was limited to procedures and implementation 
thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring compliance with 
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor 
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the 
company.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to our examinations of the relevant records and 
the explanations given to us, we certify that the company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in the above-mentioned guidelines subject to the 
following observation:
1)	 There were no requisite number of Independent 

Directors on the Board of Directors of the Company 
during the year under review as required under the 
Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central 
Public Sector Enterprises 2010 issued by the 
Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises 
Department of Public Enterprises, Government of 
India; However as informed by the Management of 
the Company the directors in CPSEs are appointed 
by the Government and requisite communication in 
this regard has been made to the Government.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance 
as to future viability of the company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the company.
This certificate is issued solely for the purposes of complying 
with the Guidelines of Corporate Governance for Central 
Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) issued by the Department 
of Public Enterprises (DPE), Government of India and may not 
be suitable for any other purpose.

For Mehta & Mehta,
Company Secretaries

(ICSI Unique Code P1996MH007500)

 Sd/-
Aditi Patnaik

Partner
ACS No : 45308

Place: Mumbai	 UDIN: A045308C000980902
Date: September 21, 2021	 CP No. : 18186

 ,

 () 

 31 , 2021        () 
 (  “”    )     
      ,        
()      (),     
       

              
              
            
                
      

            
         ,      
             
       

1)	            
     ,       
 ,   ,      
        2010   
    ,        
  ,           
              
              
             
      

                
              
     

       (),     
    ()        
               
   

   
 

(   P1996MH007500)


 


 .  : 45308

 :  	 UDIN:A045308C000980902
:  21  2021	  . : 18186
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  ,    , 
     ,  
,    

Felicitation of Shri S C Mahapatra, 
Chief Secretary, Govt of Odisha by 
Shri D.Singh, CMD, IREL.

       
       
 ,     
  

CMD, IREL along with Senior Officials 
& Employees reading the Preamble 
to the Constitution of India on the 
Occasion of Constitution Day.

     ’  
2020-   ’  
      , 


CMD, IREL interacting during ‘PSE 
Summit 2020-Further Atmanirbhar 
Bharat’ through Video Conference.
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       
   2      
 ,    
     

CMD, IREL interacting during B2B 
Meet for Bilateral Trade Promotion 
between India & Oman through Video 
Conference. 

    

CSR initiatives at OSCOM Unit.

   ,   (  ) 
        
   , 

CMD, IREL presenting the Platinum 
Jubilee Memento to Shri A.R. Sule,  
Jt. Secy (I & M)
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         10   
  

PSE Excellence Award in the 10th Edition of PSE Conclave 
conducted by Indian Chamber of Commerce.

     “  : ”   
       

National award for excellence in PSU under the category 
“reskilling of employees” conducted by World CSR Congress.

        


CMD Visit to OSCOM Unit
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         


Bhoomi Pujan for Rare Earth Theme 
Park at Bhopal.

 ..  , ...  
        
       
   , 

CMD, IREL felicitating Shri R.L. 
Ramesh Ram, I.R.S. on his assuming 
charge as Chief Vigilance Officer of 
the company.

“      ”  
    .. ,   
()

Shri V.K. Verma, ex-Director 
(Marketing) delivering a lecture on 
“Reminiscences of my days with 
IREL”.



64

 () 

71    2020-21

  

Republic day Parade. 

     

Plant gate landscaping at OSCOM 
Unit.

 12.02.2021  19   
  2020     
    

IREL receiving the Safety Excellence 
Award during 19th Annual Greentech 
Safety Award 2020 on 12.02.2021.
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  
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR 
GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
OF IREL (INDIA) LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 
MARCH 2021

The preparation of financial statements of IREL (INDIA) 
LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance 
with the financial reporting framework prescribed under 
the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the 
management of the company. The statutory auditor/auditors 
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India 
under section 139 (5) of the Act is/are responsible for 
expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 
143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with 
the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their 
Audit Report dated 13 July 2021.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, 
have conducted a supplementary audit of the financial 
statements of IREL (INDIA) LIMITED for the year ended 
31 March 2021 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This 
supplementary audit has been carried out independently 
without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors 
and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and 
company personnel and a selective examination of some of 
the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has 
come to my knowledge which would give rise to any comment 
upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report under section 
143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(Sanjay Kumar Jha)
 Director General of Audit 

Environment & Scientific Departments

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 21-09-2021

 , 2013   143(6) ()   
 ()   31  2021   
          
   

 , 2013 ()       
  31  2021       () 
            
   139(5)     - 
   /     
     143       
        /    
143(10)          13  
2021            

,   -   ,    
143(6)()   31  2021       
()            
           
               
           
      

             
       143(6)()    
           

    
      

 (  )
    

   
 :   
 : 21.09.2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF IREL (INDIA) LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of IREL 
(India) Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow 
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 
standalone financial statement).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) specified under Section 
133 of the Act read with the companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its profit 
including other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the 
statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under Section 143(10) of the 
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the ICAI ‘s Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters: -

1.	 Note number 27 to the financial statements regarding 
the rate per kg. adopted for estimation of revenue 
in regard to compensation / processing charges for 
Nuclear Grade Ammonium Di-uranate (NGADU). The 
Company receives these charges from Government 

       
()  

    



  ()  (“”)    
    ,  31  2021   ,  
            ,  
              
     ,       
    (  "  " 
   )  

             
  ,      , 
2013 ("")         
     (  ) , 2015,  
    "   " (“Ind AS”)     
           , 
2015   133         31 
, 2021       ,   ,  
              
            

   

  (  )   143 (10)    
           
            
            
      ()     
  ,         , 
           
           
          
              , 
             

  

       :

1.	    - ()    / 
            
          .27  
        () 
              
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of India (GOI) for the NGADU processed by it. The 
rates for such processing are determined by the GOI 
taking into consideration various factors, including 
level of output, actual cost incurred etc. As mentioned 
in the note although the amount claimed is higher than 
the rate at which the revenue is estimated, the rate of 
` 13,557/- (which was approved for F.Y. 2010-11) has 
been consistently taken for initial estimation from F.Y. 
2010-11 to F.Y. 2020-21, since the approved rate is 
usually intimated by GOI after a lag of approximately 
three years. Upon receipt of such approval, the 
differential sum is recognized. Accordingly, GOI has 
approved in FY 2020-21 the rate of ` 16,919/- per kg 
for supplies effected in F.Y. 2016-17 from OSCOM unit 
and the differential impact of ` 125.27 Lakhs has been 
recognized as revenue in the current year.

2.	 As stated in Note No. 10.5 to the standalone financial 
statements the RED plant at Alwaye has undertaken 
manufacture of ND Pr Oxalate and Oxide (More than 
99% Purity) which has applications in electric cars, 
e-mobility and renewable energy. Finished Goods 
includes 318.69 t (Previous year 184.21 t) having value 
` 5018.66 Lakhs (Previous year 2831.25 Lakhs) of ND 
Pr Oxalate and Oxide. Management has explained that 
inventory of this rare earth product is built up for meeting 
the requirements of e-mobility plan of Government of 
India (GOI) and other strategic reasons. Since it has a 
long shelf life no part of the said inventory is considered 
impaired.

3.	 We draw attention to Note 47.4 to the standalone 
financial statements, which explains the uncertainties 
and management’s assessment of the financial impact, 
if any, due to the lockdown and other restrictions 
imposed by the Government and condition related to 
the COVID-19 pandemic situation, for which definitive 
assessment of the impact would highly depend upon 
circumstances as they evolve in the subsequent period.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period owing to 
events that occurred in the period of the Audit. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. Considering the circumstances under which audit 
has been conducted in the light of lockdown due to Covid-19 

            
  ,    ,    
         ,    
             
, ` 13,557/-   (   2010-11   
  )    2010-11    2010-11 
 2020-21        ,  
           , 
            
,         ,    
     2016-17      
  2020 -21  ` 16,919/-  ` 28806 /-  
                
` 125.27            

2.	            
(ND Pr Oxalate) (99%   )    
    , -    
           
 318.69  (  184.21 )  5018.66  
(  2831.25 )         
        ()  
-        
              
            

3.	        47.4    
  ,         
   -19        
,        , 
  ,    ,      
          
     

         

    

      ,     , 
             
             
            , 
      ,          
       ,  -19    
           , 
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pandemic, we have determined the matters described below 
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s response
Significant reliance on 
electronic and other 
evidence in offsite 
audit. In view of the 
lockdown pursuant 
to second wave of 
Covid-19 outbreak in 
India, our audit teams 
which had planned to 
conduct audit at the 
Company’s Plants had 
to conduct the major 
part of the audit from 
Head Office and online 
from remote location. 
As a result, we have 
relied completely on 
digital /electronic or 
other evidence as 
a part of our audit 
process.

Had we been 
physically present 
at the Company’s 
premises, we would 
have otherwise carried 
out the audit of various 
units through system 
output taken directly 
at site, and we would 
have verified the 
physical copies of 
critical documents.

When undertaking Phase I of the 
statutory audit, our audit teams 
had visited the OSCOM plant and 
carried out on site audit in normal 
course. No significant unexplained 
or irregular transaction had come 
to light in the course of this audit. 
Subsequent to the lockdown 
being effected; based on our 
earlier samples and experience, 
we have carried out the validation 
of the digital/ electronic inputs and 
data and evidence provided by 
the management by performing 
the following procedures:

a)	� Obtaining reports in regard 
to Physical Verification of 
inventory from the Internal 
Auditors and validating 
the same in the manner 
suggested by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of 
India.

b)	� Understanding the process 
implemented by the 
management to convert 
physical documents into 
digital/ electronic version.

c)	� Correlating various 
attributes of the electronic 
or other evidence obtained 
to ensure consistency and 
integrity.

d)	� Getting representations 
from the management 
wherever necessary.

Information other than that in the Standalone Financial 
Statements forming part of the Annual Report of the 
Company

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other 
information. The other information comprises the [information 

              
         

        
    
     
    -19 
      
   , 
   ,  
      
   ,   
     
     
  ,  
    
        
/   
      
       
  ,    
      
     
   ,  
     
   

    I  
  ,   
      
      
      
     
    
      
   ;    
     , 
    
      
  /   
      
 : 

)	�    
    
     
     
   
     
  

)	�    
  /        
     
   
  

)	�    
    
    
     
   
 

)	�      
   

            
      

            
 [    ,       
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included in the Annual Report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon]. The 
Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the 
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information identified above 
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there 
is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 
communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 
In the event of such situation arising, we shall draw attention 
of the said matter to those charged with governance and if not 
suitably rectified to the stakeholders.

Management Responsibility for the Standalone Financial 
Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company 
in accordance with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 
of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management 
and Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

      ]       
             

             
              

        ,      
              
              
           ,   
        

     ,          
    ,          
              
             
          

       

            
       134(5)       
 ,   ,  ,   ,  
   133         
             
              
             
           
       ;    
   ;         
 ;       ,  
 ,          
        ,      
              
     ,        ,  
  

      ,      
           ,  
            
              
               
 ,           
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The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors Responsibility for the audit of Standalone 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the standalone financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• 	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

• 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

• 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 

            
 

        


              
       ,      
  ,           
         ,    
             
             
        ,      
 ,            
            
 

         ,    
             
      :

• 	           
      ,       
 ,          
  ,          
             
          
          , 
   , ,  ,  
         

• 	          
          
     143(3)(i)  ,     
              
           
  

• 	           
         
 

• 	             
     ,      
 ,          
           ,  
            
  ,        
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in the standalone financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

• 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone 
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements 
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone 
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of 

           
  ,        ,   
           
           
,            
       

• 	            
           
,          
            
       

         ,  
     ,        
           
   (i)           
           
  (ii)         
         

    ,        
             
 ,          , 
       

             , 
           
 ,              
 ,     ,        
   

        ,      
            
            
               
            , 
   ,          
             
              
     

      

1.	      143  - (11)    
       (  ) 
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the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.	 In terms of section 143(5) of the act, we have given 
in “Annexure B” a statement on the direction issued 
under the aforesaid section by Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India.

3.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit;

	 b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as appears from our examination of those 
books;

	 c)	 The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss 
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash 
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in 
Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement 
with the books of account;

	 d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended;

	 e)	 The Company being a government Company, the 
provisions of section 164(2) and section 197 are 
not applicable in accordance with the Notification 
No. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015 issued 
by MCA. Accordingly, no reporting in regard to 
Clause 3(g) and 3 (j) of section 143 is required.;

	 f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
“Annexure C”.

	 g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rules 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

, 2016 ("")   ,     

3  4       " "   

2.	    143(5)   ,      

           

“-”    

3.	    143(3)  ,     :

	 )	            

 ,         

      

	 )	   ,         

     ,       

    

	 )	        ,    

     ,     

          

  

	 )	�   ,      

(  ) , 2015    

   133       

   ;

	 ) 	�       ,     

  05 , 2015   .  463 

()    164(2)   197   

   ,  143   3 ()  3 () 

        

 	 )	          

          

,    “-”  

	 ) 	    (  ) , 

2014   11       

     ,      

         :-
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		  i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position 
in its standalone financial statements - 
Refer Note 40 to the standalone financial 
statements;

		  ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses;

		  iii.	 There were no amount which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Pathak H. D. & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration no. 107783W/W100593)

Ashutosh Jethlia
Partner
Membership No.:136007

UDIN: 21136007AAAAJX6803
Place: Mumbai
Date: 13th July, 2021

		  i.	�         

         

 -      -40 ;

		  ii.	�        

   ,     

      ;

		  iii.	�         

        

      

 

(  . 107783W/W100593)

 



 . :136007

 (UDIN): 21136007AAAAJX6803

 : 

 : 13  2021
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“ANNEXURE A” TO INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IREL (INDIA) 

LIMITED
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report 
on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report 
of even date on accounts of IREL (India) Limited as at  
31st March, 2021)

As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 
issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143 (11) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and on the basis of the checks, as 
we considered appropriate, we report on the matters specified 
in paragraph 3 and 4 of the said order to the extent applicable 
to the Company, in this audit report.

i)	 In respect of its Property Plant and Equipment:

	 a.	 The Company is maintaining proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and 
equipment.

	 b.	 The property, plant and equipment of the 
Company located at all the units including Head 
Office have been physically verified by the 
management during the year as per a program 
of verification which, in our opinion, provides for 
physical verification of all property, plant and 
equipment at reasonable intervals. Discrepancies 
noticed on such verifications were not material 
and have been properly dealt with in the books 
of accounts. In our opinion, the frequency of the 
physical verification is reasonable.

	 c.	 As explained and informed to us by the 
management of the Company, the title deeds 
(including revenue records) of the immovable 
properties as disclosed in Note No. 2 – “Property, 
Plant and Equipment” to the Ind AS financial 
statements are held in the name of the Company 
except in the following case: 

Sr. 
No.

Nature of 
Immovable 
Property

Location Gross 
Block  

(` in Lakhs)

Net Block 
(` in lakhs)

1 Building 
(Freehold)

HO 53. 43 21.07

2 Lands 
(Leasehold)

OSCOM 61.11 0.00001

3 Lands 
(Freehold)

RED –
Chavara

0.27 0.27

4 Land 
(Freehold)

OSCOM 7.68 7.68

 ()    
       

     - 
(31 , 2021   ()      
     “      
”     1  )

 , 2013   143 (11)      
  (  ) , 2016     
    ,     ,      
3  4             
,   

i)	         :

	 .	      ,    
          
 

	 .	          , 
          
          
 ,    ,  ,    
          
          
           , 
     

	 .	            
 ,      (  
)      (Ind AS)   
    2      - “, 
  ”       
     : -

. 
.

   
 

   
(`  )

  
(`  )

1  
()

 53. 43 21.07

2  ( )  61.11 0.00001
3  ()   

-  
0.27 0.27

4  ()  7.68 7.68
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ii)	 The inventory has been physically verified at reasonable 
intervals by the management. No material discrepancies 
were noticed on physical verification between the 
physical stocks and the book records.

iii)	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured or 
unsecured to companies, firm or other parties covered 
in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. 
Consequently, the requirement of Clause (iii) (a) and 
Clause (iii) (b) of paragraph 3 of the Order not applicable 
to the Company.

iv)	 Company has not directly or indirectly advanced loan 
to the persons or given guarantees or securities in 
connection with the loan taken by persons covered 
under Section 185 of the Act. Company has complied 
with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, in respect 
of loans, investments, guarantee or security given.

v)	 We have been informed that the Company has not 
accepted any deposits from public and accordingly 
the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Act, and Rules 
framed there under and any directive issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India are not applicable.

vi)	 We have broadly reviewed the accounts and records 
maintained by the Company pursuant to rules made 
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost 
records under Section 148 (1) of the Act, in respect of 
Company’s products to which the said rules are made 
applicable and are of the opinion that, prima facie the 
prescribed accounts and records have been made and 
maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed 
examination of records with a view to determine whether 
they are accurate.

vii)	 In respect of Statutory dues:

	 a.	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and according to the records of 
the Company examined by us, in our opinion, 
the Company is regular in depositing with the 
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory 
dues including Provident Fund, Employees State 
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, 
Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value 
Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax and any other 
statutory dues, wherever applicable. According 
to the information and explanations given to us, 
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 
2021 for a period of more than 6 months from the 
date they became payable.

ii)	            

           

       

iii)	      189       

 ,          

     ,    3   (iii) () 

  (iii) ()        

iv)	      185       

             

             , 

,          186  

    

v)	               

       73  76   

            

     

vi)	        ,      

  ,    148(1)     

            

            

    ,        

  ,          

         

vii)	      :

	 .	           

       ,   ,  

  ,       

          

,   , ,  ,  , 

 ,  ,  ,   ,  

          

        ,  

         31 , 

2021       6     

     
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	 b.	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, 
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, Goods and Service Tax, 
cess which have not been deposited on account 
of any dispute, except those specified below: -

..
Sr. No.

   
Name of Statue

   
Nature of Dues

  `  
Amount in  

` Lakhs

   
  

Assessment Year 
to Which the 

amount relates

    
Forum where dispute 

is Pending

   , 
2003
Kerala Value 
Added Tax, 2003

   - 
 
RED – Aluva

 
Sales Tax

28.13 2011-12  , 
Dy. Commissioner 
Appeals, Ernakulam

   , 
2003
Kerala Value 
Added Tax, 2003

   - 
 
RED – Aluva

 
Sales Tax

3.07 2012-13  , 

Appellate Tribunal, 
Ernakulam

   , 
2003
Kerala Value 
Added Tax, 2003

   - 

RED – Aluva

 
Sales Tax

3.86 2016-17   
KVAT Appellate Tribunal

   
   
, 1952
The Employees 
Provident Fund 
and Miscellaneous 
Provisions Act, 
1952

 
Chavara

    
    
Damages 
for Delayed 
remittance of 
Provident Fund

1.11 1997-98 / to
2005-06

 , , 
High Court, Trivandrum, 
Kerala

   
, 1944
Central Excise Act, 
1944


Chavara

   
    
- 
Excise Duty & 
Sales Tax on 
Minerals – Penalty

986 1996-97 / to  
1998-99

,    
   , 

Custom, Excise and 
Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal, Bangalore

 , 1994
The Finance Act, 
1994


Chavara

    
   
Service Tax on 
GTA including 
Interest & Penalty

58.83 2005-06 / to  
2009-10

 (),   
,     
, 
Commissioner (A), 
Central Excise, Custom 
and Service Tax, Kochi

	 .	            
    , ,  ,  , 
 ,  ,   ,    
            
     ,      
: -
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..
Sr. No.

   
Name of Statue

   
Nature of Dues

  `  
Amount in  

` Lakhs

   
  

Assessment Year 
to Which the 

amount relates

    
Forum where dispute 

is Pending

    
, 2004
Orissa Value 
Added Tax Act, 
2004

 
OSCOM

   
State Sales Tax

24.95 1989-90 /  to  
2001-02

  
Various Appellate 
Authorities

   
, 1956
Central Sales Tax 
Act, 1956


OSCOM

   
Central Sales Tax

20.40 1980-81 / to  
1998-99

  
Various Appellate 
Authorities

   
, 1999
Orissa Entry Tax 
Act, 1999


OSCOM

     
  
Disallowance of 
Set off of Entry Tax

226.68 2007-08  / to  
2013-14  / and 

2017-18

  ()
Addl. Commissioner (A)

  , 
1961
Income Tax Act, 
1961

  
HO

 
Income Tax

86.06   /  
AY 2010-11

, 
ITAT, Mumbai

  , 
1961
Income Tax Act, 
1961

 
HO

 
Income Tax

109.49   /  
AY 2013-14

, 
ITAT, Mumbai

  , 
1961 
Income Tax Act, 
1961

 
HO

 
Income Tax

115.77   / 
AY 2014-15

, 
ITAT, Mumbai

             
     

viii)	              
        3   (viii)  
    

ix)	           
              
 3   (ix)      

x)	        ,      

   /     

          

Amounts mentioned above are the net amount outstanding 
after adjusting the sum paid under protest.

viii)	 The Company has not raised loans from Financial 
Institutions or Banks or Government or by issue of 
debentures hence Clause (viii) of paragraph 3 of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

ix)	 The Company has not raised money by way of Initial 
Public offer or Further Public offer or term Loan and 
hence Clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

x)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the 
Company by its officer/s or employee/s, has come to 
our notice or reported during the year.
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xi)	 The Company being a Government Company, 
provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable 
to it and hence Clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company.

xii)	 In our opinion Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause (xii) of paragraph 3 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, all transactions with related 
parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 
of the Act and their details have been disclosed in the 
Financial Statements, as required by the applicable 
accounting standards.

xiv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not made 
any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or of fully or partly convertible debentures during 
the year and hence clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xv)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transaction with the directors or persons connected 
with him and covered under Section 192 of the Act. 
Hence, clause (xv) of the paragraph 3 of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

xvi)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company is not required to 
be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Pathak H. D. & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration no. 107783W/W100593)

Ashutosh Jethlia
Partner
Membership No.:136007

UDIN: 21136007AAAAJX6803
Place: Mumbai
Date: 13th July, 2021

xi)	       ,    197  

            3   

(xi)      

xii)	          ,    

3   (xii)        

xiii)	            , 

         177  188 

             

,        

xiv)	            , 

              

           

     3   (xiv)     



xv)	        ,     

      -      

   192         

  3   (xv)      

xvi)	            , 

     , 1934   45- 

        ,    

   3 (xvi)   

      
 
(  . 107783W/W100593)

 

 . :136007

 (UDIN): 21136007AAAAJX6803
 : 
 : 13  2021
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“ANNEXURE B” TO INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR’S REPORT UNDER SECTION 

143(5) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN 
RESPECT OF IREL (INDIA) LIMITED ON 

THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 
MARCH 2021

1.	 Whether the Company has system in place to process 
all the accounting transactions through IT system? 
If yes, the implications of processing of accounting 
transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the 
accounts along with the financial implications, if any, 
may be stated.

	 Yes. The Company has Financial Accounting System 
(FAS) - Oracle Based Software in place to process all 
the accounting transactions. Other than FAS; some of 
the data such as inventory and payroll including Salary 
Processing is handled on other independent software 
for which a comprehensive system audit has not been 
undertaken recently. Certain other data is maintained 
by the company in MS Excel which is also used for 
consolidation of accounts. The use of excel sheets 
(which are not always password protected) for inventory 
valuation, consolidation may however lead to potential 
errors or alterations. Hence, we have suggested to the 
management of the Company for the use of password 
protected MS Excel sheets for inventory valuation, 
consolidation etc. which may help them reduce potential 
errors or alterations which may arise due to use of excel 
file which are not password protected.

	 We are informed that management has already taken 
steps for development and implementation of a new 
integrated software and a software development 
contract has been awarded. In the interim, we have 
carried out appropriate test checks to verify that the 
data so processed/ maintained is properly incorporated 
in the books of accounts. The sample checked during 
the course of our audit did not reveal any material errors 
or discrepancies having financial implication.

	 Impact on financial statement: NIL

2.	 Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or 
cases of waiver/ write off of debts /loans/ interest etc. 
made by a lender to the Company due to the Company’s 
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact 
may be stated. Whether such cases are properly 
accounted for?

	 Impact on financial Statement: NIL

31  2021        
 ()      
, 2013   143(5)    

      “ ”
1.	            

       ?  ,     
         - 
    ,   ,   

	        () -  
          
     ;       
            
             
     (MS Excel)      
            
    ,      ( 
      )      
     ,       
,          
       ,      
         ,     
      ,      

	             
            
         ,  
             
/           
             
           

	    : 

2.	              
        //   
/      ?  ,      
             
 ?

	       : 
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3.	 Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/ receivable 
for specific schemes from Central/ State Government or 
its agencies were properly accounted for/utilized as per 
its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

	 Yes. The Funds received by the Company for specific 
schemes from central/state agencies were properly 
accounted in the books of accounts and utilisation of 
the same is in accordance with the broad terms and 
conditions mentioned in the communication of the 
scheme, project or agreement.

	 Impact on financial Statement: NIL

For Pathak H. D. & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration no. 107783W/W100593)

Ashutosh Jethlia
Partner
Membership No.:136007

UDIN: 21136007AAAAJX6803
Place: Mumbai
Date: 13th July, 2021

3.	  /         
 /    (/ )  
             
/    ?      

	    /        
             
  ,        
      

	     : 

      
 
(  . 107783W/W100593)

 

 . :136007

 (UDIN): 21136007AAAAJX6803
 : 
 : 13  2021
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ANNEXURE “C” TO THE INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IREL (INDIA) 

LIMITED
(Referred to in Paragraph 8. 3(f) of the section ‘Report on 
other legal & regulatory requirements’ of our Report of 
even date on accounts of IREL (India) Limited as at 31st 
March 2021.)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Control over financial 
reporting of IREL (India) Limited (“the Company”) as of 
March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the year then ended.

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of IREL (India) Limited (“the Company”) as of 
March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. In 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanation given to us, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 
2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the respective companies considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

Management Responsibility for the Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note’) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013.

 ()    
        

    “”
 (31  2021   ()      
     ’      
’    8. 3 ()  )

 , 2013 (“”)   143  - 3 
  (i)          

 31 , 2021   ()  (“”)  
             
          



 31 , 2021   ()  (“”)  
       -   
              
             
     ,       , 
            
      31 , 2021,    
              
           
            
          
  

       

           
     ()     
  (’ ’)        
            
           
            
  ,         
  ,    ,     
           
,  , 2013       
  ,         
            
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the ‘Guidance Note’ 
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to 
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls. The Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements.

   

            
        

    ’ ’      
  ,          
, 2013   143(10)      ,   
             
            
             
             
          

           
            
            
           
    ,        
  ,          
          
            , 
           
 ,        

            ,   
            
          

       

            
            
            
             
             
 (1)      ,    ,   
            ; (2) 
             
             
      ,        
            ;  
(3)      , ,    
              
         
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Pathak H. D. & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration no. 107783W/W100593)

Ashutosh Jethlia
Partner
Membership No.:136007
UDIN: 21136007AAAAJX6803

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13th July, 2021 

        

         
 ,          
  ,         
            ,  
             
            
          ,    
         

      
 
(  . 107783W/W100593)

 

 . :136007
 (UDIN): 21136007AAAAJX6803

 : 
 : 13  2021
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 () 

71    2020-21

31  2021     	 (`  )

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2021	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars   .
Note No

31  2021  
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

I.  / ASSETS
1  -  / Non-current assets

,    / Property, Plant and Equipment 2  25,194.11  25,094.21 

  / Intangible assets 3  754.95  780.46 

   / Right-To-Use 3A  24.66  35.32 

  / Capital Advance  -  - 

    / Capital work-in-progress 4  6,687.70  3,916.43 

  / Financial Assets
	 -   / Non-current Investments 5  72.82  14.17 

	   / Bank Balances 5A  5,855.39  3,995.27 

	      
	 Other long term Loans & Advances 

6  3,111.04  2,984.53 

	      
	 Other Non Current Financial Assets

6A  2,092.08  483.27 

   () / 
Deferred tax assets (net)

7  6,099.82  4,646.75 

-   / Non-current tax assets 8  587.19  2,561.71 

  / Capital Advance 9A  331.12  1,135.27 

 -  / Other non-current assets 9B  164.96  188.28 
 50,975.85  45,835.68 

2   / Current assets
 / Inventories 10  21,076.71  15,094.10 

  / Financial Assets
	  / Investment 11  8,385.13  5,693.72 

	   / Trade receivables 12  2,075.53  5,650.15 

	     / Cash and cash equivalents 13  5,774.92  4,057.35 

	    / Other bank balances 14  49,103.59  47,851.45 

	  / Loans 15  11,645.47  10,420.88 

	     
	 Other current financial assets

16  9,685.16  2,295.76 

   / Other current assets 17  11,630.65  8,855.35 

    
Asset Pending for Disposal

17A  2.75  6.93 

 119,379.91  99,925.68 
  / TOTAL ASSETS  170,355.76  145,761.36 

II.    / EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
.  / A. Equity

   / Equity share capital 18  17,273.00  8,636.50 

  / Other equity 19  99,442.77  87,064.55 
 116,715.77  95,701.05 
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 / Particulars   .
Note No

31  2021  
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

.  / B. LIABILITIES
1 -  / Non-current liabilities

  / Financial Liabilities
	   / Borrowings  -  - 
	   / Trades Payable  -  - 
	 ()	      
	 (a)	 Total Outstanding duest to MSEs

 -  - 

	 ()	       
	 (b)	 Total Outstanding dues other than MSEs

 -  - 

	  -  
	 Other non-current financial liabilities

20  51.83  40.51 

-  / Non-current provisions 21  15,933.69  11,994.01 
 -  / Other non-current liabilities 22  -  5,000.00 

 15,985.51  17,034.52 
2   / Current liabilities

  / Financial Liabilities
	   / Trade payables 23  4,784.85  4,171.45 
	 ()	      
	 (a)	 Total Outstanding dues to MSEs

 1,024.32  1,751.34 

	 ()	       
	 (b)	 Total Outstanding dues other than MSEs

 3,760.53  2,420.11 

	    / Other financial liabilities 24  12,045.30  12,351.89 
	 ()	      
	 (a) 	 Total Outstanding dues to MSEs

 207.31  360.57 

	 ()	       
	 (b) 	 Total Outstanding dues other than MSEs

 11,837.99  11,991.32 

   / Other current liabilities 25  7,721.80  6,797.29 
  / Current provisions 26  13,102.52  9,705.16 

 37,654.47  33,025.79 
   
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

 170,355.76  145,761.36 

   / Significant accounting policies 1
    / Notes on financial statements 2-48

       
  ..    
  
   : 
107783W/W100395

      
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report of even date attached
M/s Pathak H.D & Associates LLP
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71    2020-21

31  2021             	 (`  )

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021	
(` in lakh)

 / Particulars   .
Note No

31  2021   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2021 

 31  2020   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

I.    / Revenue From Operations 27  97,413.17  104,063.39 

II.   / Other Income 28  10,399.15  5,459.88 

III.   (I + II) / Total Income (I + II)  107,812.32  109,523.27 

IV.  : / EXPENSES:

      / Cost of materials consumed 29  10,763.35  9,387.99 

     / Purchase of stock in trade 29A  2,849.10  1,922.04 

 ,          

Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-
Trade and work-in-progress

30  (6,115.92)  1,234.64 

   / Employee benefits expense 31  27,104.76  25,549.94 

   / Finance costs 32  45.23  4.78 

    
Depreciation and amortization expense

2  3,968.24  4,145.86 

  / Other expenses 33  27,686.78  26,983.61 

  (IV) / Total Expenses (IV)  66,301.54  69,228.86 

V.       /() (III-IV)
Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)

 41,510.78  40,294.41 

VI.   / Exceptional Items  -  - 

VII.     /() (V-VI) 
Profit / (loss) before tax (V-VI)

 41,510.78  40,294.41 

VIII.   : / Tax Expense: 34

(i) 	   / Current Tax  10,991.30  11,617.62 

(ii) 	   / Deferred Tax  (1,049.36)  (499.12)

 9,941.94  11,118.50 
IX.      /() (VII-VIII) 

Net profit / (loss) After Tax (VII-VIII)
 31,568.85  29,175.91 

X.    / Other Comprehensive Income  (1,200.37)  (810.13)

.
A.

(i)	�  ()       :    


(i) 	 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

31  (1,604.08)  (1,082.60)

(ii)	�             : 
   

(ii) 	 Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss

34  403.71  272.47 
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 / Particulars   .
Note No

31  2021   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2021 

 31  2020   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

.
B.

(i)	        :   
(i) 	 Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii)	�             : 
  

(ii) 	 Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified 
to profit or loss

XI.       (IX+X)(   ()  
       
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X)
(Comprising Profit/ (Loss) and Other Comprehensive 
Income for the period)

 30,368.47  28,365.78 

XII.      : 
Earnings per equity share:

42

     (`  )
Basic & Diluted (in `)

 2,924.23  2,702.57 

    ( .)
Face Value per Share (in `)

 1,000.00  1,000.00 

  
Significant accounting policies 

1

   
Notes on financial statements

2-48

       
  ..    
  
   : 
107783W/W100395

      
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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M/s Pathak H.D & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:
107783W/W100395
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 () 

71    2020-21

31 , 2021          	 (`  )

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars  31  2021   
    

For the year ended  
31st March 2021 

 31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020

.     
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

           
Net Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss

 41,510.78  40,294.39 

   /    :
Adjustment for Non Cash Income/Expenses :
    / Rent and other expenses  -  - 

      
Interest Income on unwinding of SD

 -  (79.32)

     / Interest income on LC Sales  75.39  - 

        : 
Reclassification of actuarial losses to Other comprehensive 
income

 (1,604.08)  (1,082.61)

    
Depreciation and amortization expense

 3,968.24  4,145.86 

   / Lease Payment  2.73  14.21 

,       
Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment

 7.81  0.50 

    / Loss on Non Moving Stores  29.10  93.06 

  /     
Write-off of Stores Current Assets/ Advances

 -  - 

      
Provision for Pay Revision of Executives

 -  - 

-     
Amortization of pre-paid staff loan

 36.64  38.41 

      
Provision for PRP for executives

 1,076.01  1,861.46 

     
Provision for Employees Benefit Medicals

 4,005.50  622.98 

    
Provision for Assets Retirement Obligation

 346.84  162.65 

     ()
Gratuity (Differentials) for retired employees

 -  301.93 

   / Gratuity Fund Gap  (1,153.13)  (712.84)

      
Salary provision for pay revision of workmen

 2,048.86  1,884.77 

,     
Provision for debts, assets and advances

 162.47  - 

    
Excess Provision no longer required 

 (570.31)  (251.56)
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 / Particulars  31  2021   
    

For the year ended  
31st March 2021 

 31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020

         
Provision For Bad and Doubtful debts/S. Credit balance 
written back

 (5,000.00)  - 

         
Interest Income on Deposit with banks and other Institutions

 (3,046.11)  (1,226.01)

    
Dividend Income from Mutual Fund

 (407.34)  (376.45)

,       
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

 (9.77)  (31.15)  (5.17)  5,391.88 

      
Operating profit before working capital changes

 41,479.63  45,686.27 

   :
Changes in working capital:
 - / Inventories  (6,011.73)  917.74 

    / Trade and other receivables  (19.30)  (4,879.85)

    
Trade payables and other liabilities

 2,660.04  2,837.15 

      
Operating profit after working capital changes

 38,108.64  44,561.32 

    ( )
Direct taxes paid (net of refund)

 (9,016.78)  (11,867.45)

    
Net Cash From Operating Activities

 29,091.86  32,693.87 

.
B.

    
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
,     
Sale of property, plant and equipment

 16.32  7.34 

  ,      / ()
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including CWIP

 (6,028.66)  (5,338.38)

   
Investment in Short Term Deposits

 (62,105.04)  (71,257.12)

    / () 
Withdrwal/(Investment) in Short Term Deposits

 51,021.31  60,747.29 

    (LCP)
Investment in Mutual Fund (LCP)

 (57,480.00)  (70,504.61)

    (LCP)
Redemption in Mutual Fund (LCP)

 55,195.94  67,477.00 

    / Investment in Subsidary  (58.65)  - 

  / Interest Received  1,417.48  2,291.42 

    
Net Cash From Investing Activities

 (18,021.29)  (16,577.05)
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 / Particulars  31  2021   
    

For the year ended  
31st March 2021 

 31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020

.
C.

    
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
    / Dividend paid  (9,353.00)  (10,500.00)

      
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid

 -  (2,158.31)

  / Capital Advances  -  (905.28)

      / Lease payment out of principal  -  (9.12)

     / Lease Payment out of Interest  -  (5.09)

     / Interest Income on LC Sales  -  - 

    
Net Cash from Financing Activities

 (9,353.00)  (13,577.79)

       /( ) (A+B+C)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(A+B+C)

 1,717.57  2,539.03 

      
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

 4,057.35  1,518.32 

      
Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

 5,774.92  4,057.35 

     :
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
          
Balances with banks in Current accounts and other short 
term deposits

 5,774.32  4,055.96 

   / Cash on hand  0.60  1.39 

       
  ..    
  
   : 
107783W/W100395

      
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report of even date attached
M/s Pathak H.D & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:
107783W/W100395

 
 

. 
 ()

 
   

Rupender Dhiman
Company Secretary

A. Roy Chowdhury
Director (F)

D Singh
Chairman & Managing Director

   
 
 : 136007
Shri Ashutosh Jethlia
Partner
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 / Mumbai  / Mumbai
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.	    
A. 	 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

1.	 31 , 2021            	 (`  )

1.	� STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 	

(` in lakh)

1  2020       
    

  

 2020   
    

2020-21   
    

 

31  2021  

Balance at April 1, 2020 Changes in Equity 
Shares Capital 

due to prior 
period errors

Restated Balance 
at April 2020

Changes in Equity 
Shares Capital 
during 2020-21

Balance at 31st 
March 2021

8636.50 0.00  8,636.50 8636.50  17,273.00 

2.	 31  2020            
2.	 STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(` in lakh)

1  2019       
    

   

 2019   
    

 2019-20   
    

 

31  2020   

Balance at April 1, 2019 Changes in Equity 
Shares Capital 

due to prior 
period errors

Restated Balance 
at April 2019

Changes in Equity 
Shares Capital 
during 2019-20

Balance at 31st 
March 2020

8636.50 0.00  8,636.50 0.00  8,636.50 
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Note-1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

 1. 1 	 (i) 	 Basis of Accounting:

		  The financial statements are prepared under 
historical cost convention except for certain 
financial assets and liabilities which are measured 
at fair value in accordance with the generally 
accepted accounting principles in India on an 
accrual basis and comply with provisions of the 
Companies Act 2013 read with Ind AS notified 
under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and other statutory 
guidelines as applicable.

	 (ii)	 Use of Estimates:

		  The presentation of financial statements requires 
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect 
the reported amount of assets and liabilities on 
the date of financial statements and the reported 
amount of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Differences between the actual 
results and estimates are recognized in the period 
in which the results are known /materialized.

	 (iii)	 Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements:

		  The preparation of financial statements requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions in the application of accounting 
policies that affect reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates. Continuous 
evolution is done on the estimation and judgments 
based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized prospectively.

		  Information about critical judgments in applying 
accounting policies, as well as estimates and 
assumptions that have the most significant effect 
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year, are included in the 
following notes:

		  a)	 Measurement of defined benefit obligations-
Note 41

		  b)	 Measurement and likelihood of occurrence 
of contingencies and provisions-Note 40 & 
45

		  c)	 Recognition of deferred tax assets-Note 34

		  d)	 Fair value measurement & estimates- Note 
35

 -1:   

1.1	 (i)    :

		            
,          
           
      (  ) 
, 2015   , 2013   133 
   -    
     , 2013    
         
()         

	 (ii)	   :

		            
          
          
          
         
           
  /   

	 (iii)	     :

		       , ,   
           
    ,      
         
          
          
  ,        
        
    

		             
 ,         
         
           
,      :

		  ()	    -  41

		  ()	�        
  -  40  45

		  ()	�     -  34

		  ()	�      -  35
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1.2 	 Property, Plant and Equipment:

 	 a) 	 (i) 	 All items of property, plant and equipment 
(PPE) are stated at their historical cost 
net of recoverable taxes less accumulated 
depreciation / amortization and impairment 
loss, if any. The cost of tangible assets 
comprises of the acquisition cost and any 
attributable cost of bringing the assets to its 
working condition for its intended use.

			   Subsequent expenditure incurred on 
assets put to use is capitalized only when 
it increases the future benefits from such 
assets beyond its previously assessed 
standard of performance e.g. an extension 
in the asset’s useful life, an increase in its 
capacity, or a substantial improvement in 
the quality of the output or a reduction in 
previously assessed operating costs.

			   Asset acquired by the company which are 
held and used on behalf of Govt. of India 
(GOI) are valued after adjustment by the 
amount of subsidy/reimbursement received 
from GOI. However, a minimum value of 
` 1/- is assigned to all such assets for the 
purpose of control/tracking.

		  (ii) 	 The cost of self-constructed tangible assets 
comprises of the costs directly relating 
to the specific assets and those that are 
attributable to the construction activity in 
general and can be allocated to the specific 
asset.

	 b)	 In respect of assets discarded/scrapped, the net 
book value or the estimated realizable value as 
assessed by the Salvage Committee, whichever 
is lower is retained in the books. At the time of 
disposal of the discarded/scrapped assets, the 
loss/gain with reference to the retained value is 
adjusted in the year of disposal. However, if any 
of these assets is not disposed off within a period 
of three years from the date on which the same is 
discarded / scrapped, the value retained is fully 
written off and charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss on expiry of three years.

	 c)	 Expenditure incurred on assets not owned 
by the Company is charged off to revenue in 
the accounting period of incurrence of such 
expenditure.

1.2	 ,    :

	 )	 (i)	� ,    ()    
     /   
,   ,     
          
        
          

			�             
           
         
          
  ,       
        
    

			�          
()        
       /  
        , 
/         
  ` 1/-    

		  (ii)	�        
        
        
          
 

	 ()	�        /     
           
    ,    ,  
       /      
         /   
        ,   
      /    
             
             
     :       
      

	 ()	�           
            
     
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	 d)	 Land held for mining includes cost of land, 
compensation for trees & buildings thereon and 
payment towards shifting charges, solatium, 
registration charges, stamp duty, etc. less 
realization, if any.

	 e)	 The estimated cost of dismantling and 
rehabilitation of the assets are capitalized for 
determining the value of asset.

1.3 	 Intangible Assets:

	 Intangible fixed assets are stated at their historical cost 
net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortization 
and impairment loss, if any. The cost of intangible assets 
comprises of the acquisition cost and any attributable 
cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its 
intended use.

	 Expenses including stamp duty, registration fees paid 
to the local Government(s) incurred for the acquisition 
of mining lease rights are recognized as one type of 
intangible asset.

1.4 	 Depreciation/ Amortization:

	 a)	 Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 
is provided for on straight line basis on the basis 
of the useful life of the assets as specified under 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and in the 
manner as specified in Schedule II, except for the 
following on the basis of technical evaluation:

SL 
NO

Particulars 
of Asset

Useful 
life (in 
Years)

Technical 
justification

1 Slurry Pumps 5 Life is technically 
assessed 
considering the 
nature of operation 
and working 
environment.

2 Air 
conditioners

8 Life is technically 
assessed considering 
the corrosive working 
environment.

3 Fire 
extinguishers

6 Life is technically 
assessed considering 
the corrosive working 
environment and 
replacement norms

4 Mobile 
Phones

2 Life is technically 
assessed considering 
the frequent 
technological 
changes.

	 ()	         ,    
            
,  ,       
  ,   ,     

	 (.)	           
          


1.3	   :

	          / 
   ,   ,     
            
           
     

	   ()     ,  
            
            

1.4	  /  :

	 ) 	 ,         
 2013   II    
        II  
     ,     
    :

. 
. 

  


 
 
( )

 

1   5     
    
    
    
 

2  


8    
     
   
   

3  6 :   
   
     
   
   

4  


2    
      
    
  



100

 () 

71    2020-21

 		  The depreciation is continued to be charged till 
the net block becomes Nil except retaining Re. 1/- 
as nominal value.

	 b)	 Cost of construction of solid waste trench together 
with the cost of the land thereof is depreciated in 
proportion of the quantity filled to the total capacity 
of the trench.

		  If the trenches are put to use before completion 
of construction, the value of work completed 
shall be continued to be shown as Capital  
work-in-progress; necessary provision shall be 
made towards expenditure for proportionate value 
of trench put to use.

		  The cost of sealing of trench shall be depreciated 
in the year of expenditure.

	 c)	 In respect of assets added during the year except 
assets mentioned under (e) below, depreciation is 
charged pro-rata from the date of addition.

	 d)	 In respect of assets discarded/demolished/
destroyed during the year, depreciation is charged 
pro-rata up to the date of such discard/demolition/
destruction.

	 e)	 Assets costing ` 5,000/- or less individually are 
depreciated at 100% retaining Re. 1/- as nominal 
value in the year of addition except in cases 
where the aggregate actual cost of individual 
items of plant and machinery costing ` 5000/- or 
less constitutes more than 10% of the total actual 
cost of plant and machinery.

	 f) 	 In respect of fixed assets whose historic cost has 
undergone a change due to price adjustments, 
change in duties etc., depreciation on the revised 
unamortized depreciable amount is provided 
prospectively over the residual useful life of the 
asset.

	 g) 	 At the end of each financial year, future mineable 
heavy minerals in respect of land held for mining 
are assessed based on technical estimates 
considering available mining lease and/or surface 
lease as the case may be.

		  Diminution in the value of such land is recognized 
in proportion of actual quantity of heavy minerals 
mined during the year to the assessed future 
mineable heavy minerals plus actual quantity of 
heavy minerals mined during the year.

		       ` 1/-      
         

	 )	             
            
  

		              
,         -  
     ;       
        

		              
 

	 )	           ‘.’  
       
         

	 )	 //         
 //     
     

	 .)	  ` 5000/-         
 -        
      10%    
      - ` 5000/-  
            
      ` 1/-    100%  
     

	 )	        , 
        ,   
         
          
  

	 )	            
           
 /           
        

		               
           
           
           
    
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	 h)	 Amortization of intangible assets is provided for 
on straight line basis as per the followings:

Sl. 
No.

Particulars Amortisation

1 Mining lease/ 
Compensatory 
Afforestation 
Charges

Amortization of expenses 
pertaining to mining lease 
and afforestation charges 
is recognized in proportion 
of actual quantity of heavy 
minerals mined during the 
year to the assessed future 
mineable heavy minerals 
plus actual quantity of heavy 
minerals mined during the 
year taking cognizance of the 
lease period.

2 Computer 
Software

Over a period of 4(Four) years

		  The amortization is continued to be charged till 
the net block becomes Nil.

1.5 	 Impairment of Assets:

	 The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date to ascertain whether there is any 
indication of impairment based on external/internal 
factors. If any such indication exists, the Company 
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such 
recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable 
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset 
belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The 
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at 
the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a 
previously assessed impairment no longer exists, the 
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is 
reflected at the minimum of the recoverable amount or 
the carrying amount of the asset that would have been 
determined (net of depreciation or amortization) had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior 
accounting periods.

	 None of the individual asset is capable of generating any 
cash flow without depending on the operation of other 
assets of a production unit, hence a production unit as a 
whole is considered as a cash generating unit.

1.6 	 Investments and Other Financial Assets:

	 Initial measurement of financial asset & financial liabilities 
is recorded at fair value. Financial assets like loans & 
advances and receivables are subsequently measured 
at amortized cost.

	 )	          
        :

. 
. 

 

1   /  
 

      
     
     
     
       
       
     
   

2   4 ()     

		            
 

1.5	    :

	  -         
     /      
               
           
            
             
              
           - 
              
              
           
          ( 
   )        
      

	            
              
  ,           
       

1.6	      :

	            
             
      
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1.7 	 Investments in Subsidiaries:

	 a)	 In case of subsidiary, the Company records the 
investments in subsidiary at cost less impairment, 
if any.

	 b)	 After initial recognition, the company shall 
determine whether there is any objective evidence 
of impairment as a result of one or more events 
that occurred after the initial recognition of the net 
investment in the subsidiary.

1.8 	 Valuation of Inventories:

	 a)	  Raw material and material in-transit are valued at 
cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.

	 b)	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at 
cost.

	 c)	 Inventory of work-in-progress, intermediate 
products for further processing and finished 
products are valued at cost or net realizable values 
whichever is lower.

	 d)	  Off-grade material / contaminated stock is valued 
at 80 % of lower of cost or market value of normal 
merchandise considering the reprocessing cost.

	 e)	 Stores and spares not moved for more than 3 
years are written down by 95 % of the cost.

	 f)	 The company follows weighted average cost 
formula.

1.9 	 Insurance claims:

	 Insurance claims receivable are accounted for only when 
admitted by the Insurance Company.

 1.10	 Pre-Project Expenditure:

	 Expenditure on feasibility studies, flow sheet development, 
preparation of project report, environmental clearance 
and other related matters on new/expansion projects, to 
the extent not adjusted, are grouped under “Pre-Project 
Expenditure” pending capitalization/adjustment/write off.

 1.11	 Transactions in Foreign Currency:

	 a)	 Foreign currency transactions are initially 
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on 
the date of the transaction.

	 b)	 Non monetary items which are carried at historic 
cost denominated in terms of foreign currency 
are reported in subsequent balance sheets 
using the exchange rate prevailing on the date of 
transaction.

1.7	     :

	 )	     ,       
   ,   

	 )	    ,      
           
          
   

1.8 	    :

	 )	  /        
          

	 )	          
    

	 )	    ,      
          
 ,    ,    

	 .) 	 -        
  80%        
        

	 )	 3            
       95%    
  

	 )	        

1.9	   :

	               
      

1.10	     :

	       /     -
     , ,   
,   ,      
    //     
‘  ’          
     

1.11	    - :

	 )	            
      

	 ) 	           
             
         
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	 c)	 Monetary assets and liabilities as on the balance 
sheet date, denominated in foreign currency are 
restated at the rate of exchange as on that date.

	 d)	 Exchange differences either on settlement or on 
restatement:

		  i.	 in the case of foreign currency borrowings 
relating to a ‘Qualifying Asset’, to the extent 
they are regarded as an adjustment to the 
interest costs, are treated as borrowing 
cost.

		  ii. 	 in other cases, are recognised as income or 
as expense in the period in which settlement 
or restatement is made.

1.12	  Revenue Recognition :

	 The Company derives major portion of its revenue 
from sale of heavy minerals and rare earth compounds 
extracted as a part of its business operations and 
production & processing of Nuclear Grade Ammonium 
Di-uranate (NGADU).

	 i.	 Revenue from sales is recognized when 
the performance obligations are satisfied in 
accordance with Ind AS 115. Performance 
obligations are deemed to have been satisfied 
when substantial risk and rewards of ownership 
are transferred to the customer and the customer 
obtains control of the promised goods. In case 
of domestic sales, performance obligations are 
satisfied when goods are dispatched, or delivery 
is handed over to the transporter in accordance 
with the contracts with the customers. In case 
of export sales, performance obligations are 
satisfied based on terms defined in the contracts, 
usually when the goods are shipped onboard 
based on Bill of Lading / Airway Bill or any other 
similar document evidencing delivery thereof. 
Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, 
trade allowances, rebates, GST or any other 
applicable taxes/duties. Adjustments on account 
of out-turn weight are made in revenue on the 
basis of available information from customers.

	 ii.	 Revenue from processing of NGADU is 
recognized on achievement of the acceptable 
degree of concentration of prescribed materials 
and supplies to Government of India (GoI), at the 
rates specified by Department of Atomic Energy, 
(GoI).

	 )	          

          

 :    

	 )	      :

		  i)	�          

          

      

		  ii)	�          

  ,          



1.12	   :

	            

   - ()    

             

      

	 i) 	           

115          

           

          

            

,           

 ,          

        ,   

           

,         /  

          

            

    ,  , ,   

    /      

   -       

   

	 ii)	   ,      , 

          

    ,     

   
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1.13	 Bonus/demurrage in respect of load port/discharge 
port, relating to export sales is accounted on the basis 
of available information from customers.

	 Incidental income/expenses relating to statutory 
plantation activity as per mine closure obligation towards 
restoration of mined out land in its original topography 
is considered as other income/expenses for the year, 
hence the plantations are not considered as biological 
assets.

1.14 Employee Benefits:

A.	  Short term employee benefits:

	 All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve 
months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service are classified as 
short-term employee benefits and are charged off in the 
year in which the related service is rendered.

B.	 Post employment and other long term employee 
benefits:

	 a)	 Defined Contribution plans:

		  Defined contribution plans are Employees’ 
Pension Schemes covering all employees and 
Superannuation Scheme and new pension 
scheme for specified group of employees of the 
Company. The Company’s contribution to defined 
contribution plans are recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss and charged off in the year in 
which the employee has rendered service.

		  The contribution towards Employees’ Pension 
Scheme is remitted to the Provident Fund 
authority concerned under the Provident Fund 
and Other Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 
and contribution towards New Pension Scheme 
is made to designated point of presence. The 
Company has no further liability beyond the 
contribution.

		  The Superannuation Scheme of the Company is 
administered through Life Insurance Corporation 
of India (LIC).The contribution calculated at the 
specified rates on the monthly salary is remitted to 
LIC on the specified dates. The Company has no 
further liability beyond the contribution determined 
as above.

	 b)	 Defined Benefit Plans:

		  i)	  Gratuity

			   The company operates a gratuity scheme 
for employees and contributes to Life 
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) 
towards meeting the gratuity obligation.

1.13        /    
/         
   

	              
          
   /        / 
  , :           


1.14	   :

()	    :

	           12 
            
             
       

()	        :

	 )	    :

	  	          
         
        
           
           
       

		            
   1952     
          
          
            
 

		          
()          
          
          
       

	 )	    :

		  (i) 	 :

			�           
          
   
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		  ii)	 Provident Fund

			   The Company makes specified monthly 
contributions towards provident fund to 
a trust administered by the Company. 
The interest payable by the trust to the 
members every year is being notified by 
the Government. The Company has an 
obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, 
between the return on investments of the 
trust and the notified interest.

		  iii)	 Post Retirement Medical Scheme.

			   The Company operates a Post Retirement 
Medical Scheme covering the past 
employees and the benefits are defined.

	 c)	  Other Long-term Employee Benefits:

		  Entitlements to earned leave and sick leave/
half pay leave are recognized when they accrue 
to employees. While annual leave can be either 
availed or encashed subject to restriction on the 
maximum number of accumulation of leaves, sick 
leave/ half pay leave can only be availed and can 
not be encashed during service. However, the 
entire accumulated earned leave, sick / half pay 
leave subject to eligibility, can be encashed while 
leaving service.

		  The Company determines the liability for the Post 
employment and other long term benefits every 
year on actuarial valuation wherever mandated.

		  Actuarial gain/loss in respect of benefit plans are 
taken to Other Comprehensive Income.

1.15 	 VRS Compensation:

	 Compensation paid to VRS optees is charged to 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the same year in which 
VRS optees are relieved.

1.16	  Royalty:

	 Royalty on the minerals is charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on the basis of production. However, 
payment is made on the basis of dispatches from the 
factory including losses/shortages of minerals/captive 
consumption. Royalty on closing stock is provided on 
the basis of domestic sale/ net realizable value.

		  (ii)	   :

			�             
        
         
            
     ,   ,  
     

		  (iii)	     :

			�           
      
       

	 )	     :

		�       /    
           
         
           
     ,  / 
           
          
  ,    ,   
        

		�            
          
  

		�           
  /        
  

1.15	   :

	             
            
       

1.16	  :

	             
     ,   //  
            
/            
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1.17 	 Research and Development:

	 Expenses on Research and Development (R&D) other 
than expenditure on acquiring fixed assets are charged 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. R&D production 
is included in value of finished goods only when the 
products are transferred to Stock-in-trade/stores.

1.18	 For legacy issue - Excise Duty:

	 a)	 In case of excisable finished products, excise duty 
is accounted for as and when becomes due.

	 b)	 Excise duty on sales is presented as part of 
expenses in statement of profit and loss

1.19 	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets:

	 1.	 Provisions are recognized only when it has a 
present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of past event and it is probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation and when a 
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation 
can be made.

		  Provisions are measured at the present value of 
management’s best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the 
end of the reporting period. If the effect of time 
value of money is material, provision is measured 
in present value in a pre-tax rate. The change in 
the provision due to unwinding of discount rate is 
recognised as interest expense.

	 2.	 In the event of:

		  i.	 any possible obligation that arises from past 
events and the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non 
occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the 
Company; or

		  ii.	 any present obligation that arises from past 
events because:

			   a)	� it is not probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation;

				    or

			   b) 	� a reliable estimate of the amount of 
obligation cannot be made.

1.17	   :

	            
(  )            
            
          /  
   

1.18	      -  :

	 )	 -         
          

	 )	               
     

1.19 ,      :

	 1. 	            
        
            
          
         

		           
          
            
     ,     
 -            
          

	 2.	    

		  i)	�         
         
          
          , 


		  ii)	�         :

			   )	�         
         
     , 


			   )	�       
     ,
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		  No provision is recognized, but such obligations 
are disclosed in the notes as Contingent Liabilities.

	 3. 	 Contingent assets are not recognized but are 
disclosed in the financial statements, where an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable, a brief 
description of the nature of the contingent assets 
is being disclosed at the end of the reporting 
period and where practicable, an estimate of their 
financial effect.

1.20 Rectification of Error in booking of Income & 
Expenses of earlier years.

	 1.	 Expenditure / Income relating to prior periods 
arising in current year as a result of errors or 
omissions not exceeding ` 10,00,000/- or 1% of 
operating revenue whichever is higher in each 
case shall be treated as expenditure / income of 
the current year.

	 2.	 The effect of any expenditure exceeding the 
noted limit will be considered for reinstatement of 
the opening balance sheet by way of adjustments 
in retained earnings.

1.21 	 Provision for Current tax and Deferred Tax:

	 1.	 Provision for current tax is made after taking into 
consideration the provisions of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961.

	 2.	 Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the 
liability method, on temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates 
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the end of the reporting period and 
are expected to apply when the related deferred 
income tax asset is realized or the deferred 
income tax liability is settled.

	 3.	 Deferred tax assets are recognized for all 
deductible temporary differences and unused 
tax losses only if it is probable that future 
taxable amounts will be available to utilize those 
temporary differences and losses.

	 4.	 Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or 
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, respectively.

		�             
,            
  

	 3. �	�           
           
         

1.20             :

	 1.	     - -    
         /, 
` 10,00,000/-     1%   
 ,             
   

	 2.	            
           
     

1.21         :

	 1.	  , 1961        
      

	 2.	           
            
      ,   
           
       ( ) 
            
           
         
         

	 3.	          
        ,   
           
        

	 4.	            
  ,         
         ,   
:           

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1.22	 Cash and cash equivalents:

	 All financial instruments, which have original maturities 
of three months or less from the date of purchase and 
also financial instruments which are readily convertible 
into cash without significant loss are considered ‘cash 
equivalents’. Those financial instruments pledged as 
securities or under lien for any purpose, are not considered 
cash equivalents.

1.23	 Expenses in respect of Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR)

	 In pursuance to the CSR policy of the Company, at least 
two percent of the average net profits of the Company 
made during the three immediately preceding financial 
years is spent during the year towards the activities 
identified in this regard.

1.24	 Borrowing costs:

	 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition/ 
construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of 
the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. 
All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

1.25	 Job Contract transactions:

	 In case of Job work undertaken on “cost plus profit” basis, 
reimbursement of cost and the element of profit are 
recognized at the appropriate rate and /or value as the 
case may be on completion of the contractual obligation 
as per the terms of the contract.

1.26	 Other Income:

	 Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis 
taking into account the amount outstanding and the 
interest rate applicable. Dividend is recognized when the 
right to receive is established.

 1.27	 Government projects:

	 Receipts and payments in relation to various projects 
undertaken by the Company on behalf of Government of 
India (GoI) are captured separately and the net balance 
is disclosed in the financial Statements of the Company 
appropriately.

1.28 Lease :

	 (I)	 Company as Lessee:

		  Contracts which give the company right to use 
an Asset, are accounted in line with provisions of 
IND AS 116, if recognition criteria as specified are 
met. Lease payments associated with Short term 

1.22	     :

	   ,          
              
         , ‘ ’ 
           
         ,   
    

1.23	    ()    

	       ,      
              
            

1.24    :

	         /  
  ,         
             
            
          

1.25	     :

	 ‘  ’         , 
           /   
             
 

1.26   :

	             ,  
              
           
            
    

1.27	   :

	   ()         
           
            
 

1.28 

	 (I)	      :

		            
 ,     116 (IND AS 116)  
      ,   
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leases and leases in respect of low value assets 
are charged off as expenses on straight line basis 
over lease term or other systematic basis as 
applicable.

		  Value of ‘right of use’ is capitalized at the present 
value of outstanding lease payments for assets 
of significant value at the commencement date. 
Liability for lease is created for an amount 
equivalent to the present value of outstanding 
lease payments. Each lease payment (if 
applicable) is allocated between the liability 
created and finance cost.

		  Right of use of Assets are depreciated over 
shorter of asset’s useful life and the lease term 
on straight line basis. The lease payments are 
discounted using average market rate of interest.

	 (II)	  Company as Lessor:

		  In case of Finance Lease, amount due from 
lessee are recorded as receivables as company’s 
net investment in the leases. Each lease payment 
is allocated between receivable & finance income.

		  Operating Lease income are recognized over 
lease term over straight line basis except when 
the escalations are due to general inflation or 
otherwise justified.

            
           
            
     

		  ‘  ’        
           
           
            
  (  )       
     

		           
            
           
           

	 (II)	     :

		      ,          
              
           


		            
    ,       
       
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Notes:

1. 	 Leasehold Land

	 a) 	 Excludes 21.832 acres (previous year 21.832 
acres) of land at Orissa Sands Complex (OSCOM) 
site, possession of which has been taken over by 
the Company, but the compensation amount is 
not decided and formalities for transfer of lease 
hold land rights have not been completed.

	 b) 	 Includes 244.436 acres (previous year 244.436 
acres) of land in Odisha acquired by the Company 
from the Government of Odisha on lease under 
second phase. The 475.436 acres of land was 
transferred at a premium of `118.86 lakhs by 
the then Tahsildar to the Company’s name by an 
order dated 30-12-1992. The Revenue authorities 
had since on 12-04-2002 observed that the 
transfer of this land was irregular & void ab-initio 
and have quashed the earlier order of Tahsildar. 
Out of 475.436 acres of land, 231 acres of mined 
out land had been taken over by the Government 
of Odisha vide collector order dated 22-04-2002. 
The Company has sought refund of aforesaid 
amount (` 118.86 lakhs) from the Govt. of Odisha 
or alternatively to allot equivalent land for mining 
purpose.

2. 	 Freehold Land

	 a) 	 Includes `1/- (previuos year `1/-) towards approx. 
24.26 acres land received free of cost from the 
Government of Kerala at Alwaye.

	 b) 	 Includes 23.77 acres (previous year 24.86 acres) 
of land at Chavara in Kerala agreed to be given 
free of cost to the landlords from whom land is 
acquired on completion of certain formalities.

	 c) 	 Includes `30.36 lakhs (previous year `30.36 
lakhs) deposited as directed by the special 
Tahasildar (LA), KMML, Chavara towards 
enhanced compensation for the land acquired by 
Chavara Unit.

	 d) 	 Includes a patta land of 4.75 acres (previous 
year 4.75 acres) assigned to R E Division in the 
year 1964 has been ordered to be resumed back 
by the Government of Kerala. The Company 
has approached the Kerala Government for 
cancellation of the said order.

	 e) 	 Includes Approx. 75.37 cents (previous year 
approx. 75.37 cents) of land situated at 

:

1.	   :

	 )	     ( )   21.832 
 (  21.832 )    ,  
      ,      
           
   

	 )	           
      244.436  (  
244.436 )    475.436    
      30-12-1992  
   ₹118.86      
      12-04-2002   
            
            
  475. 436     231     
        22.04. 
2002           
           
     (₹ 118.86 )   
   

2.	    

	 )	           24.26 
   ` 1/- (  ` 1/-)  

	 )	      23.77  (  24.86 
)   ,        , 
         
  

	 )	          
 (), ,      
   ` 30.36  (  ` 30.36 ) 


	 )	   1964        4.75 
 (  4.75 )      
,          
             
  

	 )	         
75.37  (   75.37 )   
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Manavalakurichi Village in Kanyakumari District 
given on lease to the Govt. of Tamil Nadu for 
a period of 30 years from the date of deed i.e. 
11.08.2006 for the construction of bus stand on a 
nominal lease rent of `1000 p.a.

	 f) 	 Includes Approx. 125 cents (previous year 130 
cents) of land in aggregate situated at NK Block 
VI Alappadu area & NK Block II Karithura area 
encroached by some persons, the Company has 
taken legal recourse to clear such encroachment.

	 g) 	 Includes Approx. 62.450 acres (previous year 
62.45 acres) of land at OSCOM in Odisha for 
which title is not in favour of the company.

	 h) 	 Includes Approx. 0.81 Cents (previous year 0.81 
Cents) of land at RED - Aluva unit for which title is 
not traceable. However, name of the Company is 
recorded in land revenue record of Govt. of Kerala.

	 i) 	 Includes Approx. 4.99 acre (previous year approx. 
4.99 acre) of land situated at Manavalakurichi 
Village in Kanyakumari District given on lease to 
Govt. of Tamil Nadu for a period of 30 years from 
the date of deed i.e. 01.10.1990 for TNEB on a 
nominal lease rent of ` 8089 p.a.

3. 	 Buildings

	 a) 	 Includes cost of residential and other buildings 
at Mumbai the possession of which was handed 
over to the Company on payment of ` 53.43 
lakhs (previous year `53.43 lakhs) and for which 
execution of conveyance/transfer documents in 
favour of the Company is pending.

	 b) 	 Includes shares of `0.02 lakhs (previous year 
`0.02 lakhs) in various Co-Operative Housing 
Societies. Number of the shares held by the 
Company are 35 at a cost of `50 each.

	 c) 	 Excludes Godown at IGCAR, Kalpakam costing 
`80.15 lakhs (Previous year `80.15 lakhs), the 
entire cost is met out of funds received from the 
Government of India.

	 d) 	 Includes `5/- (Previous year ` 5/-) being amount 
retained towards Monazite godown / trenches at 
MK and OSCOM, the cost of which is met out of 
funds received from Government of India `73.76 
lakhs (Previous year `73.76 lakhs).

	 e) 	 Includes `1/- (Previous year `1/-) being amount 
retained towards thorium silo at R.E.Division, the 
cost of which is met out of funds received from 

  30      ` 1000    
             
 . 11.08.2006        

	 )	    VI      II 
          
 125  (  130 )   , 
            
     

	 )	      62.450  (  
62.45 )   ,      
  

	 )	     -     0.81  
(  0.81 )   ,   
     ,      
      

	 )	        4.99 
 (   ` 4.99 )    
 (TNEB)        
01.10.1990  30      .8089  
       

3.	 

	 )	           
,     ` 53.43  (  
` 53.43 )          
      /    
  

	 )	       ` 0.02  
(  ` 0.02 )       
      ` 50    35  

	 )	   ( IGCAR),  ` 80.15 
 (  ` 80.15 )     
  ,          
   

	 )	        /   
   ` 5/- (  ` 5/-)    
,        ` 73.76 
 (  73.76 )    

	 )	      ` 1/- (  ` 1/-) 
         ,  
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the Government of India `122.33 lakhs (Previous 
year `122.33 lakhs).

	 f) 	 Includes cost of `151.41 lakhs (Previous year 
`151.41 lakhs) being value of the housing 
complex at Manavalakurichi unit which has been 
constructed in a prohibited area without the 
required permission from various authorities.

	 g) 	 Includes building costing ̀  162.06 lakhs (Previous 
year ` 162.06 lakhs) being value of THRUST 
project and valued at ` 7/- (Previous year `7/-) as 
the entire cost is met out of funds received from 
the Government of India.

	 h) 	 Includes cost of Bhubaneshwar co-ordination 
centre amounting to ` 21.36 lakhs (previous year 
` 21.36 lakhs) constructed on leasehold land 
provided by Government of Odisha.

	 i) 	 Includes cost of OSCOM housing colony 
amounting to ` 346.63 lakhs (previous year  
` 346.63 lakhs) constructed partly on leasehold 
land.

	 j) 	 Includes cost of improvement of the Registered 
Office building of the Company amounting to 
` 26.07 lakhs (previous year ` 26.07 lakhs), 
accumulated depreciations amounting to ` 26.07 
lakhs (previous year ` 26.07 lakhs) which is taken 
on lease from M/s ECIL, a PSU under DAE, 
Govt. of India for a period of 20 years against a 
total non-interest bearing deposit amounting to 
`1069.20 lakhs alongwith a lease rent of `1000 
p.a. The lease has been expired in the month of 
February 2020, pending for renewal.

4. 	 Roads

	 Includes roads costing ` 2.98 lakh (Previous year  
` 2.98 lakh) being the value of THRUST project valued at  
` 1/- (Previous year ` 1/-) as the entire cost is met out of 
funds received from Government of India.

5. 	 Plant and Machinery

	 a) 	 Includes Plant and Machinery costing ` 743.92 
lakhs (Previous year ` 743.92 lakhs) being value 
of the THRUST Project and valued at `126/- 
(Previous year ` 126/-) as the entire cost is met 
out of funds received from the Government of 
India.

	 b) 	 Includes Plant and Machinery costing ` 66.86 
lakhs (Previous year ` 66.86 lakhs) at OSCOM 
and valued at ` 5/- (Previous year ` 5/-) as the 
entire cost is met out of funds received from the 
Government of India.

      ` 122.33  ( 
 ` 122.33 )     

	 )	         ̀  151.41 
 (  ` 151.41 )    , 
         
     

	 )	     ̀  162.06  (  ̀  162.06 
),        ` 7/- ( 
 ` 7/-)   ,     
        

	 )	            
` 21.36  (  ` 21.36 )    
      

	 )	        ` 346.63 
 (  ` 346.63 )     
     

	 )	           
` 26.07  (  ̀  26.07 ),  
` 26.07  (  ` 26.07 )  ,  
,        20  
             
   ` 1069.20      ` 1000 
             
 2020       ,    
  

4. 	 

	  ̀  1/- (  ̀  1/-)       
    ` 2.98  (  ` 2.98 )   
            
     I

5.	   

	 )	        ̀  743.92  (  
` 743.92 )        
    ` 126/- (  ` 126/-)  
          

	 )	    ` 66.86  (  66.86 ) 
       ,    
` 5/- (  ` 5/- ) ,     
         
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6. 	 Furniture and Fixtures

	 Includes furniture & other equipments costing `25.72 
lakhs (Previous year ` 25.72 lakhs) at R.E. Division 
& MK and valued at `32/- (Previous year `32/-) as 
the entire cost is met out of funds received from the 
Government of India.

7. 	 Motor Vehicles

	 Includes car costing `20.81 lakhs (Previous year `20.81 
lakhs) at OSCOM and valued at `1/- (Previous year  
` 1/-) as the entire cost is met out of funds received from 
the Government of India.

8. 	 Office Equipments

	 Includes Air Conditioning & Office equipments costing 
`20.36 lakhs (Previous year ` 20.36 lakhs) at OSCOM 
and valued at ` 2/- (Previous year ` 2/-) as the entire 
cost is met out of funds received from the Government 
of India.

9. 	 Computers and data Processing

	 Includes computers costing `1.46 lakhs (Previous year 
` 1.02 lakhs) at R.E.Division, OSCOM, and valued at  
` 5/- (Previous year ` 3/-) as the entire cost is met out of 
funds received from the Government of India.

10. 	 Laboratory, Dispensary and R&D Equipments

	 Includes laboratory equipment costing ` 359.20 lakhs 
(Previous year ` 224.88 lakhs) installed in R.E. Division 
& OSCOM and valued at ` 118 (Previous year ` 97) 
as the entire cost is met out of funds received from the 
Government of India.

11. 	 Electrical Installation & Equipments

	 Includes Electrical Installation and Equipments costing  
` 37.73 lakhs (Previous year ` 37.73 lakhs) being value 
of the THRUST Project and valued at ` 10/- (Previous 
year ̀  10/-) as the entire cost is met out of funds received 
from the Government of India.

6.	   

	        ` 25.72  (  
` 25.72)        ,  
 ` 32/-(   32/-) ,     
         

7.	  

	    ` 20.81  (  ` 20.81   
   ,   ` 1/-(  ` 1/- 
,              

8.	  

	    ` 20.36  (  ` 20.36 ) 
         , 
  ` 2/-(  ` 2/-) ,    
          

9.	    

	    , ,    ` 1.46  
(  ` 1.02 )      , 
  ` 5/-(  ` 3/-) ,    
          

10.	 ,      

	         ` 359.20  
(  ` 224.88 )     
    ` 118 (  ` 97)      
        

11.	    

	         ` 37.73  (  
` 37.73 )         
` 10/- (  ` 10/-)       
        
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 4:    	 (`  )
Note 4: Capital work-in-progress		  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars  31  2021  
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
    / Capital work in progress  6,342.89  3,349.86 

      /  
Capital items pending installation / in transit 

 344.81  566.57 

 / Total  6,687.70  3,916.43 

                  ,         :
(`  )

Capital Work in progess detailed above excludes the amount incurred during the year for the following projects, which are funded 
by Government of India are as below:		
	 (` in lakh)

 / Projects  2020-21  
for the year 2020-21

 2019 -20  
for the year 2019-20

      (RETTP)
Rare Earth and Titanium Theme Park (RETTP)

 224.97  184.75 

    (REPM)
Rare Earth Permanent Magnet (REPM)

 1,217.42  284.77 

 / Total  1,442.39  469.52 

 5: - 	 (`  )
Note 5: Non-current Investments		  (` in lakh)
 / Particulars 31  2021  

As at 31st March 2021 
31  2020  

As at 31st March 2020 
 ()   

(.) 
  

(`  ) 
 ()   

(.) 
  

(`  ) 
 Quantity 

(No's) 
 Face 

value (₹) 
 Amount 

(₹ in lakh) 
 Quantity 

(No's) 
 Face 

value (₹) 
 Amount 

(₹ in lakh) 
)	     *
A) 	 Equity Investment in Subsidiary*
	�    ( ) ( 

 -      ) ( 
 10/-   	�

	� IREL IDCOL Limited (at cost) (Unquoted - 
fully paid up) (Face Value ` 10/- per share

 714,000  10  71.40  127,500  10  12.75 

)	      
B) 	 Equity investment in Others at FVTPL
	        
	 Unquoted fully paid up
(i)	�    -  

, 
(i) 	� IRE Employees' Consumers' Co-operative 

Stores Ltd., Eloor

 833  100  0.83  833  100  0.83 
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 / Particulars 31  2021  
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

 ()   
(.) 

  
(`  ) 

 ()   
(.) 

  
(`  ) 

 Quantity 
(No's) 

 Face 
value (₹) 

 Amount 
(₹ in lakh) 

 Quantity 
(No's) 

 Face 
value (₹) 

 Amount 
(₹ in lakh) 

(ii)	�    -  
, 

(ii) 	� IRE Employees' Consumers' Co-operative 
Stores Ltd., Manavalakurichi

 1,094  10  0.11  1,094  10  0.11 

(iii)	�   ’    
, 

(iii) 	� IRE Employees' Thrift and Credit Society 
Ltd., Manavalakurichi

200 10  0.02  200  10  0.02 

iv)	�      
, 

iv) 	� IRE Employees' Consumer Co-operative 
stores Ltd,Chavara

4,550 10  0.46  4,550  10  0.46 

 -  ()
Total non-current investments (B)

 1.42  1.42 

 -  ( + )
Total non-current investments (A+B)

 72.82  14.17 

     
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 

 72.82  14.17 

        
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and 
market value thereof

 -  - 

        
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of 
investments

 -  - 

*     / * Details of subsidiary

   
Name of subsidiary

 
Principal activity

   
Place of 

Incorporation

     /     
 

Proportion of ownership interest/voting 
rights held by the Company

31  2021  
As at 31st March 2021

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020

  

IREL IDCOL Limited

   

Beach sand Mining

 / India 66% 51%
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 5 : -   	 (`  )
Note 5A: Non current Bank Balances 	 (` in lakh)
 / Particulars  31  2021  

As at 
31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
12         
Deposits placed for more than 12 months 

5,855.39 3995.27

 / Total 5,855.39 3,995.27 

 6:  -  -  	 (`  )
Note 6: Non current financial assets - Loans	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars  31  2021  
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
  / Security deposit
    / Unsecured considered Good  2,231.91  2,152.95 

     / Significant Increase in Credit Risk  -  - 

  / Credit Impaired  15.28  15.28 

 :      / Less: Provision for Credit Loss  (15.28)  (15.28)

    -  / Other Loans and advances - employees
    / Secured considered good  763.59  723.49 

    / Unsecured considered good  93.34  100.92 

     / Significant Increase in Credit Risk  -  - 

  / Credit Impaired  -  - 

 :       / Less: Provision for Credit Loss  -  - 

   -               
  
Other loans and advances- advances recoverable in cash or kind or 
for value to be received
    / Unsecured considered Good  22.21  7.17 

     / Significant Increase in Credit Risk  -  - 

  / Credit Impaired  -  - 

 :       / Less: Provision for Credit Loss  -  - 

 /Total  3,111.04  2,984.53 

 6 :  -   	 (`  )
Note 6A: Other non-current financial assets	 (` in lakh)
 / Particulars  31  2021  

As at 
31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
       / Deposits held as Margin Money  2,092.08  483.27 

 / Total  2,092.08  483.27 
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 7:    () 	 (`  )
Note 7: Deferred tax assets (net)	 (` in lakh)
 / Particulars  31  2021  

As at 
31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
      / Deferred tax liabilities on account of:
       
Difference between book and tax depreciation

 255.72  473.75 

    / Total deferred tax liabilities  255.72  473.75 
     : / Deferred tax assets on account of:
 43           
Disallowances U/s 43B allowable as timing differences

 885.30  650.75 

      
Provision for Doubtful debts and Advances

 98.97  58.10 

    / Post Retirement Medical Scheme  2,452.78  1,521.72 

  / Other timing differences  2,908.27  2,876.79 

  / Unabsorbed Depreciation  -  - 

  / Unabsorbed loss  -  - 

    / Deferrement of interest income  0.03  0.43 

   /   / Finance lease obligation/ Lease Liability  10.19  12.71 

   / MAT credit entitlement  -  - 

    / Total deferred tax assets  6,355.54  5,120.50 

 / Total  6,099.82  4,646.75 

 8 - -   	 (`  )
Note 8 - Non-current tax assets	 (` in lakh)
 / Particulars  31  2021  

As at 
31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
  -   # / Advance Tax - Non current #  587.19  2,561.71 

 / Total  587.19  2,561.71 

#  43 ./ # Refer Note 43.

 9  -   	 (`  )
Note 9A - Capital Advances	 (` in lakh)
 / Particulars  31  2021  

As at 
31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
   / Capital advances 
	     / Secured considered good  76.92  89.88 

	     / Un-secured Considered good  254.20  1,045.40 

	      / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

	   / Credit Impaired  6.67  6.67 

	  :       / Less: Provision for Credit Loss  (6.67)  (6.67)

 / Total  331.12  1,135.28 
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 9  -     	 (`  )
Note 9B - Other non current assets	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars  31  2021  
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

     
Advances other than capital advances

()	   / (a) Security deposit

	     / Secured considered good  -  - 

	     / Un-secured Considered good  -  0.51 

	      / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

	   / Credit Impaired  2.28  1.77 

	  :       / Less: Provision for Credit Loss  (2.28)  (1.77)

()	    -            
(b) 	� Other loans and advances- advances recoverable in cash or 

kind or for value to be received

	     / Secured considered good  -  - 

	     / Un-secured Considered good  17.80  30.46 

	      / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

	   / Credit Impaired  92.02  81.27 

	  :       / Less: Provision for Credit Loss  (92.02)  (81.27)

()	   * / (c) Deferred employees cost*  147.16  157.31 

()	   / (d) Prepaid expenses

	     / Prepaid mining lease renewal  -  - 

	     / Prepaid railway siding expenses  -  - 

	     / Prepaid coal licences fee  -  - 

	     () / Prepaid mining shipping Exp.(port)  -  - 

	    / Prepaid lease rent  -  - 

 / Total  164.96  188.28 
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 10 -  	 (`  )
Note 10 - Inventories	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars  31  2021  
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

  / Raw Materials
   / Goods in transit  -  - 

  / In Stock  328.51  600.19 

   / Work-in-Progress  4,778.13  3,564.17 

  / Finished Goods  12,454.75  7,628.81 

    / Stock-in-trade  -  - 

   / Stores and Spares
   / Goods in transit  52.39  11.14 

  / In Stock  3,349.70  3,255.33 

  / Loose tools  6.32  3.55 

-       () 
Others- Intermediate products for further processing 

 106.92  30.91 

 / Total  21,076.71  15,094.10 
1.	          
1.	 Inventories includes goods in transit relating to- Raw Material
	           

 -  - 

	 Inventories includes goods in transit relating to- Stores & spares  52.39  11.14 

2.	           ` 106.92  (  ` 30.91 )    

2. 	 Intermediate product for further processing includes an amount of ̀  106.92 lakhs (Previous year ̀  30.91 lakhs) of monazite.

3. 	       1988-89  1990-91      101.440   (  101.440 )    
                    ,      
 `1/-     (  ` 1) 

3. 	 Inventory of stores and spares includes 101.440 kg of silver (Previous year 101.440 kg) recovered during 1988-89 and 
1990-91. Since no cost was allocated to silver residue and no charges were paid to BARC, the said inventory has notionally 
been valued at ` 1/-. (Previous year ` 1).

4. 	        (FG)  2.645  (  2.497 )  ,   ` 351.50  (   
` 338.30 ) 

4. 	 FG includes 2.645 tons (Previous Year 2.497 tons) of NG ADU valued at ` 351.50 lakhs (Previous year ` 338.30 lakhs) 
meant for supply to Govt of India.

5. 	    318.69  (  184.21 )  ,   5018.66    (  ` 2831.25 )  
      99%      (GOI)  -        
      /         ,             

5. 	 Finished Goods includes 318.69 t (Previos year 184.21 t) having value ` 5018.66lakh Cr (Previous year ` 2831.25lakh) 
of ND Pr Oxalate & Oxide bearing purity more than equal to 99%. The inventory has been increased/ built up for meeting 
e-mobility plan of Government of India (GOI) and other strategic reasons. Since it has a long shelf life, no part of the said 
inventory is considered impaired.
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 11 -  	 (`  )
Note 11 - Investment	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021  
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020 
As at 31st March 2020 

   
(  ) 

  (`)    
(`   ) 

   
(  ) 

  (`)    
(`   ) 

 Quantity 
(No's) 

 NAV (`)  Amount  
(` in lakh) 

 Quantity 
(No's) 

 NAV (`)  Amount  
(` in lakh) 

      ()
Investment in mutual fund at FVTPL (Quoted)
  (  ) - 
BMF Investment (Liquid Cash Plan)-Direct 
Growth

168,480.593  2,369.285  3,991.79 

  (  ) - 
SBIMF Investment (Liquid Cash Plan)-Direct 
Growth

136,370.736  3,221.619  4,393.35  175,113.52  3,251.44  5,693.72 

  
Total Current investments

304,851.329  8,385.13  175,113.52  3,251.44  5,693.72 

      
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 

 - 

        
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and 
market value thereof

 8,385.13  5,693.72 

        
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of 
investments

 -  -  -  - 

 12 -   	 (`  )
Note 12 - Trade receivables	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars  31  2021  
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
    / Secured Considered good  -  2,572.26 

    / Un-secured Considered good  2,075.53  3,077.89 

     / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

  / Credit Impaired  6.53  6.49 
 2,082.06  5,656.64 

 :       / Less: Provision for credit loss  (6.53)  (6.49)

 / Total  2,075.53  5,650.15 

 13 -     	 (`  )
Note 13 - Cash and cash equivalents	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars  31  2021  
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
       / Balances with banks in Current accounts  2,645.34  853.85 

3          / Bank deposits for less than 3 months  3,128.98  3,202.11 

   / Cash on Hand  0.60  1.39 

 / Total  5,774.92  4,057.35 
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 14 -    	 (`  )
Note 14 -Other Bank Balances 	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars  31  2021  
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

     () 
Earmarked deposits with banks (PRMS)

 3,500.00 

12        / Deposits placed for 12 months  49,103.59  44,351.45 

 / Total  49,103.59  47,851.45 

 15 -    -  	 (`  )
Note 15 - Current financial assets - Loans	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars  31  2021  
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

   -  / Loans and advances - directors

	 ,    / Secured, considered good  -  - 

	 ,    / Unsecured, considered good  -  - 

	      / Significant increase in credit risk

	   / Credit Impaired

   -  / Loans and advances - employees

	 ,    / Secured, considered good  200.55  236.00 

	 ,    / Unsecured, considered good  314.26  271.32 

	      / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

	   / Credit Impaired  -  - 

  -              
Loans and advances -advances recoverable in cash or kind or for 
value to be received

	 ,    / Secured, considered good  -  3.57 

	 ,    / Unsecured, considered good  11,130.65  9,909.99 

	      / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

	   / Credit Impaired  2.92  2.92 

	  :       / Less: Provision for credit loss  (2.92)  (2.92)

 / Total  11,645.47  10,420.88 
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 16 -     	 (`  )
Note 16 - Other current financial assets 	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars  31  2021  
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

12             
Term Deposit as Margine Money for less than equal to 12 months

 8,077.54  246.66 

 /    / Outstanding income / Despatch Money  1,156.75  1,156.75 

  / Claims receivable

	 ,    / Secured, considered good  11.77  1.60 

	 ,    / Unsecured, considered good  439.10  890.75 

 	      / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

 	   Credit Impaired  267.54  116.45 

	  :       / Less: Provision for credit loss  (267.54)  (116.45)

 / Total  9,685.16  2,295.76 

 17 -  -   	 (`  )
Note 17 - Other non-financial current assets 	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars  31  2021  
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

     
Advances other than capital advances

	   /     
	 Advances to statute recoverable/ adjustable.

 11,589.86  8,804.18 

	  -  -    
	 Advances - Employees - unsecured considered good

 12.24  19.85 

 	      / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

 	   / Credit Impaired  -  - 

	   * / Deferred employees cost*  28.55  31.32 

 ()  / Prepaid Expenses

	  ()   / Prepaid Lease rent  -  - 

 / Total  11,630.65  8,855.35 

 17 -    	 (`  )
Note 17A - Other current assets	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars  31  2021  
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

     / Asset pending disposal  2.75  6.93 

 / Total  2.75  6.93 
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 18 -    	 (`  )
Note 18 - Equity share capital	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars  31  2021  
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
: / Authorised:
 ` 1000/ -  10,00,000   (  ` 1000/ -   
10,00,000   )
1,00,00,000 Equity shares of `1,000/- each (PY: 10,00,000 Equity shares 
of `1,000/- each)

 100,000.00  10,000.00 

 / Total  100,000.00  10,000.00 
  ,       :
Issued, subscribed and paid up:
 ` 1000/-        17,27,300   (  
: 8, 63,650)
17,27,300 (PY: 8,63,650) Equity shares of `1,000/- each fully paid up

 17,273.00  8,636.50 

 / Total  17,273.00  8,636.50 

 / Particulars  31  2021  
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
                  
               
Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant 
to contract without payment being received in cash during the period of 
five years immediately preceding the reporting date 

 / Nil  / Nil 

                
        ,       
  
Aggregate number and class of shares alloted as fully paid up by way of 
bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the 
reporting date

 863,650  / Nil 

                 
    
Aggregate number and class of shares bought back during the period of 
five years immediately preceding the reporting date

 / Nil  / Nil 

                  
/    
During the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date 
the Company has not issued/bought back any shares.

 / Nil  / Nil 

1.	           ` 1000/-                 
 ,       ,          

1. 	 The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1,000/- per Share. Each Share holder is eligible for 
one vote per share held. In the Event of Liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of 
the Company, in proportion to their shareholding.		

2.	   21  2020    70             24  2020  1:1 
       

2. 	 The Company had issued Bonus shares to the existing shares holders in proportion of 1:1on 24th December 2020 based 
on the approval of its 70th Annual General meeting held on 21st September 2020. 		
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(i)	              :	
(i) 	 Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020 
As at 

31st March 2020 
( )
(In Nos.)

 (`  )
 (` in lakh) 

( )
(In Nos.)

 (`  )
 (` in lakh) 

      
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 

 863,650  8,636.50  863,650  8,636.50 

     
Shares outstanding at the end of the year

 1,727,300  17,273.00  863,650  8,636.50 

5%             : 
Details of shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

   
Name of Shareholder 

31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020 
As at 

31st March 2020 
   
 

Number of 
Shares held

 () 
 %

% of Holding 

   
 

Number of 
Shares held

 () 
 %

% of Holding 

  : / Equity Shares:
     
Government of India and its nominee

 1,727,300 100%  863,650 100%

 19 -   / Note 19 - Other equity
 	 (`  )
General reserve	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020 
As at 

31st March 2020 
  / Opening balance  8,200.18  8,200.18 
     / Transaction during the year  -  - 
  / Closing balance  8,200.18  8,200.18 

   -              
Nature and Purpose - This is distributable reserve created out of surplus in profit and loss of the Company.		

  / Retained earnings

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020 
As at 

31st March 2020 
  / Opening balance  78,864.37  63,156.90 
     / Transaction during the year - 
    /() / Profit / (loss) for the year  31,568.85  29,175.91 
      / Other comprehensive income for the year  (1,200.37)  (810.13)
           
Impact on account of prior period items/ IndAs Adjustment recognised in 
Retained Earnings

 (0.69)  - 

  / Bonus Share  (8,636.50)
 / Dividend  (9,353.00)  (12,658.31)
  / Closing balance  91,242.59  78,864.37 
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   -               
Nature and Purpose - Retained earnings represents accumulated earnings and losses made by the Company over the 
years.		

 20 -   -   	 (`  )
Note 20 - Other non-current financial liabilities 	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020 
As at 

31st March 2020 
 /   / Lease Liability/Finance lease obligations  31.80  40.50 

 / Others  20.03  0.01 

 / Total  51.83  40.51 

 21 -  -  	 (`  )
Note 21 - Non-current provisions 	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020 
As at 

31st March 2020 
)	      / a) Provision for employee benefits  15,711.20  11,741.31 

)	  / b) Others
	     / Other long term provision  154.69  184.91 

	      # / Provision for entry tax #  67.79  67.79 

 / Total  15,933.69  11,994.01 

#                  ’   , 1999        
             ,  “ (CCT)”          
            ,   ` 148.94  (  ` 148.94 )    
              ` 81.15  (  ` 81.15 )      , 
        

# The Oscom unit of the Company, considering furnace oil and coal as raw material claimed set off of entry tax paid on them 
under the provisions of ‘Orissa Entry Tax Act, 1999. Against the disallowance of this by the Commissioner of Commercial Tax, 
Cuttack “CCT” the Company filed a writ petition before the Hon’ble Orissa High Court. However, the disputed amount of `148.94 
lakhs (previous year ` 148.94 lakhs) has been provided in the accounts. The Company adjusted an aggregate amount of `81.15 
lakhs (previous year ` 81.15 lakhs) with CCT as directed by the competent authorities which has been nettted against the gross 
liability.

 22 -   -  	 (`  )
Note 22 - Other non-current liabilities 	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020 
As at 

31st March 2020 
  # / Other liabilities#  -  5,000.00 

 / Total  -  5,000.00 

  -           (TTPL)         (  ` 5000)

# Other Liabilities - Being Bank Guarantee encashed amount ` Nil (Previous year ` 5000 lakhs) off M/s TPPL due to non lifting 
of materials as per schedule.		
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 23 -    	 (`  )
Note 23 - Current trade payables	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020 
As at 

31st March 2020 

    (MSEs) / Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs)  1,024.32  1,751.34 

    / Other than MSEs  3,760.53  2,420.12 

 / Total  4,784.85  4,171.46 

 24 -     	 (`  )
Note 24 - Other current financial liabilities	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020 
As at 

31st March 2020 

  - ,     (MSEs)
Other Payables - Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSEs)

 207.31  360.57 

    / Liabilities for expenses  6,924.31  7,255.03 

  / Lease Liability  8.70  10.00 

    / Security and retention money  2,172.28  2,010.18 

   / Advance from customer  446.97  652.98 

  / Other liabilities  2,285.73  2,063.13 

 / Total  12,045.30  12,351.89 
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,      , 2006 (MSMED)            (  ) 
        

The information regarding total outstanding dues (principal & interest) of micro and small enterprises as defined under 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) is given below.

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020 
As at 

31st March 2020 

  - 
 -
    

 

 -  
   
  

  - 
 -
    

 

 -  
   
  

Non current 
- Long term 

liabilities -Trade 
payable & Other 
current liabilities

 Current 
-Trade 

payable & 
Other current 

liabilities 

Non current 
- Long term 

liabilities -Trade 
payable & Other 
current liabilities

 Current 
-Trade 

payable & 
Other current 

liabilities 

          
      
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSEs 
Act and remaining unpaid as at the end of year

  / NIL  1,231.63   / NIL  2,111.91 

           
    
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSEs Act and 
remaining unpaid as at the end of year

  / NIL   / NIL   / NIL   / NIL 

      ,      
     16      
Interest paid, under section 16 of the MSEs Act, to suppliers 
registered under MSEs, beyond the appointed day during the 
year

  / NIL   / NIL   / NIL   / NIL 

              
(            )  
        
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under MSEs Act.

  / NIL   / NIL   / NIL   / NIL 

             .
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 
of year.

  / NIL   / NIL   / NIL   / NIL 

    23        
  ,             , 
              
    
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest 
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the 
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under 
section 23 of the MSEs Act.

  / NIL   / NIL   / NIL   / NIL 
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 25 -    	 (`  )
Note 25 - Other current liabilities	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020 
As at 

31st March 2020 

   / Advances from Customers  5,545.94  3,883.15 

  / Statutory Liabilities  574.15  575.60 

  / Other liabilities  1,601.71  2,338.54 

 / Total  7,721.80  6,797.29 

 26 -   	 (`  )
Note 26 - Current provisions	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020 
As at 

31st March 2020 

     / Provision for employee benefits  10,837.47  7,484.79 

 / Others

  / Contractual Provision  2,265.06  2,220.37 

 / Total  13,102.52  9,705.16 

 27 -    	 (`  )
Note 27 - Revenue from operations	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
  

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

   / Sale of Products  93,066.80  96,680.57 

   / Sale of Services  2,322.09  6,294.67 

   / Other Operating Revenues  2,024.28  1,088.15 

 / Total  97,413.17  104,063.39 

: / Note:		

              ` 51473.11  (  ` 53742.35 )    

Sale of products includes earning in foreign exchange amounting to ̀  51473.11 lakhs (Previous year ̀ 53742.35 lakhs) calculated 
on FOB basis.		



131

IREL (India) Limited

71st Annual Report 2020-21

  ( )           - ()        2010-
11     13 , 2012       ̀  13,557/-             2012-13 
 2020-21                    -        
,   (     )   /  2016-17           
(2020-21   ` 16919  )     )     ,            
           ,   2016-17          ` 125.27      
       2020-21          

Revenue towards compensation for Nuclear Grade Amonium Di-uranate (NGADU) supplied exclusively to Government of India 
(GoI) is continued to be recognised on the basis of rate approved for the year 2010-11 vide communication dated 13th April, 2012; 
i.e. at ` 13,557/- per kg. This rate has been consistently applied for the initial recognition for all year from 2012-13 to 2020-21. 
This is because even though a higher rate may at times be claimed, the actual cost incurred (Which is the basis of the claim) may 
at difference plants/processes be less than the last approved rates (`16919 per kg approved in 2020-21 for supplied effected in 
2016-17 from OSCOM). Upon receipt of specific approval, the differential impact is considered as part of the revenue in the year 
of receipt of such approval. Accordingly, ` 125.27 Lakhs being the difference of the sum initially recognised for F.Y.2016-17 and 
the sum now approved for those years is recognised as revenue in the year 2020-21.

 28 -   	 (`  )
Note 28 - Other income	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
  

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

          
Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortised cost

	    / On Bank deposits  3,046.11  3,482.93 

	    / On others  1,021.80  749.77 

               
Dividend income from financial assets measured at Fair value through 
profit or loss

 407.34  376.45 

    / Net foreign exchange gain  490.32  213.79 

,       
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

 9.77  5.17 

 -  / Other non-operating income  5,423.81  631.77 

 / Total  10,399.15  5,459.88 

:           ()               
2010-11                ` 5000.00    (  - ) 

Note:	 Other Non-Operating Income includes the amount of ` 5000.00 lakhs (Previous year-Nil) written back from other non-
current liabilities being bank guarantee encashed in the year 2010-11 due to non lifting of materials as per the schedule by M/s 
Titanium Products Private Ltd.(TPPL).	
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 29 -     	 (`  )
Note 29 - Cost of materials consumed	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
  

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

   / Raw material consumed  8,887.52  6,787.83 

  / Chemicals consumed  1,875.83  2,600.16 

 / Total  10,763.35  9,387.99 

 29  -      	 (`  )
Note 29A - Purchase of Stock in Trade	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
  

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

     / Purchase of Stock in Trade  2,849.10  1,922.04 

 / Total  2,849.10  1,922.04 

 30 -  ,             	 (`  )
Note 30 - Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work-in-progress	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
  

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

    / At the end of the Year
	   / Finished Goods  12,454.75  7,628.81 

	    / Work-In-Progress  4,778.13  3,564.17 

	   () / Stock-in-Trade(Canalization)  -  - 

	        
	 Intermediate product for further processing

 106.92  30.90 

 17,339.80  11,223.88 
    / At the beginning of the Year
	   / Finished Goods  7,628.81  8,865.60 

	    / Work-In-Progress  3,564.17  2,957.23 

	   () / Stock-in-Trade(Canalization)  -  - 

	       	
	 Intermediate product for further processing

 30.90  635.69 

 11,223.88  12,458.52 
 / Total  (6,115.92)  1,234.64 
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 31 -    	 (`  )
Note 31 - Employee benefits expense	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
  

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

   / Salaries and wages  18,886.94  20,431.29 

      
Contribution to provident and other funds

 2,217.78  2,310.59 

   / Staff welfare expense  6,122.57  2,920.49 

:   /           
   
Less: Expenditure transferred to other heads & recoupment of overhead 
charges from the Government projects/capital works 

 (122.53)  (112.43)

 / Total  27,104.76  25,549.94 

 /( ) / Acturial Gain / (Loss)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
  

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

() / Gratuity  (1,442.21)  (990.41)

 (PRMS) / PRMS  (174.87)  (94.15)

  / Resettlement Allowances  12.99  1.94 

 / Total  (1,604.08)  (1,082.61)

:     -19                  41    
 .
Note: Disclosures required by Ind AS -19 in respect of provision made towards various Employees benefits is shown under Note 
no 41		

 32 -    	 (`  )
Note 32 - Finance costs	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
  

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

         :
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

 -  / Interest - others  45.23  4.78 

 / Total  45.23  4.78 
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 33 -   	 (`  )
Note 33 - Other expenses	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
  

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

     # / Consumption of stores and spares#  2,506.51  2,733.68 
   / Power and fuel  7,458.69  7,563.87 
 / Rent  147.54  186.02 
   / Repairs to buildings  776.13  780.58 
   / Repairs to machinery  1,195.03  1,328.34 
 -  / Repairs- others  1,330.71  2,406.90 
 / Insurance  201.15  80.09 
      / Rates and taxes excl.export duty  311.70  134.51 
 / Royalty  2,620.18  2,359.50 
     / R & D Expenses  173.88  179.49 
   / Waste disposal expenses  108.25  139.92 
     / Packing and handling expenses  2,873.77  2,788.04 
 / Commission  9.11  13.55 
  /   ,     
Loss on property, plant and equipment sold/discarded

 7.81  0.50 

 ,      
Provision for doubtful debts,assets and advances

 162.47  - 

    / Loss of non-moving stores  29.10  93.06 
  ## / CSR & Sustainability ##  422.15  271.80 
  / Travelling Expenses  92.82  328.14 
   / Statutory Audit fees  8.90  8.80 
    / Tax audit fees  1.90  1.80 
    / Cost Audit fees  0.60  0.60 
  / Other services  0.35  0.38 
    / Travelling and out of pocket expenses  1.61  6.42 
    / Export Duty on minerals  769.72  731.36 
      / Expenses for Pvt. Security Arrangements  1,087.50  1,056.99 
   . / Mining Lease exp.  1,680.46  1,778.36 
   / Outsourced Service Charges  1,887.01  178.20 
  / Miscellaneous expenses  2,082.70  2,044.28 

 27,947.75  27,195.18 
:         /    
   
Less: Expenditure transferred to other heads & recoupment of overhead 
charges from Government projects/capital works

 (260.97)  (211.57)

 / Total  27,686.78  26,983.61 

# : 31  2021        /      

# Note: Value of imported / Indigenous spare parts & components consumed For the year ended 31st March 2021
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 / Particulars 31  2021   
  

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

 (%) / Imported (%)  -  - 

 (%) / Indigenous (%)  100.00  100.00 

 / Total  100.00  100.00 

##  -   / ## Note - CSR Expenditure		

()	              .484.49  ( - .241.32 )

(a) 	 Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year `484.49 lakhs (PY `241.32)	

()	 31.03.2021         ` 422.14 (  ` 271.80 )

(b) 	 Amount spent during the year on 31.03.2021 ₹422.14 (PY ₹271.80 lakhs)	

 / Particulars 31  2021   
  

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
   

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

(i)	      / 
(i) 	 Construction / acquisition of any asset

 115.32  43.68 

(ii)	  (i)     
(ii) 	 On purposes other than (i) above

 306.83  228.12 

 / Total  422.15  271.80 

     ` 17.83  (  - ` 32.15 )       

Yet to be paid in cash for the year is ₹17.83 lakhs (PY ₹32.15 lakh)

 34:    	 (`  )
Note 34: Income tax expense	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

()	    / (a) Income tax expense  

	   / Current tax
	     / For Current Year
		    / Income tax 12,067.31  11,617.62 

	     / For earlier years
		    / Income tax  (1,076.01)  - 

	    / Total of Current tax  10,991.30  11,617.62 
	   / Deferred Tax
		     / () / Deferred tax charge/(credit)  (1,049.36)  (499.11)

	    / Total of Deferred tax  (1,049.36)  (499.11)
 / Total  9,941.94  11,118.51 
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 34.1:             
Note 34.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

     / Net Profit before tax  41,510.78  40,294.41 

25.168%     ( : 25.168%)
Tax at the rate of 25.168% (Previous year: 25.168%) 

 12,067.31  11,617.62 

    (MAT) / MAT utilised  - 

                 /  
  
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / not taxable in 
calculating taxable income
 / Depreciation  (218.03)  (743.87)

     / Provision for credit impaired  (40.87)  33.05 

 43     / Disallowance u/s 43B  128.42  (42.86)

     / Post retirement medical scheme  (887.05)  496.96 

   / Other timing differences  (34.75)  (234.89)

  / Unabsorbed Loss  -  - 

  / Unabsorbed Depreciation  -  - 

    / Deferrement of interest income  0.40  0.14 

   / Finance lease obligation  2.52  (7.65)

         
Reversal of excess provision made in earlier year

 (1,076.01)  - 

   / Income Tax expense  9,941.94  11,118.50 

      
Deferred tax balance in relation to

1  2020 
As at 

1st April 2020

    
   
 /   
Recognised/ 

reversed 
through profit 

and loss

   
 / 
Recognised in 
/ reclassified 

from OCI

31   
2021 

As at  
31st March 2021

      :
Deferred tax liabilities on account of:
       
Difference between book and tax depreciation

 473.75  (218.03)  255.72 

   
Total deferred tax liabilities

 473.75  (218.03)  -  255.72 

     :
Deferred tax assets on account of:
 43           
Disallowances U/s 43B allowable as timing 
differences

 650.75  (128.42)  362.97  885.30 

      
Provision for Doubtful debts and Advances

 58.10  40.87  98.97 

    
Post Retirement Medical Scheme

 1,521.72  887.05  44.01  2,452.78 

   / Other timing differences  2,876.79  34.75 -3.27  2,908.27 
    / Deferrement of interest income  0.43  (0.40)  0.03 
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      
Deferred tax balance in relation to

1  2020 
As at 

1st April 2020

    
   
 /   
Recognised/ 

reversed 
through profit 

and loss

   
 / 
Recognised in 
/ reclassified 

from OCI

31   
2021 

As at  
31st March 2021

   / Finance lease obligation  12.71  (2.52)  10.19 
(MAT)   / MAT credit entitlement  -  -  - 
    / Total deferred tax assets  5,120.50  831.33  403.71  6,355.54 
 / Total  4,646.75  1,049.36  403.71  6,099.82 

 35:    / Note 35: Fair value measurements
    	 (`  )
Financial instruments by category		  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2021
31st March 2020


FVTPL 

 
Amortised 

cost


FVTPL 

 
Amortised 

cost
  :  -
Financial assets: Non-current
 -  / Non-current investments  72.82  -  14.17  - 
  / Security deposit  -  2,231.91  -  2,152.95 
   - 
Loans and advances - employees

 -  856.93  -  824.41 

    / Other Loans and advances  -  22.21  -  7.17 
   / Bank Balances  2,092.08  483.27 
 :  / Financial assets: Current
 / Investment  8,385.13  -  5,693.72  - 
  / Trade receivables  -  2,075.53  -  5,650.15 
    / Cash and cash equivalents  -  5,774.92  -  4,057.35 
    / Other Bank balances  -  49,103.59  -  47,851.45 
   -  / Loans and advances - directors  -  -  -  - 
   -  
Loans and advances - employees

 -  514.81  -  507.32 

    / Other Loans and advances  -  11,130.65  -  9,913.56 
   
Other current financial assets

 -  9,685.16  -  2,295.76 

   / Total financial assets  8,457.95  83,487.80  5,707.89  73,743.39 

  :  - 
Financial liabilities: Non-current
  / Trade payables  -  - 
    / Lease Liability & Others  -  51.83  -  40.51 
  :  / Financial liabilities: Current
  / Trade payables  -  4,784.85  -  4,171.46 
    
Other current financial liabilities

 -  12,045.30  -  12,351.89 

   / Total financial liabilities  -  16,881.98  -  16,563.86 
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I.	    / Fair value hierarchy

	                             
                          
                ()            () 
                          
             ,              
           

	 The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that 
are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed 
in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, 
the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An 
explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

	  1:  1                 ,     
           ( )           , 
                     :

	 Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity 
instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including 
bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual 
funds are valued using the closing NAV.

	  2:               (  ,  , -- 
)                      
    -                   
  ,      2     

	 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the- 
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely 
as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, 
the instrument is included in level 2.

	  3:                 ,     3     
  -  ,      3      

	 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.  
This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

	              

	 There are no transfers between fair value hierarchy levels during the year.

	             2           3     


	 Loans to employees and security deposits have been categorised into level 2 of fair value hierarchy. All the other items 
have been categorised into level 3.
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II.	             

II.	 Valuation technique used to determine fair value

	                 : :

	 Significant valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

	     ,   ,       , 10       ,  10   
                   

	 The fair values for Security deposits, loan to employees are based on discounted cash flows using a discount rate 
determined considering the average of prevailing interest rate of SBI, average yield rate on 10 year bond, last 10 years 
average prime lending rate.

III.	   / Valuation processes

	                        
               2         :

	 The finance department of the company performs the valuation of assets and liabilities required for financial 
reporting purposes. The team directly reports to the Director Finance for approval of the valuation method. 
The main Level 2 input for the valuation process are derived and evaluated as follows:

	 •	�        , 10       ,  10          
                     .

	 •	� Discount rates are determined considering the average of prevailing interest rate of SBI, average yield rate on 10 
year bond, last 10 years average prime lending rate that reflect current market assessment of the time value of 
money and the risk specific to the asset.

IV.	    -    : / Fair value hierarchy - recurring fair value measurement:

	    ` 8385.13                  1     

	 Investment in mutual fund amounting to ₹8385.13 lakhs accounted at Fair value through profit and loss is categorised into 
Level 1 of hierarchy.

V.	                      (   
   2    )

V.	 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed 
(It is categorised under Level 2 of fair value hierarchy)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

 
Carrying 
amount

 
Fair value

 
Carrying 
amount

 
Fair value

 : / Financial assets:
	   / Security deposit  2,231.91 1,882.97  2,152.95 1,879.42

	    - 
	 Loans and advances - employees

 1,371.74 1,986.48  1,331.73 1,960.51

  : -
Financial liabilities: Non-current
	   / Lease Liability  31.80  35.61  40.51  47.67 
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 ,    ,       - ,    ,    ,   
          ,     -           

The carrying amounts of Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances - directors, other Loans and 
advances, other current financial assets, trade payables and other current financial liabilities are considered to be the same as 
their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

 36:   
Note 36: Financial risk management 

        ,                  
         ,    ,             
           (FVTPL)      ,     
                
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise finance lease obligations, trade and other payables. The main purpose of 
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade 
and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTPL 
investments in co-operative societies and Mutual Fund. The Company is exposed to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The 
Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks.

I.	   / Credit risk

	     (      )     (       
)      

	 The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its financing 
activities (deposits with banks and other financial instruments).

	    / 	Credit risk management

	       ,                    
   ,               ,       

	 To manage the credit risk, the Company follows a policy wherein the customers are required to make an advance payment 
before procurement of goods. Thus, the requirement of assessing the impairment loss on trade receivables does not arise, 
since the collectibility risk is mitigated.

	                          
	 Bank balances are held with only high rated banks and majority of other security deposits are placed majorly with 

government agencies.

      ,    	 (`  )
Age of receivables that are past due but not impaired 	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars  31  2021  
As at 

31st March 2021 

 31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
6   / Upto 6 months  1,489.64  5,063.87 

6  12  / 6 to 12 months  1.62  448.84 

12  24  / 12 to 24 months  446.46  0.34 

24  36  / 24 to 36 months  0.74  0.03 

36    / More than 36 months  137.07  137.07 

 / Total  2,075.53  5,650.15 
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II. 	   / Liquidity risk						   

	                             
     ,        ,            
  

	 Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a 
reasonable price. For the company, liquidity risk arises from obligations on account of financial liabilities such as finance 
lease, trade payables and other financial liabilities.		  				  

	 ()	    / (a) Liquidity risk management						    

	          -        ,       
                         
      

	 The Company’s corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement. In addition, 
processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company’s 
net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.		

31  2021  / As at 31st March 2021			 

-     	 (`  )

Maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities					      (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 6    6    
1   

1  5  
   

5    

Less than  
6 months

6 months to  
1 year

Between 1 and 
5 years

Beyond  
5 years

Total

  / Trade payables  1,664.70  2,986.81  124.87  8.47  4,784.85 

 
Financial Lease & Others

 -  1.61  43.79  6.43  51.83 

  
Other financial liabilities

 4,577.19  5,775.89  1,553.10  139.12  12,045.30 

 / Total  6,241.89  8,764.31  1,721.76  154.02  16,881.98 

31  2021  / As at 31st March 2020		

-    	 (`  )

Maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities					      (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 6    6    
1   

1  5  
   

5    

Less than  
6 months

6 months to  
1 year

Between 1 and 
5 years

Beyond  
5 years

Total

  / Trade payables  3,463.39  176.98  521.18  9.90  4,171.45 

  / Finance lease  7.17  7.17  35.65  82.11  132.10 

  
Other financial liabilities

 9,312.89  1,072.42  1,648.72  317.86  12,351.89 

 / Total  12,783.45  1,256.57  2,205.55  409.87  16,655.44 
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III.	    / Market risk
	     / Foreign currency risk

	                   (  )      
    ,       ,       ,       
       ,         

	 The company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the company’s operating 
activities due to major overseas sales (i.e. US dollars). Hence, to combat the foreign currency exposure, the company 
follows a policy wherein the sale is made only on receipt of advance from the customers. Thus, the company is not 
exposed to foreign currency risk.

	    / Price risk

	                             
 

	 The company is exposed to price risk from its investment in mutual fund and classified in the balance sheet at fair value 
through profit and loss.

	             ,               
                       

	 To manage its price risk arising from the investment, the Company has invested in the mutual fund after considering it’s 
risk and return profile i.e. the debt profile of the mutual fund indicates that the debt has been given to creditworthy banks 
and other institutional parties.

(`  ) (` in lakh)

 / Sensitivity  31st  2021 
As at 31st March 2021

31st  2020 
As at 31st March 2020

  2%          
Impact on profit after tax for 2% increase in NAV

 167.70  113.87 

  2%          
Impact on profit after tax for 2% decrease in NAV

 (167.70)  (113.87)

 37:   / Note 37: Capital management		

     ,                        
       
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves 
attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder 
value.		

 / Dividends 	 (`  ) (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

(i) 	   / Equity shares
	� 31  2020              

  ` 1013.49  (  ` 463.15) 
	� Final dividend For the year ended 31st March 2020 of ` 1013.49 (PY 

` 463.15) per fully paid share

 11,253.00  4,000.00 

(ii)	   2020-21  2019-20       
(ii) 	 Interim Dividened paid for the financial year 2020-21 & 2019-20

 7,100.00 6500.00

(iii)	            
(iii) 	 Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

 2,371.00  2,253.00 

:- 2019-20    ` 14  2021  2500        
Note:- Dividend of 2019-20 includes ` 2500 lakh paid on 14th June 2021.



143

IREL (India) Limited

71st Annual Report 2020-21

 38:   

Note 38: Segment information

      / Description of segments and principal activities

      -                   
             ,              
     .      -26 / 2015-2020  21-08-2018       
                      /    2019-20  
          ,    2019-20               
 2019-20         : 

The company’s chief operating decision maker - Group of executive directors examines the company’s performance. The 
management has identified the operating segment on the basis of review by chief operating decision maker. For management 
purposes, the Company is organised into business units based on its products i,e mineral division and chemical division. Govt.
of India vide notification no-26/2015-2020 Dt.21-08-2018 has notified that IREL shall act upon as a State Trading Enterprises for 
all exports of Beach Sands Minerals. The operation/ transactions in this regard was initiated during the financial year 2019-20. 
Since the nature of activities are different, hence a new segment is being recognised during the financial year 2019-20. As such 
for the year 2020-21,there are three reportable segments, as follows:

()	  ,  ,      

(a) 	 Mineral division, which comprises of OSCOM, M.K. and Chavara units

()	  ,        

(b) 	 Chemical units, which comprises of MOPP and RED units.

()	      

(c) 	 Trading of Beach Sand Minerals

	�                      ,       
            ,   “     ”  “     
”         ,                  , 
 “      /”        -          
                 

	 Revenue and expenses has been accounted on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. 
Income and expenses, which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable 
basis, have been included under “Unallocable Income” and “Unallocable Expenses” respectively. Assets and Liabilities, 
which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been included 
under “Unallocable Assets/ Liabilities”. Inter-segment transfers are accounted for at competitive market prices charged to 
unaffiliated customers for similar goods.
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 39:     

Note 39: Related party transactions									       

  24 “  ”  ,         -      :

As per Ind AS 24 “Related party Disclosures”, disclosure of transactions with the related parties as defined in the Accounting 
Standard are given below:			 

()	   (   )

(A) 	 Subsidary Company (IREL IDCOL Limited) Incorporated on 18th Jan 2018.

          :	 (`  )

Details of transactions with Subsidary Company are as follows:				     	 (` in lakh)

. 
.
Sr 
No

 / Particulars 31.03.2021   
  

Balance Receivable 
as on 31.03.2021

31.03.2020   
  

Balance Receivable 
as on 31.03.2020

1   / Balance Receivable  25.50 
2       / Share Purchased during the year  58.65 

()	    : (B) Key Management Personnel:							     

 : / Functional Directors:							    

1 	    / Shri D. Singh 				    :	     / Chairman and Managing Director	

2 	  .. / Shri K K Mohanty 			   :	  () / Director (Marketing) 			 

3 	  .  / Shri A. Roy Chowdhury		  :	  () / Director (Finance) 			 

4 	  ..  / Shri V P Yajurvedi			  :	   / Independent Director 			 

5 	  .. / Shri B B Pandian			   :	   / Independent Director 			 

6 	    / Shri Rupender Dhiman		  :	   / Company Secretary 			 

        :

Details of transactions with Independent directors are as follows: 							     

 2020-21           ` 3.07  ( : ` 2.95 )    

An amount of ₹ 3.07 lakh (Previous year : ₹2.95 lakh) was paid to the independent directors towards sitting fees during the year 
2020-21.
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           :	 (`  )

Details of transactions with key management personnel are as follows: 	 (` in lakh)

. .
Sr No

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

1  / Remuneration
    / Short term employee benefits  260.65  262.71 

     / Post employment benefits  39.31  33.71 

    / Long term employee benefits  8.82  (1.70)

  / Termination benefits  -  - 

   / Share based payment  -  - 

  / Total Remuneration  308.78  294.72 
2       

Repayment of loans and advances given
 -  1.71 

3    / Advances given  -  1.28 
4 31     / Outstanding balance as at 31st March:

   / Amount recoverable  -  - 

 -40:     : (         )	 (`  )

Note-40: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)	 (` in lakh)

. .
Sr No

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March, 2021

31  2020 
As at 31st March,2020

1   / Contingent Liabilities
()
(a)

           
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

i)  /   / Claims by Contractors/Suppliers
)	 / a) Chavara 10.38 10.13 

)	  / b) OSCOM 885.11 885.11 
ii)            

Suits filed by employees and others pending in Courts
)  - ,   
a) Employees- Alwaye, MK and OSCOM

137.20 135.56 

)  -   - ,   
b) Others – Forum workers-civil,loading & bagging

189.59 189.59 

iii)          (,   ) 
Higher Compensation for land acquired for the Company 
(Chavara, MK and OSCOM)

494.07 487.68 

iv)   ,            
 
Claim by the Government of Orissa on account of revision of 
ground rent rates, cess and interest thereon

401.31 401.31 

v)  /           
 
Claim by Provident fund authorities for belated payments of 
contract/forum workers dues 

0.00 1.11 

(vi)        
Unexpired value of Letters of credit opened and outstanding

8,625.43 0.00 
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. .
Sr No

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March, 2021

31  2020 
As at 31st March,2020

()
(b) 

 (           )
Guarantees (Unexpired value of Bank Guarantees given on 
behalf of company)

569.44 238.72 

()
(c)

         
Other Money for which company is contingently liable

i)     / Disputed Tax demands
)   / a) Sales tax 126.03 128.92 

)   / b) Entry tax 226.68 226.68 

)   / c) Road Tax 31.57 31.57 
ii)       - 

Claim for differential royalty on rebate – MK
68.75 68.75 

iii)         -
Service tax claim by central excise-Chavara

58.83 58.83 

iv)        - 
Excise Duty & Consequent Sales Tax on Minerals-PENALTY.

986.00 986.00 

v)               
   24  2021      
Demand against Compensation raised by National Green Trabunal 
for Chavara Unit, disposed off vide order dated 24th March 2021. 

 - 29,294.37 

vi)    ,     /   
      
Demand against Compensation raised by Steel & Mines 
Department, Govt.of Odisha pertaining to Environmental 
clearance/ consent to operate issues.

 35,512.59  - 

2   / Contingent Assets
   13   16      - 
Export Duty Refund claim on Ilmenite from Mar'13 to Dec'16-
OSCOM

3,254.37 3,254.37 

3  / Commitments
              
    
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account and not provided for 

13,523.04 18,170.25 

 - 41:    

Note 41: Employee benefit obligations

   ()-19 “ ”            :

As per Ind AS-19 “ Employee Benefits”, the disclosures as defined in the Indian Accounting Standards are furnished below :

()	    : / (a) Short term employee benefits:

	                        

	 The liability towards short term employee benefits is recognised as an expenses for the year in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.
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()    : / (b) Post employment benefits:

i.	   : / Defined contribution plan:		  (`  ) (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

     
Employer’s contribution to Pension Scheme

128.49 150.83 

      
Employer’s contribution to New Pension Scheme

61.48 25.31 

      
Employer’s contribution to Superannuation scheme

550.00 530.47 

ii.	   : / Defined Benefits Plan:

	        : / The Company has the following defined benefits plans:

 / Particulars  /Remarks

 / Gratuity     / Funded through LIC

 () / Provident Fund (PF)      / Funded through Trust

    () 
Post Retirement Medical Scheme (PRMS)

   / Unfunded

	  : / Gratuity:

	                        
        ,                 
                	

	 The employees, gratuity fund scheme managed by a trust is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is 
determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which considers each period of service 
as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

	     : / The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020 
31st March 2020

     / Mortality rate during Employment  (2006-08) 


IALM (2006-08) 
Ultimate

 (2006-08) 


IALM (2006-08) 
Ultimate

  ( ) / Discount rate (per annum) 6.57% 6.59%

       ( )
Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum)

6.57% 6.59%

     ( )
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum)

5.50% 5.50%

    ( )
Rate of employee turnover (per annum)

2.00% 2.00%

  () / Retirement age (years) 60 60
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	�                          
        

	 The expected rate of return considered in actuarial valuation is assumed to be available on risk free investments like PPF 
as the investment is with LIC and list of investments is not available.

	           :	 (`  )
	 Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

      
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year

 11,895.63  11,631.76 

    / Current service cost  161.85  305.14 

   / Interest cost  783.92  888.66 

    -    / Past service cost- non vested benefit  -  - 

    -   / Past service cost- vested benefit  -  - 

 ()/ / Actuarial (gain)/loss  1,516.08  949.01 

   / Liability transferred in  -  2.45 

(  ) / (Liability transferred out)  -  - 

    / Benefits paid  (2,100.27)  (1,881.39)

      
Defined benefit obligation at year end

 12,257.21  11,895.63 

	            	 (`  )
	 Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets:	  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

        
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year

 10,720.39  10,734.09 

  / Interest Income  706.47  820.08 

     / Expected return of plan assets  73.87  (41.40)

   / Employer’s contribution  1,392.43  840.85 

    / Transfer from other Company  -  2.45 

(   ) / (Transfer to Other Company)

    / Benefits paid  (2,100.27)  (1,635.68)

        
Fair value of plan assets at year end

 10,792.89  10,720.39 

     / Actual return on plan assets  780.34  778.68 
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 () 

71    2020-21

	           :	 (`  )
	 Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and obligations:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

    / Present value of obligation  (12,257.21)  (11,895.63)

     / Fair value of plan assets  10,792.89  10,720.39 

          
Unrecognized past service cost at the end of the period

 -  - 

        
Unrecognized transitional liability at the end of the period

 -  - 

      () / 
Net (Liability)/ Asset recognized in the Balance Sheet

 (1,464.32)  (1,175.24)

	        () /  :	 (`  )
	 Actuarial (gain)/Loss recognized during the year:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

    () / 
Actuarial (gain)/Loss on plan assets

 (73.87)  41.40 

   () / 
Actuarial (gain)/Loss on obligation

 1,516.08  949.01 

  / Net Total  1,442.21  990.41 

	       		  (`  )
	 Net Interest cost for Current period	  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

        
Present value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the period

 11,895.63  11,631.76 

(        ) 
(Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Period)

 (10,720.39)  (10,734.09)

    / ()
Net liability / (Asset) at the beginning

 1,175.24  897.67 

   / Interest cost  783.92  888.66 

( ) / (Interest income)  (706.47)  (820.08)

       
Net Interest cost for Current period

 77.45  68.58 
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	             :	 (`  )
	 Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year:	  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

   / Current Service cost  161.85  305.14 

    / Net Interest cost  77.45  68.58 

    / Past service cost  -  - 

(   ) 
(Expected Contributions by the Employees)

 -  - 

    () /
(Gains)/Losses on curtailments and settlements

 -  - 

       
Net effect of changes in Foreign exchange rates
   / Expenses recognised  239.30  373.72 

	        ()    :	 (`  )
	 Expenses recognised in Other comprehensive Income (OCI) for current period:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

      / ()
Actuarial Gains / (losses) on obligation for the period

 1,516.08  949.01 

       
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest income

 (73.87)  41.40 

     
Change in Asset ceiling

 -  - 

 (OCI)       () / 
Net (Income) / Expense for the period recognised in OCI

 1,442.21  990.41 

	     :	 (`  ) 
	 Balance sheet reconciliation:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

   / Opening net liability  1,175.24  897.67 

        
Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

 239.30  373.72 

 (OCI)     / Expenses recognised in OCI  1,442.21  990.41 

    /()
Net Liability / (Asset) Transfer In

 -  - 

   ( )/ 
Net (Liability) / Asset Transfer Out

 -  - 

(      )
(Benefits paid directly by the Employer)

 (245.71)

   / Employer’s contribution  (1,392.43)  (840.85)

      () / 
Net (Liability)/ Asset recognized in the Balance Sheet

 1,464.32  1,175.24 
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71    2020-21

	    : / Investment details:

(  %) (% of investment)

   / Type of Assets 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

    / Government of India Assets  -  - 

  / Corporate Bonds  -  - 

   / Special Deposits Scheme  -  - 

     / Equity shares of listed Companies  -  - 

 / Property  -  - 

  / Insurance fund  100.00  100.00 

 / Others  -  - 

 / Total  100.00  100.00 

	       :	 (`  ) 
	 Net Interest cost for Next year:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

        
Present value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the period

 12,257.21  11,895.63 

(         )
(Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Period)

 (10,792.89)  (10,720.39)

    / ()
Net liability / (Asset) at the beginning

 1,464.32  1,175.24 

   / Interest cost  788.16  783.92 

(  ) / (Interest income)  (691.95)  (706.47)

        
Net Interest cost for Current period

 96.21  77.45 

	             :	 (`  ) 
	 Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss during the Next year: 	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

    / Current Service cost  125.50  161.84 

    / Net Interest cost  96.21  77.45 

(   )
(Expected contributions by the Employees)

 -  - 

  / Net Cost  221.71  239.29 
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	        : 	 (`  )
	 Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: 	 (` in lakh)

          
Projected Benefits payable in future years from the date of 
reporting

31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

1   / 1st Following year  2,749.52  2,335.63 

2    / 2nd Following year  1,715.65  1,456.45 

3    / 3rd Following year  2,432.92  2,096.52 

4    / 4th Following year  1,529.85  2,102.36 

5    / 5th Following year  1,468.76  1,280.23 

 6  10   / Sum of Years 6 to 10  3,456.02  4,004.75 

	  : / Sensitivity Analysis:

	  ,            -           
                        

	 Sensitivity analysis is analysis which will give the movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be true 
on different count. This only signifies the change in the liability if the difference between assumed and the actual is not 
following the parameters of the sensitivity analysis.

(`  ) (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

     
Projected Benefit Obligation on current assumptions

 12,257.21  11,895.63 

    + 1%    
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of discounting

 (400.29)  (409.02)

    -1%    
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of discounting

 438.61  446.79 

     + 1%    
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase

 226.47  303.23 

     - 1%    
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase

 (240.85)  (303.78)

     + 1%    
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee turnover

 54.54  50.67 

     -1%    
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee turnover

 (58.37)  (54.24)
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71    2020-21

	           : 
	 Amounts for the current annual period and previous four annual periods:

(`  ) (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17
   
Present value of obligation

 12,257.21  11,895.63  11,631.76  12,058.44  10,820.06 

    
Fair value of plan assets

 10,792.89  10,720.39  10,734.09  10,850.24  10,191.38 

   / ()
Surplus /(Deficit)in the plan

 (1,464.32)  (1,175.24)  (897.67)  (1,208.20)  (628.68)

  :
Experience Adjustment:
  () / 
On plan liability (gain)/loss

 (73.87)  41.40  (47.21)  (103.97)  (258.34)

    / ()
On plan assets gain/(loss)

 73.87  (41.40)  47.21  103.97  65.01 

	   () : Provident Fund (PF) :

	                         , 
1952                        
      

	 The Company manages provident fund through a provident fund trust for its employees which is permitted under the 
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The plan envisages contribution by employer and employees and 
guaranteed interest at the rate notified by the provident fund authority.

	                             
                          
   , 31  2021  31  2020     

	 The Company has an obligation to fund any shortfall on the yield of the Trust’s investments over the administered interest 
rates on an annual basis. The actuary has provided a valuation for providend fund liabilities on the basis of guidance 
issued by Actuarial Society of India and besed on the below provided assumptions, there is no short fall As at 31st March 
2021 and 31st March 2020.

	                        :

	 The principal assumptions used in determining the present value obligation of interest guarantee under the deterministic 
approach are as follows :

(`  ) (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

  ( ) / Discount rate (per annum) 6.57% 6.59%

  ( ) / Guaranteed return (per annum) 8.50% 8.50%

      ()
Average remaining tenure of investment portfolio (Years)

4.26 Years 5.22 Years
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	          :	 (`  ) 
	 The details of fund and plan assets are given below:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

     / Fair value of plan assets  34,079.67  35,380.64 

(   ) / (Present value of obligation)  (33,509.28)  (34,787.32)

         
Net excess not recognised in books of the Company

 570.39  593.32 

	                

	 The plan assets have been primarily invested in government securities and corporate bonds

	       ():

	 Post Retirement Medical Scheme (PRMS):

	�                (    )   
                  

	 The post retirement medical scheme provides for reimbursement of health care costs (both domicilliary & hospitalisation) 
to employees post their retirement. The reimbursement is subject to an overall ceiling based on cadre of the employee at 
the time of retirement.

	      :

	 The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

      / Mortality Table during employment IALM (2006-08) 
Ultimate

IALM (2006-08) 
Ultimate

     / Mortality Table after employment Indian Individual AMT 
(2012-15)

IALM (2006-08) 
Ultimate

   ( ) / Discount rate (per annum) 6.91% 6.81%

    () / Normal retirement age (years) 60 60 

 ()  ( ) / Attrition rate (per annum) 2.00% 2.00%

    / Medical cost inflation rate 3.50% 3.50%

	�            6.91%            ,    
               6.91 %       .

	 The present values of the future liabilities have been arrived at on the basis of 6.91% interest rate in actuarial valuation, 
assuming that the medical reserve arrived at by this valuation and the future increases thereon will be credited with at least 
6.91% interest rate.
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71    2020-21

	           :	 (`  ) 
	 Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

      
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year

 6,046.21  5,709.06 

    / Current service cost  292.25  184.85 

   / Interest cost  585.56  444.17 

  -    / Past service cost- non vested benefit  3,490.16  - 

  -   / Past service cost- vested benefit  -  - 

   / Liability transferred in  -  - 

(  ) / (Liability transferred out)  -  - 

 () /  / Actuarial (gain)/loss  174.87  94.15 

    / Benefits paid  (843.43)  (386.02)

       / Defined benefit obligation at year end  9,745.62  6,046.21 

	         :	 (`  )

	 Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and obligations:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

     / Fair value of plan assets  -  - 

    / Present value of obligation  9,745.62  6,046.21 

          
Unrecognized past service cost at the end of the period

 -  - 

      / Amount recognized in balance sheet  9,745.62  6,046.21 

	     :	 (`  )

	 Net Interest cost: 	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

        
Present value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the period

 6,046.21  5,709.06 

(        )
(Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Period)

 -  - 

    /( ) / Net liability / (Asset) at the beginning  6,046.21  5,709.06 

   / Interest cost  585.56  444.17 

(  ) / (Interest income)  -  - 

       
Net Interest cost for Current period

 585.56  444.17 
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	            :	 (`  )

	 Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

   / Current Service cost  292.25  184.85 

    / Net Interest cost  585.56  444.17 

Past Service Cost  3,490.16  - 

(   ) 
(Expected contributions by the Employees)

  / Net Cost  4,367.97  629.02 

	        ()    :	 (`  )

	 Expenses recognised in Other comprehensive Income (OCI) for current period:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

       / ()
Actuarial Gains / (losses) on obligation for the period

 174.87  94.15 

   ,    
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest income

 -  - 

    
Change in Asset ceiling

 -  - 

 (OCI)        () / 
Net (Income) / Expense for the period recognised in OCI

 174.87  94.15 

	    :	 (`  )

	 Balance sheet reconciliation:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

   / Opening net liability  6,046.21  5,709.06 

        
Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

 4,367.97  629.02 

 (OCI)    / Expenses recognised in OCI  174.87  94.15 

   ()/ / Net Liability / (Asset) Transfer In  -  - 

   ()/ / Net (Liability) / Asset Transfer Out  -  - 

(      )
(Benefits paid directly by the Employer)

 (843.43)  (386.02)

   / Employer’s contribution

      () /  
Net (Liability)/ Asset recognized in the Balance Sheet

 9,745.62  6,046.21 
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	       :	 (`  )

	 Net Interest cost for Next year:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

         
Present value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the period

 9,745.62  6,046.21 

(        )
(Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Period)

 -  - 

    / () / Net liability / (Asset) at the beginning  9,745.62  6,046.21 

   / Interest cost  673.42  411.75 

(  ) / (Interest income)  -  - 

       
Net Interest cost for Current period

 673.42  411.75 

	             : 	 (`  )

	 Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss during the Next year:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

   / Current Service cost  313.53  198.81 

   / Net Interest cost  673.42  411.75 

(   ) 
(Expected contributions by the Employees)

 -  - 

  / Net Cost  986.95  610.56 

	        :  	 (`  )

	 Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the employer	 (` in lakh)

          
Projected Benefits payable in future years from the date of 
reporting

31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

1   / 1st Following year  607.20  352.81 

2    / 2nd Following year  584.03  346.16 

3    / 3rd Following year  591.73  347.84 

4    / 4th Following year  591.60  350.48 

5    / 5th Following year  591.71  348.34 

 6  10   / Sum of Years 6 to 10  2,849.26  1,679.88 
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	   : / Sensitivity analysis:

	  ,            -           
                        

	 Sensitivity analysis is analysis which will give the movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be true 
on different count. This only signifies the change in the liability if the difference between assumed and the actual is not 
following the parameters of the sensitivity analysis.

(`  ) (` in lakh)

 / Sensitivity 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

     
Projected Benefit Obligation on current assumptions

 9,745.62  6,046.21 

    1%      
Change in liability for 1% increase in discount rate

 (856.81)  (515.85)

    1%     
Change in liability for 1% decrease in discount rate

 1,033.90  613.88 

    1%      
Change in liability for 1% increase in Medical Cost Inflation

 912.32  499.46 

    + 1%      
Change in liability for 1% decrease in Medical Cost Inflation

 (1,370.01)  (417.81)

	           :	 (`  )

	 Amounts for the current annual period and previous four annual periods:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17

   
Present value of obligation

 9,745.62  6,046.21  5,709.06  5,108.60  5,418.80 

    
Fair value of plan assets

 -  -  -  -  - 

  / () 
Surplus /(Deficit)in the plan

 (9,745.62)  (6,046.21)  (5,709.06)  (5,108.60)  (5,418.80)

()	     : / (c) Other Long Term Benefits:

	    / Leave liability

	 i.	    “   ”                  
 

	 i. 	 Leave liability is under “Other long term employee benefit” and is valued actuarially and provided in the books 
accordingly.

(` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

  / Gross liability  7,593.34  7,298.09 
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	 ii.	  :        “    ”         
.58.93  (  ` 65.93)       

	 ii. 	 Resettlement allowance: Resettlement allowance on retirement from the Company is considered as “Other long 
term 51unfunded employee benefit”. The provision amounting to ` 58.93 lakh (previous year ` 65.93 lakh) in the 
books is made based on actuarial valuation.

	 iii.	 -      (LTC):   LTC   .47.77  (  ` 55.83 )    
        

	 iii. 	 Leave Travel Concession (LTC) for non-executives: Provision for LTC amounting to ` 47.77 lakh (previous year 
` 55.83 lakh) in the books is made based on actuarial valuation.

	 : / Notes:

	 i. 	              ,  , ,       
 ,         

	 i. 	 The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

	 ii.	        2020-21     ( )       ` 912.45  ( 
 ` 895.90 ) 

	 ii. 	 The Company estimates that the amount to be contributed to the gratuity fund for the financial year 2020-21 will be 
` 912.45 lakhs (Previous year ` 895.90 lakhs)		

 42:    ()

Note 42: Earnings per share (EPS)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

        / () (`  )
Net Profit / (loss) after tax for the year (₹ in lakhs)

 31,568.85  29,175.91 

      /  (`  )
Profit / loss attributable to equity share holders (₹ in lakhs)

A  31,568.85  29,175.91 

      ()
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (Nos.)

B  1,079,563  1,079,563 

        (₹)
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (₹)

A/B  2,924.23  2,702.57 

    (₹)
Face Value per Share (₹)

 1,000.00  1,000.00 

 43: / Note 43:

   , ̀  87416.24 (  ̀  76332.14 )               ̀  88003.42  
(  ̀  78893.85 )              ,    ̀  587.19 (  - ̀  2561.71) 
 -         (  8 ) 

At the end of the year, provision for tax amounting to ₹87416.24 lakhs (previous year ₹76332.14 lakhs) has been adjusted 
against the total amount of advance tax and TDS aggregating to ₹88003.42 lakhs (previous year ₹ 78893.85 lakhs) and the 
balance amount is included under Non-current tax assets ` 587.19 lakhs (Previous year ` 2561.71) Ref. Note 8
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 44: / Note 44:

    (GoI)                      
      ` 2,112.78  (  ` 2,844.64 ) ‘ ’            
   ` 1228.72  (  2112.78 )                 ` 1228.72  
(  ` 2112.78 )       

The Company has been entrusted with the execution of certain strategic projects on behalf of the Government of India (GoI). The 
entire cost of the said projects is funded by the Government. The amount unspent is booked under current liability is of ₹1228.72 
lakhs (previous year ₹ 2112.78 lakhs).

 45:   :	 (`  )

Note 45: Disclosure of Provisions	  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 01.04.2020   


Closing balance as 
on 01.04.2020

     


Provision made 
during the year

    


Provision adjusted 
during the year

 31.03.2021  
 

Closing balance as 
on 31.03.2021

     - 

Provision for disputed entry tax-
OSCOM 

 67.80  -  -  67.80 

 46: / Note 46:

                            
           ` 315.86  (  ` 315.86 )         , 
         ,            ,  ,   . 29.06.2013 
      ()          ` 668.67     ,     
            ,    (SCN)          
                  

The Company has been entrusted with the execution of a project on behalf of the Government of India. The operations relating 
to this project are being carried on by the Company in its own name. The cash and bank balance of ₹ 315.86 lakhs (Previous 
year ₹ 315.86 lakhs) and other transactions pertaining to this project, though managed by the Company in its name, are not 
incorporated in the annual accounts of the Company, as advised by the Government of India. The Company received Demand 
cum Show-Cause Notice (SCN) dated 29.06.2013 from the Asst. Commissioner of Sales Tax, Mumbai demanding payment 
of Sales Tax, Interest thereon and penalty aggregating to ₹668.67 lakhs relating to this project. On behalf of the Government 
of India, the Company contested the said SCN and the assessment order passed by the assessing authority is set aside. The 
assessing authority is directed to assess afresh.

 47: / Note 47:

1.	     :      ,          ,    
                           
                           

1. 	 Inventory Book Adjustment: In case of bulk finished goods which are to be quantified based on volumetric measurement 
which needs transshipment at various points, a deviation in the physical balance upto the acceptable limit of volumetric 
measurement is adjusted in the books of accounts after obtaining approval from unit head. Any deviation which is more 
than the said limit, adjustment in the book is made with the approval of competent authority. In this regard communication 
to the Units has been sent.
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 () 

71    2020-21

2.	        1947   12 (3)     . 01.07.2018        
 ` 2048.86 (   1884.77  )     

2. 	 Wage settlement u/s 12(3) of ID Act 1947 with workers’ unions has been due w.e.f 01.07.2018 and accordingly a provision 
of ` 2048.86 lakhs (previous year ` 1884.77 lakhs) has been provided in the book.

3.	  1 , 2016                    1 , 2015 ,  
  101    ,         -      ,    
   () , 2014 (IGAAP)   7         133   ,    (GAAP) 


3. 	 Effective April 1, 2016, the Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance 
with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2015 as the transaction date. The 
transaction was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under section 133 
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP.

4.	  19              ,         , 
    ,               ,    
                   ,        
/                /             
 ,   ,          , ,  ,  ,     
                        
                  ,       
              

4. 	 In accordance with the Governments response to the ongoing health crisis caused by the Covid 19 pandemic, the company 
has given top priority to ensure the safety, health and well-being of all the company’s employees, facilities and communities 
across all locations. As a precaution, many employees have been asked to Work from Home to the extent possible. In view 
of the lockdown across the states due to the outbreak of the pandemic, operations in some of the company’s locations 
were temporarly scaled down/ partially shut down in compliance with the directives / orders issued by the local Government 
authorities. Considering the nature of the company’s shareholding, products and markets, as per management’s current 
assessment, there is no significant impact or adjustment required in the financial statements on carrying amounts of 
inventories, intangible assests, trade receivables, investments and other financials assests. The management will continue 
to monitor changes in future economic conditions. Considering the ongoing nature of the pandemic, the eventual outcome 
of its impact may be different from what is estimated as on the date of these Financial Statements.

5.	   13  2021                 

5. 	 The Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by Board of Directors on  
13th July 2021.

 -48 / Note-48	

         /          , : /:   

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with current year’s classifications/
disclosures.
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       
  ..    
  
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 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report of even date attached
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107783W/W100395
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  
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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 () 

71    2020-21

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND 
AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER 
SECTION 143(6) (B) READ WITH SECTION 129 
(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
OF IREL (INDIA) LIMITED FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
The preparation of consolidated financial statements of 
IREL (INDIA) LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2021 in 
accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed 
under the-Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility 
of the management of the company. The statutory auditor/
auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of 
India under section 139 (5) read with section 129 (4) of the 
Act is/are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial 
statements under section 143 read with section 129 (4) of 
the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the 
standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit 
Report dated 13 July 2021.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, 
have conducted a supplementary audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of IREL (INDIA) LIMITED for the year 
ended 31 March 2021 under section 143(6)(a) read with 
section 129(4) of the Act. We conducted a supplementary audit 
of the financial statements of IREL (INDIA) LIMITED but did 
not conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements 
of IREL IDCOL LIMITED for the year ended on that date. 
This supplementary audit has been carried out independently 
without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors 
and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and 
company personnel and a selective examination of some of 
the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has 
come to my knowledge which would give rise to any comment 
upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report under section 
143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the Comptroller &  
Auditor General of India

(Sanjay Kumar Jha)
Director General of Audit 
Environment & Scientific Departments

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 21-09-2021

31     2021    
()       

 , 2013   129 (4)   
  143(6) ()      

    
 , 2013 ()      
   31  2021       
()            
     /   - 
    129(4)     139 (5)   
     129 (4)     143 
           /  
  143(10)          
         13  2021   
          

,   -   ,    
129(4)     143(6)()    () 
  31  2021          
      ()   31  
2021             , 
            
            
             
              
          

             
       143(6)()    
           

          
 

(  )
      
   

 :   
 : 21.09.2021



169

IREL (India) Limited

71st Annual Report 2020-21

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF IREL (INDIA) LIMITED
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of IREL (INDIA) Limited (“the Company”) and 
its subsidiary IREL IDCOL Limited, (the company and its 
subsidiary together referred to as “the group”) which comprise 
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
Comprehensive loss), the Consolidated Statement of Changes 
in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year ended on that date and notes to the consolidated financial 
statements including summary of the significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 
to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration 
of the above named subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs 
of the Group as at 31st March, 2021, the consolidated profit and 
consolidated other comprehensive loss, consolidated changes 
in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on 
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.

        
 ()

    



  () (“”)     

   (       

 “”      )     

     ,  31  2021    , 

      (   ),   

              

          

   (  “  ”   ) 

       

            

     ,      ,  

    , 2013 (“”)  

           ( 

 ) , 2015, (“   “)   

              

 , 2015   133      

   31 , 2021      ,  

     ,       

               

   

   

  ( )   143 (10)   

              

            

             

       ()    

   ,         

,            

            

          

               , 

             
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 () 

71    2020-21

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters: -

1.	 Note number 27 to the financial statements regarding 
the rate per kg. adopted for estimation of revenue 
in regard to compensation / processing charges for 
Nuclear Grade Ammonium Di-uranate (NGADU). The 
Company receives these charges from Government 
of India (GOI) for the NGADU processed by it. The 
rates for such processing are determined by the GOI 
taking into consideration various factors, including 
level of output, actual cost incurred etc. As mentioned 
in the note although the amount claimed is higher than 
the rate at which the revenue is estimated, the rate of 
` 13,557/- (which was approved for F.Y. 2010-11) has 
been consistently taken for initial estimation from F.Y. 
2010-11 to F.Y. 2020-21, since the approved rate is 
usually intimated by GOI after a lag of approximately 
three years. Upon receipt of such approval, the 
differential sum is recognized. Accordingly, GOI has 
approved in FY 2020-21 the rate of ` 16,919/- per kg 
for supplies effected in F.Y. 2016-17 from OSCOM unit 
and the differential impact of ` 125.27 Lakhs has been 
recognized as revenue in the current year.

2.	 As stated in Note No. 10.5 to the consolidated financial 
statements the RED plant at Alwaye has undertaken 
manufacture of ND Pr Oxalate and Oxide (More than 
99% Purity) which has applications in electric cars, 
e-mobility and renewable energy. Finished Goods 
includes 318.69 t (Previous year 184.21 t) having value 
` 5018.66 Lakhs (Previous year 2831.25 Lakhs) of ND 
Pr Oxalate and Oxide. Management has explained that 
inventory of this rare earth product is built up for meeting 
the requirements of e-mobility plan of Government of 
India (GOI) and other strategic reasons. Since it has a 
long shelf life no part of the said inventory is considered 
impaired.

3.	 We draw attention to Note 47.4 to the consolidated 
financial statements, which explains the uncertainties 
and management’s assessment of the financial impact, 
if any, due to the lockdown and other restrictions 
imposed by the Government and condition related to 
the COVID-19 pandemic situation, for which definitive 
assessment of the impact would highly depend upon 
circumstances as they evolve in the subsequent period.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

   
       :
1.	    - ()    / 

             
         .27   
          
()            
            
     ,    ,   
          ,   
             
 , ` 13,557/-   (   2010-11   
   )    2010-11    
2020-21        ,  
           ,  
           , 
       ,    2016-
17         ̀  16,919 /-  
       2020-21      
       ` 125.27      
  

2.	         10.5    
,            
 (99%   )    ,  
  , -    
      ` 5018.66    (  
2831.25 ) 318.69  (  184.21 )  
          
          ()  
-        
             , 
           

3.	       47.4     
,  -19          
         , 
        ,   
,    ,       
            


         

     
       ,     , 
             
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consolidated financial statements of the current period owing to 
events that occurred in the period of the Audit. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. Considering the circumstances under which audit 
has been conducted in the light of lockdown due to Covid-19 
pandemic, we have determined the matters described below 
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
Key Audit Matter Auditor’s response
Significant reliance on 
electronic and other 
evidence in offsite 
audit. In view of the 
lockdown pursuant 
to second wave of 
Covid-19 outbreak in 
India, our audit teams 
which had planned to 
conduct audit at the 
Company’s Plants had 
to conduct the major 
part of the audit from 
Head Office and online 
from remote location. 
As a result, we have 
relied completely on 
digital / electronic or 
other evidence as 
a part of our audit 
process. 

Had we been 
physically present 
at the Company’s 
premises, we would 
have otherwise carried 
out the audit of various 
units through system 
output taken directly 
at site, and we would 
have verified the 
physical copies of 
critical documents.

When undertaking Phase I of the 
statutory audit, our audit teams 
had visited the OSCOM plant and 
carried out on site audit in normal 
course. No significant unexplained 
or irregular transaction had come 
to light in the course of this audit. 
Subsequent to the lockdown 
being effected; based on our 
earlier samples and experience, 
we have carried out the validation 
of the digital/ electronic inputs and 
data and evidence provided by 
the management by performing 
the following procedures:

a)	 Obtaining reports in regard 
to Physical Verification of 
inventory from the Internal 
Auditors and validating 
the same in the manner 
suggested by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of 
India.

b)	 Understanding the process 
implemented by the 
management to convert 
physical documents into 
digital/ electronic version.

c)	 Correlating various 
attributes of the electronic 
or other evidence obtained 
to ensure consistency and 
integrity.

d)	 Getting representations 
from the management 
wherever necessary.

Information other than that in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements forming part of the Annual Report of the 
Company 

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors 
is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the [information included in the Annual report but 

             
              
           ,    
          -19    
           ,  
   ,           
           

    


   

    
    
    
  -19   
     
  , 
    , 
     
     
 ,    
    
     
   
,   
     
       
/  
     
      
     
,     
     
    
   ,  
    
    


      I  
,      
        
         
       
      
    ;  
       , 
      
 /     
         
 : 

)	�      
      
      
     
    

)	�    / 
     
     
  

)	�     
      
     
   

)	�       
  

            
    

            
   [    ,    
         ]   
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does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon]. The Annual report is expected to be made available 
to us after the date of this auditor’s report. Our opinion on the 
financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information identified above 
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. When we read the annual 
report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those 
charged with governance. In the event of such situation arising, 
we shall draw attention of the said matter to those charged with 
governance and if not suitably rectified, to the stakeholders.

Management Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are 
responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated 
financial position, consolidated financial performance, 
consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated 
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in 
accordance with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the 
Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the group are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error which have been used for the purpose of preparation 
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the 
Holding Company as aforesaid. In preparing the consolidated 
financial statements, the respective management and Board 
of Directors of the companies included in the group are 
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management/Board of Director’s either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. The respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the group are responsible for overseeing 
the financial reporting process of the Group.

              

             

               

           ,  

             , 

               

               

,               

  ,            

  ,            

              

             

        

       

             

     ,   ,  

  ,           

       ,    133  

             

             

            

             

      ;      

 ;         ,  

     ,   ,  

            

     ,         

              

     ,         

            

              

,              

   ,         

            

               

        ,       

            

           
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of Consolidated 
Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. As part 
of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

• 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

• 	 Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) 
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company and its subsidiaries 
which are Company incorporated in India, has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

• 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

• 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 

          
              
       ,      
  ,            
         ,    
              
             
        ,      
,              
            
          ,    
            
        :

 	        ,   
    ,        
,          
 ,            
            
          	
          , 
   , ,  ,  
,         

 	            
           
     143 (3) (i)  ,    
             
       ,    
           
  

 	             
         


 	            
            
,           
             
          
 ,           
           
     ,       
            



174

 () 

71    2020-21

events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

• 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• 	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding 
the financial information of the entities or the business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on 
consolidated financial statement. We are responsible 
for direction, supervision and performance of audit of 
financial statements of such entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditor. One other entity included in the 
consolidated financial statements, has been audited 
by other auditors, who remain responsible for direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit carried out 
by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the 
holding Company regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged 
with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance of the holding Company, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.

     ,      
              

 	        ,  
    ,        
          
       

 	            
           
            
      ,     
  ,         
           
        ,      
   ,        
           

          ,  
      ,        
           
   (i)            
           
 (ii)            
       

    ,        
             
    ,        
              
                
      ,      
         ,    , 
          

          ,   
             
             
               
             
      	 ,       
             
              
      
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Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary 
whose financial statements reflect total asset of ̀  102.74 Lakhs/- 
as at 31st March, 2021, total revenues of ` NIL and net cash out 
flows amounting to ` 1.90 Lakhs/- for the year ended on that 
date, as considered in consolidated financial statements. These 
financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose 
reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it 
relates to the amounts and discourse included in respect of this 
subsidiary and our report in terms of sub section (3) of section 
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, 
is based solely on the reports of the other auditor.

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements, and our 
report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is 
not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our 
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and 
on the consideration of report of the other auditor on separate 
financial statements of such subsidiary as was audited by other 
auditor as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph, we report, to 
the extent applicable that:

a) 	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) 	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books and reports of other 
auditors.

c) 	 The Consolidated Balance sheet, Consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Loss, 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by 
this report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

d) 	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 
Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act.

e) 	 The Company being a government Company, the 
provisions of section 164(2) and section 197 are not 
applicable in accordance with the Notification No. GSR 
463 (E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by MCA. Accordingly, 

 

       -   ,  
  31 , 2021   102.74 / -   , 
  `             
` 1.90 /-  ,         
             
 ,             
  ,           143 
  (3)            
  ,         ,    
       

     ,        
   	  ,       
          	   
           

       

   143 (3)    ,    
             
        ,   ’ ’  
    ,     ,    
 ,     :

	 ) 	            
 ,         
          
 

	 )	   ,        
     	    
   ,          
 	       

	 )	         ,   
       ,   
         
          
         

	 ) 	   ,       
 133         


	 .)	       ,     
  05 , 2015   .  463 
()    164(2)   197   
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no reporting in regard to Clause 3(g) and 3 (j) of section 
143 is required.

f) 	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in “Annexure A”.

g) 	 With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor’s 
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:

	 i.	 The Group has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position in its Consolidated 
Ind AS Financial Statements – Refer Note 40 to the 
consolidated financial statements;

	 ii.	 The Group does not have any long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses;

	 iii.	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company and its subsidiary 
Company incorporated in India.

For Pathak H. D. & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration no. 107783W/W100593)

Ashutosh Jethlia
Partner
Membership No.:136007

UDIN: 21136007AAAAJY5289
Place: Mumbai
Date: 13th July, 2021

  ,  143   3 ()  3 ()  
       

	 )	         
         
   ,    “-” 
 

	 )	 (    ) , 2014  
 11         
    ,       
          
 :

	 i.	          
          
  -      40 ;

	 ii.	         
  ,        
   ;

	 iii.	          
          
    

  ..    
 
(  . 107783W/W100593)

  
 
 .:136007

 (UDIN): 21136007AAAAJY5289
: 
: 13 , 2021
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE 

CONSOLIDTAED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
OF IREL (INDIA) LIMITED 

(Referred to in Paragraph 8. 1(f) of the section ‘Report 
on other legal & regulatory requirements’ of our Report 
of even date on accounts of IREL (India) Limited as at  
31st March 2021.)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial 
statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 
March 31 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of IREL (India) Limited (herein after 
refer to as “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company, 
which are companies incorporated in India as of that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanation given to us and based on the consideration 
of the report of other auditor on financials statements of such 
subsidiary audited by such auditor, the Holding company 
and its subsidiary company which are incorporated in India 
have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the respective 
companies considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in 
India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the respective companies 
considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note’) issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 

 ()    
       

     “”
(31  2021   ()      
     ’      
’   8. 1 ()  )

 , 2013 (“”)   143  - 3 
  (i)          



31  2021            
      ,   ()  
    ,         
         -  
 (  “ ”   ))

             
             
             , 
     ,     ,  
    ,        
            
          
            
             
          31 , 2021 
       

       

            

  ,         

           

        ()  

  (’ ’)       

            

            

 ,         , 

   ,        

           
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to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company 
and its subsidiaries internal financial controls with reference 
to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the ‘Guidance Note’ 
on audit of internal financial control over financial reporting 
(“the guidance note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued 
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls. The Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the 
audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of their 
report referred to in the Other Matter paragraph, is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company and its subsidiary internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 

            , 2013  

       ,   

       

   
           
            
         (“ ”)  
      ’ ’    
            
     , 2013   143(10)   
            
             
            
             
             
           

           
            
            
            
    ,        
  ,          
          
             , 
           
 ,        

                
             
    ,        
            
          

       

            
            
            
             
            
  (1)      ,    ,  
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and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Pathak H. D. & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration no. 107783W/W100593)

Ashutosh Jethlia
Partner
Membership No.:136007

UDIN: 21136007AAAAJY5289
Place: Mumbai
Date: 13th July, 2021

             ; 
(2)              
            
       ,       
             
;  (3)      , ,  
             
           

        

         
 ,          
  ,          
           ,  
             
             
          ,    
         

  ..    
 
(  . 107783W/W100593)
			 
  
 
 .:136007

 (UDIN): 21136007AAAAJY5289
: 
: 13 , 2021
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71    2020-21

31  2021      	 (`  )

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2021	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars   .
Note No

31  2021  
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

I.  / ASSETS
1 -  / Non-current assets

,    / Property, Plant and Equipment 2  25,194.11  25,094.21 

  / Intangible assets 3  755.20  780.84 

   / Right-To-Use 3A  24.66  35.32 

  / Capital Advance  -  - 

     / Capital work-in-progress 4  6,687.70  3,916.43 

  / Financial Assets
	 -   / Non-current Investments 5  1.42  1.42 

	   / Bank Balances 5A  5,855.39  3,995.27 

	�        
Other long term Loans & Advances 

6  3,111.04  2,984.53 

	   -   
	 Other Non Current Financial Assets

6A  2,092.08  483.27 

   ()  
Deferred tax assets (net)

7  6,100.15  4,647.25 

-  / Non-current tax assets 8  587.19  2,561.71 

  / Capital Advance 9A  331.12  1,135.27 

 -  / Other non-current assets 9B  234.65  200.34 
 50,974.71  45,835.86 

2   / Current assets
	  / Inventories 10  21,076.71  15,094.10 

	   / Financial Assets
	  / Investment 11  8,385.13  5,693.72 

	    
	 Trade receivables	

12  2,075.53  5,650.15 

	     / Cash and cash equivalents 13  5,806.64  4,090.97 

	     / Other bank balances 14  49,103.59  47,851.45 

	  / Loans 15  11,645.47  10,420.88 

	     
	 Other current financial assets

16  9,685.16  2,270.26 

   / Other current assets 17  11,631.40  8,856.10 

    
Asset Pending for Disposal

17A  2.75  6.93 

 119,412.38  99,934.55 
  / TOTAL ASSETS  170,387.09  145,770.41 

II.    / EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
.  / Equity

   / Equity share capital 18  17,273.00  8,636.50 

  / Other equity 19  99,438.41  87,062.26 

  / Non- controlling interest 19A  35.34  11.17 
 116,746.75  95,709.93 
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 / Particulars   .
Note No

31  2021  
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

.  / LIABILITIES
1  -  / Non-current liabilities

  / Financial Liabilities
 / Borrowings  -  - 
  / Trades Payable  -  - 
()	       
(a) 	 Total Outstanding duest to MSEs

 -  - 

()	      
(b) 	 Total Outstanding dues other than MSEs

 -  - 

 -  
Other non-current financial liabilities

20  51.83  40.51 

- / Non-current provisions 21  15,933.69  11,994.01 
    / Other non-current liabilities 22  -  5,000.00 

 15,985.52  17,034.52 
2   / Current liabilities

  / Financial Liabilities
  / Trade payables 23  4,784.85  4,171.45 
()	       
(a)	 Total Outstanding dues to MSEs

 1,024.32  1,751.34 

()	      
(b)	 Total Outstanding dues other than MSEs

 3,760.53  2,420.11 

   / Other financial liabilities 24  12,045.31  12,351.90 
(a)	       
(a)	 Total Outstanding dues to MSEs

 207.31  360.57 

()	      
(b)	 Total Outstanding dues other than MSEs

 11,838.00  11,991.33 

   / Other current liabilities 25  7,722.13  6,797.45 
  / Current provisions 26  13,102.52  9,705.16 

 37,654.81  33,025.96 
   
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

 170,387.09  145,770.41 

   / Significant accounting policies 1
    / Notes on financial statements 2-48

       
  ..    
  
   : 
107783W/W100395

      
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report of even date attached
M/s Pathak H.D & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:
107783W/W100395

 
 

. 
 ()

 
   

Rupender Dhiman
Company Secretary

A. Roy Chowdhury
Director (F)

D Singh
Chairman & Managing Director

   
 
 : 136007
Shri Ashutosh Jethlia
Partner
Membership Number: 136007
 / Mumbai  / Mumbai
 13  2021 / Dated 13th July 2021  13  2021 / Dated 13th July 2021
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71    2020-21

31  2021            	 (`  )

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021	
(` in lakh)

 / Particulars   .
Note No

31  2021  
For the year ended 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
For the year ended 

31st March 2020 
I.    / Revenue From Operations 27  97,413.17  104,063.39 
II.   / Other Income 28  10,399.15  5,459.88 
III.   (I + II) / Total Income (I + II)  107,812.32  109,523.27 
IV. : / EXPENSES:

      / Cost of materials consumed 29  10,763.35  9,387.99 

     / Purchase of stock in trade 29A  2,849.10  1,922.04 

 , --      -  

Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-
Trade and work-in-progress

30  (6,115.92)  1,234.64 

    / Employee benefits expense 31  27,104.76  25,549.94 

   / Finance costs 32  45.23  4.78 

   

Depreciation and amortization expense

2  3,968.37  4,145.98 

  / Other expenses 33  27,689.61  26,984.90 

  (IV) / Total Expenses (IV)  66,304.50  69,230.27 

V.        / () (III-IV)
Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)

 41,507.83  40,293.00 

VI.   / Exceptional Items  -  - 
VII.     / () (V-VI) 

Profit / (loss) before tax (V-VI)
 41,507.83  40,293.00 

VIII.   : / Tax Expense: 34
(i)   / Current Tax  10,991.30  11,617.62 

(ii)   / Deferred Tax  (1,049.19)  (498.93)
 9,942.11  11,118.69 

IX.      / () (VII-VIII)
Net profit / (loss) After Tax (VII-VIII)

 31,565.73  29,174.31 

X.    / Other Comprehensive Income  (1,200.37)  (810.13)

. 
A.

(i)	           
(i)	 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

31  (1,604.08)  (1,082.61)

(ii)	�            
  

(ii)	� Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss

34  403.71  272.48 

.

B.

(i)	�           
	

(i)	 Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(ii)	�            

  
(ii)	� Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified 

to profit or loss
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 / Particulars   .
Note No

31  2021  
For the year ended 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
For the year ended 

31st March 2020 
XI.       (IX+X) (    

 ()    )
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X)
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive 
Income for the period)

 30,365.36  28,364.18 

XII.         
Profit for the year attributable to

 31,565.73  29,174.31 

(i)    / Owner's of the Company  31,566.79  29,175.10 

(ii)   / Non Controlling Interest  (1.06)  (0.79)
XIII.         

Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to
 (1,200.37)  (810.13)

(i)    / Owner's of the Company  (1,200.37)  (810.13)

(ii)   / Non Controlling Interest  -  - 
XIV.         

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 
attributable to
(i)    / Owner's of the Company  30,366.42  28,364.97 

(ii)   / Non Controlling Interest  (1.06)  (0.79)
XV.       (IX + X) (    

 ()    
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X)
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive 
Income for the period)

 30,365.36  28,364.18 

XII.    : / Earnings per equity share: 42
     (` ) / Basic & Diluted (in `)  2,923.94 2,702.42

    (` ) / Face Value per Share (in `)  1,000.00  1,000.00 

   / Significant accounting policies 1
    / Notes on financial statements 2-48

       
  ..    
  
   : 
107783W/W100395

      
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report of even date attached
M/s Pathak H.D & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:
107783W/W100395

 
 

. 
 ()

 
   

Rupender Dhiman
Company Secretary

A. Roy Chowdhury
Director (F)

D Singh
Chairman & Managing Director

   
 
 : 136007
Shri Ashutosh Jethlia
Partner
Membership Number: 136007
 / Mumbai  / Mumbai
 13  2021 / Dated 13th July 2021  13  2021 / Dated 13th July 2021
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 () 

71    2020-21

31 , 2021          	 (`  )

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 � (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021  
For the year ended  

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
For the year ended 

31st March 2020
. 
A.

    
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
           
Net Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and 
Loss

 41,507.83  40,293.00 

   /    :
Adjustment for Non Cash Income/Expenses :
    / Rent and other expenses  -  - 

       
Interest Income on unwinding of SD

 -  (79.32)

      / Interest income on LC Sales  75.39  - 

        
Reclassification of actuarial losses to Other comprehensive 
income

 (1,604.08)  (1,082.61)

    
Depreciation and amortization expense

 3,968.37  4,145.98 

   / Lease Payment  2.73  14.21 

,       
Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment

 7.81  0.50 

    / Loss on Non Moving Stores  29.10  93.06 

  /    
Write-off of Stores Current Assets/ Advances

 -  - 

     
Provision for Pay Revision of Executives

 -  - 

-     
Amortization of pre-paid staff loan

 36.64  38.41 

      
Provision for PRP for executives

 1,076.01  1,861.46 

   
Provision for Employees Benefit Medicals

 4,005.50  622.98 

    
Provision for Assets Retirement Obligation

 346.84  162.65 

     ()
Gratuity (Differentials) for retired employees

 -  301.93 

    / Gratuity Fund Gap  (1,153.13)  (712.84)

        
Salary provision for pay revision of workmen

 2,048.86  1,884.77 

,      
Provision for debts, assets and advances

 162.47  - 

      
Excess Provision no longer required 

 (570.31)  (251.56)
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 / Particulars 31  2021  
For the year ended  

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
For the year ended 

31st March 2020
          
Provision For Bad and Doubtful debts/S. Credit balance 
written back

 (5,000.00)  - 

         
Interest Income on Deposit with banks and other Institutions

 (3,046.11)  (1,226.01)

      
Dividend Income from Mutual Fund

 (407.34)  (376.45)

,       
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

 (9.77)  (31.03)  (5.17)  5,391.99 

      
Operating profit before working capital changes

 41,476.81  45,684.99 

   :
Changes in working capital:
 / Inventories  (6,011.73)  917.74 

    / Trade and other receivables  (19.30)  (4,880.10)

    
Trade payables and other liabilities

 2,635.44  2,862.76 

      
Operating profit after working capital changes

 38,081.21  44,585.39 

    (  ) 
Direct taxes paid (net of refund)

 (9,016.78)  (11,867.45)

    
Net Cash From Operating Activities

 29,064.44  32,717.95 

.
B.

    
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
,     
Sale of property, plant and equipment

 16.32  7.34 

  ,     /
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including CWIP

 (6,086.28)  (5,348.59)

    / Investment in Short Term Deposits  (62,105.04)  (71,257.12)

    
Withdrawal/(Investment) in Short Term Deposits

 51,021.31  60,747.29 

    (LCP) 
Investment in Mutual Fund (LCP)

 (57,480.00)  (70,504.61)

   /  (LCP)
Redemption in Mutual Fund (LCP)

 55,195.94  67,477.00 

    / Investment in Subsidiary  (58.65)  - 

  / Interest Received  1,417.48  2,291.42 

    
Net Cash From Investing Activities

 (18,078.92)  (16,587.26)

.
C.

    
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
   / Dividend paid  (9,353.00)  (10,500.00)

     
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid

 -  (2,158.31)
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 / Particulars 31  2021  
For the year ended  

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
For the year ended 

31st March 2020
  / Capital Advances  -  (905.28)

    / Lease payment out of principal  -  (9.12)

     / Lease Payment out of Interest  -  (5.09)

       / Interest Income on LC Sales  -  - 

    / Issue of share Capital  83.15  - 

     
Net Cash from Financing Activities

 (9,269.85)  (13,577.79)

       /()( +  +)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(A+B+C)

 1,715.67  2,552.89 

      
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

 4,090.97  1,538.08 

      
Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

 5,806.64  4,090.97 

     :
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
          
Balances with banks in Current accounts and other short 
term deposits

 5,806.04  4,089.58 

   / Cash on hand  0.60  1.39 

       
  ..    
  
   : 
107783W/W100395

      
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report of even date attached
M/s Pathak H.D & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:
107783W/W100395

 
 

. 
 ()

 
   

Rupender Dhiman
Company Secretary

A. Roy Chowdhury
Director (F)

D Singh
Chairman & Managing Director

   
 
 : 136007
Shri Ashutosh Jethlia
Partner
Membership Number: 136007
 / Mumbai  / Mumbai
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.	   
A. 	 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

1.	 31  2021           � (`  )
1.	 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 	 (` in lakh)

1  2020       
    

  

 2020  : 
   

2020-21   
    



31  2021  

Balance at April 1, 2020 Changes in Equity 
Shares Capital 

due to prior 
period errors

Restated Balance 
at April 2020

Changes in Equity 
Shares Capital 
during 2020-21

Balance at 
 31st March 2021

8636.50 0.00  8,636.50 8636.50  17,273.00 

2.	 31 , 2020           
2.	 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

(`  )/(` in lakh)

1 , 2019        
    

 

 2019   
 

2019-20   
    



31  2020  
 

Balance at April 1, 2019 Changes in Equity 
Shares Capital 

due to prior period 
errors

Restated Balance 
at April 2019

Changes in Equity 
Shares Capital 
during 2019-20

Balance at 31st 
March 2020

8636.50 0.00  8,636.50 0.00  8,636.50 
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Note-1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

1. 1 	 (i) 	 Basis of Accounting:

		  The financial statements are prepared under 
historical cost convention except for certain 
financial assets and liabilities which are measured 
at fair value in accordance with the generally 
accepted accounting principles in India on an 
accrual basis and comply with provisions of the 
Companies Act 2013 read with Ind AS notified 
under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and other statutory 
guidelines as applicable.

 	 (ii)	  Basis of Consolidation:

		  The consolidated financial statements incorporate 
the financial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiaries (collectively referred as “the Group”). 
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of their 
acquisition, being the date on which the Company 
obtains control and continue to be consolidated 
until the date that such control ceases.

		  The consolidated financial statements are 
prepared using uniform accounting policies 
consistently for like transactions and other events 
in similar circumstances and are presented to 
the extent possible, in the same manner as the 
Company’s standalone financial statements 
except otherwise stated.

		  The consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared by combining the financial statements 
of the Company and its subsidiaries on a line-
by-line basis by adding together the book values 
of like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, 
expenses and cash flow relating to intra-group 
transactions and unrealized profits. Unrealized 
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction 
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset 
transferred.

		  Profit or loss and each component of other 
comprehensive income are attributed to the 
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income 
is attributed to the owners of the Company and 
to the non-controlling interests even if this results 
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit 
balance.

  -1:    :

1. 1	 (i)	    :

		�            

,          

           

  , 2013   133     

  (  ) , 2015   

, 2013         

-       

         

	 (ii)	     :

		           

(   “”       ) 

          

       ,    

           

           

		           

          

      :     

 ,          

   

		          

       -- 

  , , , , ,   

     ,  -  

         

   ,       

    ,         

   

		             

    -     

           

-       ,   

 -      



192

 () 

71    2020-21

	  (iii)	 Use of Estimates:

		  The presentation of financial statements requires 
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect 
the reported amount of assets and liabilities on 
the date of financial statements and the reported 
amount of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Differences between the actual 
results and estimates are recognized in the period 
in which the results are known /materialized.

	 (iv) 	 Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements:

		  The preparation of financial statements requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions in the application of accounting 
policies that affect reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates. Continuous 
evolution is done on the estimation and judgments 
based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized prospectively.

		  Information about critical judgments in applying 
accounting policies, as well as estimates and 
assumptions that have the most significant effect 
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year, are included in the 
following notes:

		  a)	 Measurement of defined benefit obligations-
Note 41

		  b)	 Measurement and likelihood of occurrence 
of contingencies and provisions-Note 40 & 
45

		  c)	 Recognition of deferred tax assets-Note 34

		  d)	 Fair value measurement & estimates- Note 
35

1.2 	 Property, Plant and Equipment:

	  a) 	 (i) 	 All items of property, plant and equipment 
(PPE) are stated at their historical cost 
net of recoverable taxes less accumulated 
depreciation / amortization and impairment 
loss, if any. The cost of tangible assets 
comprises of the acquisition cost and any 
attributable cost of bringing the assets to its 
working condition for its intended use.

	  (iii)	    :

		            
          
          
          
         
           
  /   

	 (iv)	      :

		       , ,   
           
    ,      
         
          
          
  ,        
        
    

		             
 ,         
         
           
,      :

		  ()	    -  41

		  ()	        
  -  40  45

		  ()	     -  34

		  ()	      -  35

1.2	 ,    :

	 )	 (i) 	� ,    ()    
     /   
,   ,     
         
        
          
 
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			   Subsequent expenditure incurred on 
assets put to use is capitalized only when 
it increases the future benefits from such 
assets beyond its previously assessed 
standard of performance e.g. an extension 
in the asset’s useful life, an increase in its 
capacity, or a substantial improvement in 
the quality of the output or a reduction in 
previously assessed operating costs.

			   Asset acquired by the company which are 
held and used on behalf of Govt. of India 
(GOI) are valued after adjustment by the 
amount of subsidy/reimbursement received 
from GOI. However, a minimum value of 
` 1/- is assigned to all such assets for the 
purpose of control/tracking.

		  (ii) 	 The cost of self-constructed tangible assets 
comprises of the costs directly relating 
to the specific assets and those that are 
attributable to the construction activity in 
general and can be allocated to the specific 
asset.

	 b)	 In respect of assets discarded/scrapped, the net 
book value or the estimated realizable value as 
assessed by the Salvage Committee, whichever 
is lower is retained in the books. At the time of 
disposal of the discarded/scrapped assets, the 
loss/gain with reference to the retained value is 
adjusted in the year of disposal. However, if any 
of these assets is not disposed off within a period 
of three years from the date on which the same is 
discarded / scrapped, the value retained is fully 
written off and charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss on expiry of three years.

	 c)	 Expenditure incurred on assets not owned 
by the Company is charged off to revenue in 
the accounting period of incurrence of such 
expenditure.

	 d)	 Land held for mining includes cost of land, 
compensation for trees & buildings thereon and 
payment towards shifting charges, solatium, 
registration charges, stamp duty, etc. less 
realization, if any.

	 e)	 The estimated cost of dismantling and 
rehabilitation of the assets are capitalized for 
determining the value of asset.

			�             
           
         
          
  ,       
        
    

			�          
()        
       /  
        , 
/         
  ` 1/-    

		  (ii)	        
        
        
          
 

	 () 	        /     
           
    ,    ,  
       /      
         /   
        ,   
      /    
             
             
     :       
      

	 ()	           
            
     

	 ()	         ,    
           
 ,  ,     
    ,   ,     


	 (.)	           
          

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1.3 	 Intangible Assets:

	 Intangible fixed assets are stated at their historical cost 
net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortization 
and impairment loss, if any. The cost of intangible assets 
comprises of the acquisition cost and any attributable 
cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its 
intended use.

	 Expenses including stamp duty, registration fees paid 
to the local Government(s) incurred for the acquisition 
of mining lease rights are recognized as one type of 
intangible asset.

1.4 	 Depreciation/ Amortization:

	 a)	 Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 
is provided for on straight line basis on the basis 
of the useful life of the assets as specified under 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and in the 
manner as specified in Schedule II, except for the 
following on the basis of technical evaluation:

SL 
NO

Particulars 
of Asset

Useful 
life (in 
Years)

Technical 
justification

1 Slurry Pumps 5 Life is technically 
assessed 
considering the 
nature of operation 
and working 
environment.

2 Air 
conditioners

8 Life is technically 
assessed considering 
the corrosive working 
environment.

3 Fire 
extinguishers

6 Life is technically 
assessed considering 
the corrosive working 
environment and 
replacement norms

4 Mobile 
Phones

2 Life is technically 
assessed considering 
the frequent 
technological 
changes.

 		  The depreciation is continued to be charged till 
the net block becomes Nil except retaining Re. 1/- 
as nominal value.

1.3	   :

	            

  ,   ,       

           

            

   

	   ()     ,  

            

            

1.4	  /  :

	 ) 	 ,         

 2013   II    

        II  

     ,     

    :

..   


 
 
( )

 

1   5       
      
     


2  


8       
     
   

3  6 :    
      
     
  

4  


2     
      
     


	      ` 1/-        

       
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	 b)	 Cost of construction of solid waste trench together 
with the cost of the land thereof is depreciated in 
proportion of the quantity filled to the total capacity 
of the trench.

		  If the trenches are put to use before completion 
of construction, the value of work completed 
shall be continued to be shown as Capital wok-
in-progress; necessary provision shall be made 
towards expenditure for proportionate value of 
trench put to use.

		  The cost of sealing of trench shall be depreciated 
in the year of expenditure.

	 c)	 In respect of assets added during the year except 
assets mentioned under (e) below, depreciation is 
charged pro-rata from the date of addition.

	 d)	 In respect of assets discarded/demolished/
destroyed during the year, depreciation is charged 
pro-rata up to the date of such discard/demolition/
destruction.

	 e)	 Assets costing ` 5,000/- or less individually are 
depreciated at 100% retaining Re. 1/- as nominal 
value in the year of addition except in cases 
where the aggregate actual cost of individual 
items of plant and machinery costing ` 5000/- or 
less constitutes more than 10% of the total actual 
cost of plant and machinery.

	 f) 	 In respect of fixed assets whose historic cost has 
undergone a change due to price adjustments, 
change in duties etc., depreciation on the revised 
unamortized depreciable amount is provided 
prospectively over the residual useful life of the 
asset.

	 g) 	 At the end of each financial year, future mineable 
heavy minerals in respect of land held for mining 
are assessed based on technical estimates 
considering available mining lease and/or surface 
lease as the case may be.

		  Diminution in the value of such land is recognized 
in proportion of actual quantity of heavy minerals 
mined during the year to the assessed future 
mineable heavy minerals plus actual quantity of 
heavy minerals mined during the year.

	 )	             
            
             
   

		              
            
    ;       
        

		              
 

	 )	            “.” 
        
         

	 )	 //         
 //     
     

	 .)	  ` 5000/-         
 -        
      10%    
      - ` 5000/-  
            
      ` 1/-    100%  
     

	 )	        , 
        ,   
         
          
  

	 )	            
           
 /           
        

		               
           
           
           
    
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	 h) 	 Amortization of intangible assets is provided for 
on straight line basis as per the followings:

Sl. 
No.

Particulars Amortisation

1 Mining lease/ 
Compensatory 
Afforestation 
Charges

Amortization of expenses 
pertaining to mining lease 
and afforestation charges 
is recognized in proportion 
of actual quantity of heavy 
minerals mined during the 
year to the assessed future 
mineable heavy minerals 
plus actual quantity of heavy 
minerals mined during the 
year taking cognizance of the 
lease period.

2 Computer 
Software

Over a period of 4(Four) years

		  The amortization is continued to be charged till 
the net block becomes Nil.

1.5	  Impairment of Assets:

	 The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date to ascertain whether there is any 
indication of impairment based on external/internal 
factors. If any such indication exists, the Company 
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such 
recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable 
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset 
belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The 
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at 
the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a 
previously assessed impairment no longer exists, the 
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is 
reflected at the minimum of the recoverable amount or 
the carrying amount of the asset that would have been 
determined (net of depreciation or amortization) had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior 
accounting periods.

	 None of the individual asset is capable of generating 
any cash flow without depending on the operation of 
other assets of a production unit, hence a production 
unit as a whole is considered as a cash generating unit.

1.6. 	 Investments and Other Financial Assets:

	 Initial measurement of financial asset & financial 
liabilities is recorded at fair value. Financial assets like 
loans & advances and receivables are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost.

	 )	          

        :

. 
. 

 

1   /  
 

     
     
     
     
     
       
     
    
  

2   4 ()     

	            

1.5	     :

	  -         
     /      
               
           
            
             
              
           - 
              
              
           
          ( 
   )        
      

	            
              
  ,           
       

1.6.	      :

	            
             

      
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1.7	 Investments in Subsidiaries:

	 a)	 In case of subsidiary, the Company records the 
investments in subsidiary at cost less impairment, 
if any.

	 b)	 After initial recognition, the company shall 
determine whether there is any objective evidence 
of impairment as a result of one or more events 
that occurred after the initial recognition of the net 
investment in the subsidiary.

1.8 	 Valuation of Inventories:

	 a)	 Raw material and material in-transit are valued at 
cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.

	 b)	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at 
cost.

	 c)	 Inventory of work-in-progress, intermediate 
products for further processing and finished 
products are valued at cost or net realizable 
values whichever is lower.

	 d)	 Off-grade material / contaminated stock is valued 
at 80 % of lower of cost or market value of normal 
merchandise considering the reprocessing cost.

	 e)	 Stores and spares not moved for more than 3 
years are written down by 95 % of the cost.

	 f)	 The company follows weighted average cost 
formula.

1.9 	 Insurance claims:

	 Insurance claims receivable are accounted for only 
when admitted by the Insurance Company.

 1.10	 Pre-Project Expenditure:

	 Expenditure on feasibility studies, flow sheet 
development, preparation of project report, 
environmental clearance and other related matters on 
new/expansion projects, to the extent not adjusted, 
are grouped under “Pre-Project Expenditure” pending 
capitalization/adjustment/write off.

 1.11	 Transactions in Foreign Currency:

	 a)	 Foreign currency transactions are initially 
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on 
the date of the transaction.

	 b)	 Non monetary items which are carried at historic 
cost denominated in terms of foreign currency 
are reported in subsequent balance sheets 
using the exchange rate prevailing on the date of 
transaction.

1.7	     :

	 )	     ,       
   ,   

	 )	    ,      
           
          
   

1.8 	    :

	 )	  /        
          

	 )	          
   

	 )	    ,      
          
 ,    ,    

	  .)	 -        
  80%        
        

	 )	 3            
       95%    
  

	 )	        

1.9 	   :

	               
      

1.10	     :

	       /     -
     , ,   
,   ,      
    //     
“  ”          
     

1.11	    - :

	 )	            
      

	 )	           
             
         
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	 c)	 Monetary assets and liabilities as on the balance 
sheet date, denominated in foreign currency are 
restated at the rate of exchange as on that date.

	 d)	 Exchange differences either on settlement or on 
restatement:

		  i.	 in the case of foreign currency borrowings 
relating to a ‘Qualifying Asset’, to the extent 
they are regarded as an adjustment to the 
interest costs, are treated as borrowing 
cost.

		  ii. 	 in other cases, are recognised as income or 
as expense in the period in which settlement 
or restatement is made.

1.12	  Revenue Recognition :

	 The Company derives major portion of its revenue 
from sale of heavy minerals and rare earth compounds 
extracted as a part of its business operations and 
production & processing of Nuclear Grade Ammonium 
Di-uranate (NGADU).

	 i.	 Revenue from sales is recognized when 
the performance obligations are satisfied in 
accordance with Ind AS 115. Performance 
obligations are deemed to have been satisfied 
when substantial risk and rewards of ownership 
are transferred to the customer and the customer 
obtains control of the promised goods. In case 
of domestic sales, performance obligations are 
satisfied when goods are dispatched, or delivery 
is handed over to the transporter in accordance 
with the contracts with the customers. In case 
of export sales, performance obligations are 
satisfied based on terms defined in the contracts, 
usually when the goods are shipped onboard 
based on Bill of Lading / Airway Bill or any other 
similar document evidencing delivery thereof. 
Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, 
trade allowances, rebates, GST or any other 
applicable taxes/duties. Adjustments on account 
of out-turn weight are made in revenue on the 
basis of available information from customers.

	 ii.	 Revenue from processing of NGADU is 
recognized on achievement of the acceptable 
degree of concentration of prescribed materials 
and supplies to Government of India (GoI), at the 
rates specified by Department of Atomic Energy, 
GoI.

	 )	          

          

 :    

	 )	      :

		  i)	          

          

      

		  ii)	          

  ,          



1.12	    :

	            

   - ()    

             

      

	 i)	           

115           

           

           

          , 

           

,           

       ,    

          , 

        /   

          

             

  ,  , ,     

  /         

   -       

   

	 ii)	   ,      , 

          

    ,     

   
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1.13	 Bonus/demurrage in respect of load port/discharge 
port, relating to export sales is accounted on the basis 
of available information from customers.

	 Incidental income/expenses relating to statutory 
plantation activity as per mine closure obligation towards 
restoration of mined out land in its original topography 
is considered as other income/expenses for the year, 
hence the plantations are not considered as biological 
assets.

1.14 	 Employee Benefits:

	 A.	  Short term employee benefits:

		  All employee benefits payable wholly within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which 
the employees render the related service are 
classified as short-term employee benefits and 
are charged off in the year in which the related 
service is rendered.

	 B.	 Post employment and other long term 
employee benefits:

		  a)	 Defined Contribution plans:

			   Defined contribution plans are Employees’ 
Pension Schemes covering all employees 
and Superannuation Scheme and new 
pension scheme for specified group of 
employees of the Company. The Company’s 
contribution to defined contribution plans 
are recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss and charged off in the year in 
which the employee has rendered service.

			   The contribution towards Employees’ 
Pension Scheme is remitted to the Provident 
Fund authority concerned under the 
Provident Fund and Other Miscellaneous 
Provisions Act, 1952 and contribution 
towards New Pension Scheme is made 
to designated point of presence. The 
Company has no further liability beyond the 
contribution.

			   The Superannuation Scheme of the 
Company is administered through Life 
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).The 
contribution calculated at the specified rates 
on the monthly salary is remitted to LIC 
on the specified dates. The Company has 
no further liability beyond the contribution 
determined as above.

1.13	       /    

/         

   

	               

          

 /        /   

, :           

1.14	   :

	 ()	    :

		            

12            

          

           

	 ()	        :

		  )	    :

			�           

        

        

        

         

           

   

			�           

     1952   

       

          

         

         

			�          

 ()        

        

         

          

 
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		  b)	 Defined Benefit Plans:

			   i)	  Gratuity

				�    The company operates a gratuity 
scheme for employees and 
contributes to Life Insurance 
Corporation of India (LIC) towards 
meeting the gratuity obligation.

			   ii)	 Provident Fund

				�    The Company makes specified 
monthly contributions towards 
provident fund to a trust administered 
by the Company. The interest payable 
by the trust to the members every year 
is being notified by the Government. 
The Company has an obligation 
to make good the shortfall, if any, 
between the return on investments of 
the trust and the notified interest.

			   iii)	 Post Retirement Medical Scheme.

				�    The Company operates a Post 
Retirement Medical Scheme covering 
the past employees and the benefits 
are defined.

		  c)	  Other Long-term Employee Benefits:

			   Entitlements to earned leave and sick leave/
half pay leave are recognized when they 
accrue to employees. While annual leave 
can be either availed or encashed subject 
to restriction on the maximum number of 
accumulation of leaves, sick leave/ half 
pay leave can only be availed and can not 
be encashed during service. However, the 
entire accumulated earned leave, sick / 
half pay leave subject to eligibility, can be 
encashed while leaving service.

			   The Company determines the liability for 
the Post employment and other long term 
benefits every year on actuarial valuation 
wherever mandated.

			   Actuarial gain/loss in respect of benefit 
plans are taken to Other Comprehensive 
Income.

1.15 	 VRS Compensation:

	 Compensation paid to VRS optees is charged to 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the same year in which 
VRS optees are relieved.

		  )	    :

			   (i) 	 :

				�          
         
      

			   (ii)	   :

				�           
       
         
        
         
    ,   ,   
    

			   (iii) 	     :

				�           
      
       
 

		  )	     :

			�        /   
          
        
        
          
 ,  /    
          
         
 ,    ,   
        


			�           
         
     

			�           
   /       
   

1.15 	  :

	             
            
       
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1.16	  Royalty:

	 Royalty on the minerals is charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on the basis of production. However, 
payment is made on the basis of dispatches from the 
factory including losses/shortages of minerals/captive 
consumption. Royalty on closing stock is provided on 
the basis of domestic sale/ net realizable value.

1.17 	 Research and Development:

	 Expenses on Research and Development (R&D) other 
than expenditure on acquiring fixed assets are charged 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. R&D production 
is included in value of finished goods only when the 
products are transferred to Stock-in-trade/stores.

1.18	 For legacy issue - Excise Duty:

	 a)	 In case of excisable finished products, excise duty 
is accounted for as and when becomes due.

	 b)	 Excise duty on sales is presented as part of 
expenses in statement of profit and loss

1.19 	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets:

	 1.	 Provisions are recognized only when it has a 
present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of past event and it is probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation and when a 
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation 
can be made.

		  Provisions are measured at the present value of 
management’s best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the 
end of the reporting period. If the effect of time 
value of money is material, provision is measured 
in present value in a pre-tax rate. The change in 
the provision due to unwinding of discount rate is 
recognised as interest expense.

	 2. 	 In the event of:

		  i.	� any possible obligation that arises from past 
events and the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non 
occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the 
Company; or

1.16	   :

	             

     ,   //  

            

/            

1.17	   :

	            

             

            

        /    

 

1.18	       -  :

	 )	 -         

          

	 )	               

     

1.19	 ,      :

	 1. 	            

        

            

          

         

		           

          

            

     ,     

 -            

          

	 2.	    

	 i)	          

           

          

       , 
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		  ii.	� any present obligation that arises from past 
events because:

			   a)	� it is not probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation;

				    or

			   b) 	� a reliable estimate of the amount of 
obligation cannot be made.

			�   No provision is recognized, but such 
obligations are disclosed in the notes as 
Contingent Liabilities.

	 3. 	 Contingent assets are not recognized but are 
disclosed in the financial statements, where an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable, a brief 
description of the nature of the contingent assets 
is being disclosed at the end of the reporting 
period and where practicable, an estimate of their 
financial effect.

1.20 Rectification of Error in booking of Income & 
Expenses of earlier years.

	 1.	 Expenditure / Income relating to prior periods 
arising in current year as a result of errors or 
omissions not exceeding ` 10,00,000/- or 1% of 
operating revenue whichever is higher in each 
case shall be treated as expenditure / income of 
the current year.

	 2.	 The effect of any expenditure exceeding the 
noted limit will be considered for reinstatement of 
the opening balance sheet by way of adjustments 
in retained earnings.

1.21 	 Provision for Current tax and Deferred Tax:

	 1.	 Provision for current tax is made after taking into 
consideration the provisions of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961.

	 2.	 Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the 
liability method, on temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates 
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the end of the reporting period and 
are expected to apply when the related deferred 
income tax asset is realized or the deferred 
income tax liability is settled.

		  ii)	         :

			   )	�         
         
     , 


			   )	�       
     ,

			            
  ,       
       

	 3. 	          
      ,     
  ,       
           
     ,      
     

1.20 	            :

	 1.	     - -    
         /, 
` 10,00,000/-     1%   
 ,             
   

	 2.	            
           
     

1.21	         :

	 1.	  , 1961        
      

	 2.	           
            
      ,   
           
       ( ) 
            
           
         
         
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	 3.	 Deferred tax assets are recognized for all 
deductible temporary differences and unused 
tax losses only if it is probable that future 
taxable amounts will be available to utilize those 
temporary differences and losses.

	 4.	 Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit 
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognized in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, respectively.

1.22	 Cash and cash equivalents:

	 All financial instruments, which have original maturities 
of three months or less from the date of purchase and 
also financial instruments which are readily convertible 
into cash without significant loss are considered ‘cash 
equivalents’. Those financial instruments pledged 
as securities or under lien for any purpose, are not 
considered cash equivalents.

1.23	 Expenses in respect of Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR)

	 In pursuance to the CSR policy of the Company, at least 
two percent of the average net profits of the Company 
made during the three immediately preceding financial 
years is spent during the year towards the activities 
identified in this regard.

1.24	 Borrowing costs:

	 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition/ 
construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part 
of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one 
that takes substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to 
revenue.

1.25	 Job Contract transactions:

	 In case of Job work undertaken on “cost plus profit” 
basis, reimbursement of cost and the element of profit 
are recognized at the appropriate rate and /or value 
as the case may be on completion of the contractual 
obligation as per the terms of the contract.

1.26	 Other Income:

	 Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis 
taking into account the amount outstanding and the 
interest rate applicable. Dividend is recognized when 
the right to receive is established.

	 3.	          
        ,   
           
        

	 4.	            
  ,         
         ,   
:           


1.22	      :

	   ,         
              
          ,  ‘ 
           
         ,   
    

1.23 	   ()    :

	       ,      
               
             
  

1.24    :

	          /  
  ,         
             
            
          

1.25	     :

	 “  ”         , 
           /   
             
 

1.26	    :

	             ,  
              
           
             
    
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 1.27	 Government projects:

	 Receipts and payments in relation to various projects 
undertaken by the Company on behalf of Government of 
India (GoI) are captured separately and the net balance 
is disclosed in the financial Statements of the Company 
appropriately.

1.28 	 Lease :

	 (I)	 Company as Lessee:

		  Contracts which give the company right to use 
an Asset, are accounted in line with provisions of 
IND AS 116, if recognition criteria as specified are 
met. Lease payments associated with Short term 
leases and leases in respect of low value assets 
are charged off as expenses on straight line basis 
over lease term or other systematic basis as 
applicable.

		  Value of ‘right of use’ is capitalized at the present 
value of outstanding lease payments for assets 
of significant value at the commencement date. 
Liability for lease is created for an amount 
equivalent to the present value of outstanding 
lease payments. Each lease payment (if 
applicable) is allocated between the liability 
created and finance cost.

		  Right of use of Assets are depreciated over 
shorter of asset’s useful life and the lease term 
on straight line basis. The lease payments are 
discounted using average market rate of interest.

	 (II)	  Company as Lessor:

		  In case of Finance Lease, amount due from 
lessee are recorded as receivables as company’s 
net investment in the leases. Each lease payment 
is allocated between receivable & finance income.

		  Operating Lease income are recognized over 
lease term over straight line basis except when 
the escalations are due to general inflation or 
otherwise justified.

1.27	   :

	   ()         
           
            
 

1.28	  :

	 (I)	     :

		            
 ,     116 (IND AS 116)  
      ,   
            
           
           
       

		  ’  ’        
           
           
            
  (  )       
     

		           
            
           
           

	 (II)	      :

		      ,          
              
           


		             
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Notes:

1. 	 Leasehold Land

	 a) 	 Excludes 21.832 acres (previous year 21.832 
acres) of land at Orissa Sands Complex (OSCOM) 
site, possession of which has been taken over by 
the Company, but the compensation amount is 
not decided and formalities for transfer of lease 
hold land rights have not been completed.

	 b) 	 Includes 244.436 acres (previous year 244.436 
acres) of land in Odisha acquired by the Company 
from the Government of Odisha on lease under 
second phase. The 475.436 acres of land was 
transferred at a premium of ` 118.86 lakhs by 
the then Tahsildar to the Company’s name by an 
order dated 30-12-1992. The Revenue authorities 
had since on 12-04-2002 observed that the 
transfer of this land was irregular & void ab-initio 
and have quashed the earlier order of Tahsildar. 
Out of 475.436 acres of land, 231 acres of mined 
out land had been taken over by the Government 
of Odisha vide collector order dated 22-04-2002. 
The Company has sought refund of aforesaid 
amount (`118.86 lakhs) from the Govt. of Odisha 
or alternatively to allot equivalent land for mining 
purpose.

2. 	 Freehold Land

	 a) 	 Includes `1/- (previuos year `1/-) towards approx. 
24.26 acres land received free of cost from the 
Government of Kerala at Alwaye.

	 b) 	 Includes 23.77 acres (previous year 24.86 acres) 
of land at Chavara in Kerala agreed to be given 
free of cost to the landlords from whom land is 
acquired on completion of certain formalities.

	 c) 	 Includes `30.36 lakhs (previous year `30.36 
lakhs) deposited as directed by the special 
Tahasildar (LA), KMML, Chavara towards 
enhanced compensation for the land acquired by 
Chavara Unit.

	 d) 	 Includes a patta land of 4.75 acres (previous 
year 4.75 acres) assigned to R E Division in the 
year 1964 has been ordered to be resumed back 
by the Government of Kerela. The Company 
has approached the Kerala Government for 
cancellation of the said order.

	 e) 	 Includes Approx. 75.37 cents (previous year 
approx. 75.37 cents) of land situated at 

 :

1.	   :

	 )	    (OSCOM)   21.832 
 (  21.832 )     , 
       ,    
            
    

	 )	     244.436  (  244.436 
)   ,        
       475.436   30-
12-1992         
  ` 118.86        
    12-04-2002     
          
          475.436 
   , 231        
    22-04-2002     
       (` 118.86 )  
           
      

2.	    

	 )	            
24.26    ` 1/- (  ` 1/-)  
 

	 )	     23.7777  (  20.86 
)   ,        , 
         
  

	 )	          
 (), ,      
   ` 30.36  (  ` 30.36 ) 
 

	 )	  1964  . .     4.75  ( 
 4.75 )      ,  
            
             
  

	 )	         75.37 
 (   75.37 )     
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Manavalakurichi Village in Kanyakumari District 
given on lease to the Govt. of Tamil Nadu for 
a period of 30 years from the date of deed i.e. 
11.08.2006 for the construction of bus stand on a 
nominal lease rent of `1000 p.a.

	 f) 	 Includes Approx. 125 cents (previous year 130 
cents) of land in aggregate situated at NK Block 
VI Alappadu area & NK Block II Karithura area 
encroached by some persons, the Company has 
taken legal recourse to clear such encroachment.

	 g) 	 Includes Approx. 62.450 acres (previous year 
62.45 acres) of land at OSCOM in Odisha for 
which title is not in favour of the company.

	 h) 	 Includes Approx. 0.81 Cents (previous year 0.81 
Cents) of land at RED - Aluva unit for which title 
is not traceable. However, name of the Company 
is recorded in land revenue record of Govt. of 
Kerala.

	 i) 	 Includes Approx. 4.99 acre (previous year approx. 
4.99 acre) of land situated at Manavalakurichi 
Village in Kanyakumari District given on lease to 
Govt. of Tamil Nadu for a period of 30 years from 
the date of deed i.e. 01.10.1990 for TNEB on a 
nominal lease rent of ` 8089 p.a.

3. 	 Buildings

	 a) 	 Includes cost of residential and other buildings 
at Mumbai the possession of which was handed 
over to the Company on payment of ` 53.43 
lakhs (previous year ` 53.43 lakhs) and for which 
execution of conveyance/transfer documents in 
favor of the Company is pending.

	 b) 	 Includes shares of ` 0.02 lakhs (previous year 
` 0.02 lakhs) in various Co-Operative Housing 
Societies. Number of the shares held by the 
Company are 35 at a cost of `50 each.

	 c) 	 Excludes Godown at IGCAR, Kalpakam costing 
` 80.15 lakhs (Previous year ` 80.15 lakhs), the 
entire cost is met out of funds received from the 
Government of India.

	 d) 	 Includes `5/- (Previous year ` 5/-) being amount 
retained towards Monazite godown / trenches at 
MK and OSCOM, the cost of which is met out of 
funds received from Government of India `73.76 
lakhs (Previous year `73.76 lakhs).

	 e) 	 Includes `1/- (Previous year `1/-) being amount 
retained towards thorium silo at R.E.Division, the 
cost of which is met out of funds received from 
the Government of India `122.33 lakhs (Previous 
year ` 122.33 lakhs).

. 11.08.2006  30      ` 1000 
             
       .

	 )	    VI      II 
     125  (  130 
)         
  ,        
        .

	 ) 	      62.45  (  
62.45 )   ,      
   

	 )	     -     0.81  
(  0.81 )   ,   
     ,      
 -    

	 ) 	          
4.99  (   4.99 )    
             
 30       01.10.1990  
  8089         

3.	 

	 )           
,     ` 53.43  (  
` 53.43 )          
      /     
 

	 )	      ` 0.02  ( 
 ` 0.02 )         
    ` 50    35  

	 )	  (IGCAR)    ,  
  ` 80.15  (  ` 80.15 ),  
          .

	 )	  ` 5/- (  ` 5/-)     
  /        , 
       ` 73.76  
(  73.76 )    

	 )	     ` 1/- (  ` 1/-)  
       ,   
     ` 122.33  (  
` 122.33 )    
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	 f) 	 Includes cost of `151.41 lakhs (Previous year 
` 151.41 lakhs) being value of the housing 
complex at Manavalakurichi unit which has been 
constructed in a prohibited area without the 
required permission from various authorities.

	 g) 	 Includes building costing ̀  162.06 lakhs (Previous 
year `162.06 lakhs) being value of THRUST 
project and valued at ` 7/- (Previous year `7/-) as 
the entire cost is met out of funds received from 
the Government of India.

	 h) 	 Includes cost of Bhubaneshwar co-ordination 
centre amounting to ` 21.36 lakhs (previous year 
`21.36 lakhs) constructed on leasehold land 
provided by Government of Odisha.

	 i)	 Includes cost of OSCOM housing colony 
amounting to `346.63 lakhs (previous year  
` 346.63 lakhs) constructed partly on leasehold 
land.

	 j)	 Includes cost of improvement of the Registered 
Office building of the Company amounting to 
`26.07 lakhs (previous year ` 26.07 lakhs), 
accumulated depreciations amounting to ` 26.07 
lakhs (previous year ` 26.07 lakhs) which is taken 
on lease from M/s ECIL, a PSU under DAE, 
Govt. of India for a period of 20 years against a 
total non-interest bearing deposit amounting to 
`1069.20 lakhs alongwith a lease rent of `1000 
p.a. The lease has been expired in the month of 
February 2020, pending for renewal.

4.	 Roads

	 Includes roads costing ` 2.98 lakh (Previous year  
` 2.98 lakh) being the value of THRUST project valued at  
` 1/- (Previous year `1/-) as the entire cost is met out of 
funds received from Government of India.

5.	 Plant and Machinery

	 a) 	 Includes Plant and Machinery costing ` `743.92 
lakhs (Previous year ` 743.92 lakhs) being value 
of the THRUST Project and valued at `126/- 
(Previous year ` 126/-) as the entire cost is met 
out of funds received from the Government of 
India.

	 b) 	 Includes Plant and Machinery costing ` 66.86 
lakhs (Previous year `66.86 lakhs) at OSCOM 
and valued at ` 5/- (Previous year ` 5/-) as the 
entire cost is met out of funds received from the 
Government of India.

	 )	          
` 151.41  (  ` 151.41 )   
 ,        
       

	 )	     ̀  162.06  (  ̀  162.06 
),      ` 7/- (  
` 7/-)   ,       
      

	 )	            
` 21.36  (  ` 21.36 )    
      .

	 )	       ` 346.63  
(  ` 346.63 )      
    

	 )	           
` 26.07  (  ` 26.07 )  , 
 , )         
 ` 26.07  (  ` 26.07 ) ,  
  ,        
         20    
 ,        ` 1069.20 
     ` 1000      
           

4.	 

	  ̀  1/- (  ̀  1/-)       
    ` 2.98  (  ` 2.98 )   
            
     .

5. 	   

	 )	        ̀  743.92  (  
` 743.92 )        
    ` 126/- (  ` 126/-)  
         

	 )	    ` 66.86  (  ` 66.86 
)    ` 5/- (  ` 5/-)   
          
       
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6. 	 Furniture and Fixtures

	 Includes furniture & other equipments costing `25.72 
lakhs (Previous year ` 25.72 lakhs) at R.E. Division 
& MK and valued at `32/- (Previous year ` 32/-) as 
the entire cost is met out of funds received from the 
Government of India.

7. 	 Motor Vehicles

	 Includes car costing `20.81 lakhs (Previous year  
` 20.81 lakhs) at OSCOM and valued at ` 1/- (Previous 
year ` 1/-) as the entire cost is met out of funds received 
from the Government of India.

8. 	 Office Equipments

	 Includes Air Conditioning & Office equipments costing 
` 20.36 lakhs (Previous year ` 20.36 lakhs) at OSCOM 
and valued at ` 2/- (Previous year `2/-) as the entire 
cost is met out of funds received from the Government 
of India.

9. 	 Computers and data Processing

	 Includes computers costing `1.46 lakhs (Previous year 
`1.02 lakhs) at R.E.Division, OSCOM, and valued at  
` 5/- (Previous year ` 3/-) as the entire cost is met out of 
funds received from the Government of India.

10.	  Laboratory, Dispensary and R&D Equipments

	 Includes laboratory equipment costing ` 359.20 lakhs 
(Previous year `224.88 lakhs) installed in R.E. Division 
& OSCOM and valued at ` 118 (Previous year ` 97) 
as the entire cost is met out of funds received from the 
Government of India.

11. 	 Electrical Installation & Equipments

	 Includes Electrical Installation and Equipments costing  
` 37.73 lakhs (Previous year ` 37.73 lakhs) being value 
of the THRUST Project and valued at `10/- (Previous 
year ` 10/-) as the entire cost is met out of funds 
received from the Government of India.

6.	   

	  ..       ` 25.72  
(  ` 25.72 )    ` 32/- (  
` 32/-)              
     

7.	  

	    20.81  (  ` 20.81 )  
        ` 1 /- (  
` 1/-)              


8.	  

	    ` 20.36  (  ` 20.36 )  
          
   2/- (   2/-)      
        

9.	    

	     , ,    ` 1.46  
(  ` 1.02 )      , 
  ` 5/-(  ` 3/-) ,    
          

10.	 ,      

	       ` 359.20  (  
` 224.88 )        
 ` 118 (  ` 97)        
      

11.	    

	         ` 37.73  (  
` 37.73 )         
` 10/- (  ` 10/-)         
        I



211

IREL (India) Limited

71st Annual Report 2020-21

 4:     � (`  )
 Note 4: Capital work-in-progress		  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

    / Capital work in progress  6,342.89  3,349.86 

     /    
Capital items pending installation / in transit 

 344.81  566.57 

 / Total  6,687.70  3,916.43 

                 ,         :
Capital Work in progess detailed above excludes the amount incurred during the year for the following projects, which are funded 
by Government of India are as below:		

	 (`  ) / (` in lakh)

 / Projects  2020-21  
for the year 2020-21

 2019-20  
for the year 2019-20

      (RETTP)
Rare Earth and Titanium Theme Park (RETTP)

 224.97  184.75 

    (REPM) / Rare Earth Permanent Magnet (REPM)  1,217.42  284.77 

 / Total  1,442.39  469.52 

 5: -  � (`  )
Note 5: Non-current Investments		  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

  (.)    
(`) 

   
(`  ) 

  (.)    
(`)

   
(`  )

Quantity 
(No’s) 

Face 
value (₹)

Amount 
(₹ in lakh)

Quantity 
(No’s) 

Face 
value (₹) 

Amount 
(₹ in lakh) 

    
Equity investment in Others at FVTPL

       
Unquoted fully paid up

(i) 	    -  
, 

(i) 	 IRE Employees' Consumers' Co-operative 
Stores Ltd., Eloor

 833  100  0.83  833  100  0.83 

(ii) 	    -  
, 

(ii) 	 IRE Employees' Consumers' Co-operative 
Stores Ltd., Manavalakurichi

 1,094  10  0.11  1,094  10  0.11 
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 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

  (.)    
(`) 

   
(`  ) 

  (.)    
(`)

   
(`  )

Quantity 
(No’s) 

Face 
value (₹)

Amount 
(₹ in lakh)

Quantity 
(No’s) 

Face 
value (₹) 

Amount 
(₹ in lakh) 

(iii) 	   ’    
, 

(iii) 	 IRE Employees' Thrift and Credit Society 
Ltd., Manavalakurichi

200 10  0.02  200  10  0.02 

iv) 	      
, 

iv) 	 IRE Employees' Consumer Co-operative 
stores Ltd,Chavara

4,550 10  0.46  4,550  10  0.46 

 -  ()
Total non-current investments (B)

 1.42  1.42 

 -  ( + )
Total non-current investments (A+B)

 1.42  1.42 

     
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 

 1.42  1.42 

        
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and 
market value thereof

 -  - 

        
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of 
investments

 -  - 

 5  :    � (`  )
Note 5A: Non current Bank Balances 	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

12        / Deposits placed for more than 12 months 5,855.39 3995.27

 / Total 5,855.39 3,995.27 
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 6: -   -  � (`  )
Note 6: Non current financial assets - Loans	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

  / Security deposit

    / Unsecured considered Good  2,231.91  2,152.95 

     / Significant Increase in Credit Risk  -  - 

  / Credit Impaired  15.28  15.28 

:      / Less: Provision for Credit Loss  (15.28)  (15.28)

    -  
Other Loans and advances - employees

    / Secured considered good  763.59  723.49 

    / Unsecured considered good  93.34  100.92 

     / Significant Increase in Credit Risk  -  - 

  / Credit Impaired  -  - 

:      / Less: Provision for Credit Loss  -  - 

    --               
  
Other loans and advances- advances recoverable in cash or kind or 
for value to be received

    / Unsecured considered Good  22.21  7.17 

     / Significant Increase in Credit Risk  -  - 

  / Credit Impaired  -  - 

:      / Less: Provision for Credit Loss  -  - 

 / Total  3,111.04  2,984.53 

 6  :     � (`  )
 Note 6A: Other non-current financial assets	  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

       / Deposits held as Margin Money  2,092.08  483.27 

 / Total  2,092.08  483.27 
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 7:    () � (`  )
Note 7: Deferred tax assets (net)	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

       :
Deferred tax liabilities on account of:
        
Difference between book and tax depreciation

 255.74  473.77 

   
Total deferred tax liabilities

 255.74  473.77 

     :
Deferred tax assets on account of:
 43          
Disallowances U/s 43B allowable as timing differences

 885.30  650.75 

       
Provision for Doubtful debts and Advances

 98.97  58.10 

    / Post Retirement Medical Scheme  2,452.78  1,521.72 

  / Other timing differences  2,908.62  2,877.31 

  / Unabsorbed Depreciation  -  - 

  / Unabsorbed loss  -  - 

    / Deferrement of interest income  0.03  0.43 

  /  / Finance lease obligation/ Lease Liability  10.19  12.71 

   / MAT credit entitlement  -  - 

    / Total deferred tax assets  6,355.89  5,121.02 
 / Total  6,100.15  4,647.25 

 8 -     � (`  )
Note 8 - Non-current tax assets	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

  -   / Advance Tax - Non current #  587.19  2,561.71 

 / Total  587.19  2,561.71 

#  43 . / # Refer Note 43.

 9  -   � (`  )
 Note 9A - Capital Advances	  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

  / Capital advances 
	     / Secured considered good  76.92  89.87 

	     / Un-secured Considered good  254.20  1,045.40 

	      / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

	   / Credit Impaired  6.67  6.67 

	  :      / Less: Provision for Credit Loss  (6.67)  (6.67)

 / Total  331.12  1,135.27 
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 9  -     � (`  )
Note 9B - Other non current assets	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

      / Advances other than capital advances

() 	   / (a) Security deposit

	     / Secured considered good  -  - 

	     / Un-secured Considered good  -  0.51 

	      / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

	   / Credit Impaired  2.28  1.77 

	  :      / Less: Provision for Credit Loss  (2.28)  (1.77)

()	     -              
   

(b) 	� Other loans and advances- advances recoverable in cash or 
kind or for value to be received

	     / Secured considered good  -  - 

	     / Un-secured Considered good  17.80  30.46 

	      / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

	   / Credit Impaired  92.02  81.27 

	  :      / Less: Provision for Credit Loss  (92.02)  (81.27)

()	    * / (c) Deferred employees cost*  147.16  157.31 

()	   / (d) Prepaid expenses

	     / Prepaid mining lease renewal  -  - 

	     / Prepaid railway siding expenses  -  - 

	     / Prepaid coal licences fee  -  - 

	     () / Prepaid mining shipping Exp.(port)  -  - 

	    / Prepaid lease rent  -  - 

()	  -   / (e) Pre-Project expenses  69.69  12.06 

 / Total  234.65  200.34 
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 10 -  � (`  )
 Note 10 - Inventories	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

  / Raw Materials

   / Goods in transit  -  - 

  / In Stock  328.51  600.19 

   / Work-in-Progress  4,778.13  3,564.17 

  / Finished Goods  12,454.75  7,628.81 

    / Stock-in-trade  -  - 

   / Stores and Spares

   / Goods in transit  52.39  11.14 

  / In Stock  3,349.70  3,255.33 

  / Loose tools  6.32  3.55 

-       
Others- Intermediate products for further processing 

 106.92  30.91 

 / Total  21,076.71  15,094.10 

1.	          -  
1. 	 Inventories includes goods in transit relating to- Raw Material

 -  - 

 	        -     
	 Inventories includes goods in transit relating to- Stores & spares

 52.39  11.14 

2.	           ` 106.92  (  30.91  )    

2. 	 Intermediate product for further processing includes an amount of ̀  106.92 lakhs (Previous year ̀  30.91 lakhs) of monazite. 

3. 	       1988-89  1990-91    101.440   (  101.440 )    
                    ,       
  ` 1/- (  ` 1)

3. 	 Inventory of stores and spares includes 101.440 kg of silver (Previous year 101.440 kg) recovered during 1988-89 and 
1990-91. Since no cost was allocated to silver residue and no charges were paid to BARC, the said inventory has notionally 
been valued at ` 1/- (Previous year `1)

4. 	         ` 351.50  (  ` 338.30 )   NG ADU  2.645  (  2.497 
)  

4. 	 FG includes 2.645 tons (Previous Year 2.497 tons) of NG ADU valued at `351.50 lakhs (Previous year `338.30 lakhs) 
meant for supply to Govt of India.

5. 	    318.69  (  184.21 )     5018.66  (  ` 2831.25 )    
    99%      (GOI)  -            
  /         ,            

5. 	 Finished Goods includes 318.69 t (Previos year 184.21 t) having value ` 5018.66lakh (Previous year ` 2831.25lakh) of 
ND Pr Oxalate & Oxide bearing purity more than equal to 99%. The inventory has been increased/ built up for meeting 
e-mobility plan of Government of India (GOI) and other strategic reasons. Since it has a long shelf life, no part of the said 
inventory is considered impaired.	
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 11 -  � (`  )
Note 11 - Investment	  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020 
As at 31st March 2020 

   
()

Quantity 
(No's) 

 (`) 
NAV (`) 

  
(`  )
Amount  

(` in lakh) 

  
()

Quantity 
(No’s) 

 (`) 
NAV (`) 

  
(`  )
Amount  

(` in lakh) 
FVTPL      ()
Investment in mutual fund at FVTPL (Quoted)
  (  ) - 
BMF Investment (Liquid Cash Plan)-Direct 
Growth

168,480.593  2,369.285  3,991.79 

SBIMF  (  ) - 
SBIMF Investment (Liquid Cash Plan)-Direct Growth

136,370.736  3,221.619  4,393.35  175,113.52  3,251.44  5,693.72 

  
Total Current investments

304,851.329  8,385.13  175,113.52  3,251.44  5,693.72 

-    
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 

 - 

        
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and 
market value thereof

 8,385.13  5,693.72 

        
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of 
investments

 -  -  -  - 

 12 -  � (`  )
Note 12 - Trade receivables� (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
    / Secured Considered good  -  2,572.26 
    / Un-secured Considered good  2,075.53  3,077.89 
     / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 
  / Credit Impaired  6.53  6.49 

 2,082.06  5,656.64 
 :      / Less: Provision for credit loss  (6.53)  (6.49)
 / Total  2,075.53  5,650.15 

 13 -    � (`  )
Note 13 - Cash and cash equivalents� (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
       
Balances with banks in Current accounts

 2,677.06  887.47 

3         
Bank deposits for less than 3 months

 3,128.98  3,202.11 

   / Cash on Hand  0.60  1.39 

 / Total  5,806.64  4,090.97 
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 14 -    � (`  )
Note 14 -Other Bank Balances � (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

     () / Earmarked deposits with banks (PRMS)  3,500.00 

12       / Deposits placed for 12 months  49,103.59  44,351.45 

 / Total  49,103.59  47,851.45 

 15 -     -  � (`  )
Note 15 - Current financial assets - Loans� (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

   -  / Loans and advances - directors

	 ,    / Secured, considered good  -  - 

	     / Unsecured, considered good  -  - 

 	      / Significant increase in credit risk

 	   / Credit Impaired

   -  / Loans and advances - employees

	 ,    / Secured, considered good  200.55  236.00 

	     / Unsecured, considered good  314.26  271.32 

 	      / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

 	   / Credit Impaired  -  - 

  -               
 
Loans and advances-advances recoverable in cash or kind or for 
value to be received

	     / Secured, considered good  -  3.57 

	     / Unsecured, considered good  11,130.65  9,909.99 

 	      / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

 	   / Credit Impaired  2.92  2.92 

	  :      / Less: Provision for credit loss  (2.92)  (2.92)

 / Total  11,645.47  10,420.88 
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 16 -    � (`  )
Note 16 - Other current financial assets �  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

12             
Term Deposit as Margine Money for less than equal to 12 months

 8,077.54  246.66 

  /   / Outstanding income / Despatch Money  1,156.75  1,156.75 

  / Claims receivable

	 ,    / Secured, considered good  11.77  1.60 

	     / Unsecured, considered good  439.10  865.25 

 	      / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

 	   / Credit Impaired  267.54  116.45 

	  :     / Less: Provision for credit loss  (267.54)  (116.45)

 / Total  9,685.16  2,270.26 

 17 -   -  � (`  )
Note 17 - Other non-financial current assets�  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

      
Advances other than capital advances

	  /    
	 Advances to statute recoverable/ adjustable.

 11,590.61  8,804.93 

	  - -    
	 Advances - Employees - unsecured considered good

 12.24  19.85 

 	      / Significant increase in credit risk  -  - 

 	   / Credit Impaired  -  - 

	    * / Deferred employees cost*  28.55  31.32 

  / Prepaid Expenses

	    / Prepaid Lease rent  -  - 

 / Total  11,631.40  8,856.10 

 17 -   � (`  )
Note 17A - Other current assets� (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

     / Asset pending disposal  2.75  6.93 

 / Total  2.75  6.93 
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 18 -    	 (`  )
Note 18 - Equity share capital� (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
: / Authorised:
 ` 1000/ -  10,00,000   (  ` 1000/ -   
10,00,000  )
1,00,00,000 Equity shares of ` 1,000/- each (PY: 10,00,000 Equity shares 
of `1,000/- each)

 100,000.00  10,000.00 

 / Total  100,000.00  10,000.00 
   ,       :
Issued, subscribed and paid up:
 ` 1000/-        17,27,300   ( 
 : 8, 63,650)
17,27,300 (PY: 8,63,650) Equity shares of `1,000/- each fully paid up

 17,273.00  8,636.50 

 / Total  17,273.00  8,636.50 

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
                  
               
Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant 
to contract without payment being received in cash during the period of 
five years immediately preceding the reporting date 

/ Nil  / Nil 

                
       ,        
Aggregate number and class of shares alloted as fully paid up by way of 
bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the 
reporting date

 863,650  / Nil 

                 
   
Aggregate number and class of shares bought back during the period of 
five years immediately preceding the reporting date

  / Nil   / Nil 

                  
/    
During the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date 
the Company has not issued/bought back any shares.

 / Nil  / Nil 

1.	           ` 1000/-                 
 ,       ,          

1. 	 The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1,000/- per Share. Each Share holder is eligible for 
one vote per share held. In the Event of Liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of 
the Company, in proportion to their shareholding.		

2.	   21  2020    70             24  2020  1:1 
       

2. 	 The Company had issued Bonus shares to the existing shares holders in proportion of 1:1on 24th December 2020 based 
on the approval of its 70th Annual General meeting held on 21st September 2020. 		
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(i)	               :
(i) 	 Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
( ) 
(In Nos.)

(`  ) 
(` in lakh) 

( ) 
(In Nos.)

(`  ) 
(` in lakh) 

      
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 

 863,650  8,636.50  863,650  8,636.50 

     
Shares outstanding at the end of the year

 1,727,300  17,273.00  863,650  8,636.50 

5%             :
Details of shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
    / Name of Shareholder 31  2021 

As at 
31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
   


Number of 

Shares held

 () 
 %

% of Holding 

   


Number of 
Shares held

 () 
 %

% of Holding 

 : / Equity Shares:
     
Government of India and its nominee

 1,727,300 100%  863,650 100%

 19 -   / Note 19 - Other equity�
 � (`  )
General reserve	  (` in lakh)
 / Particulars 31  2021 

As at 
31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
  / Opening balance  8,200.18  8,200.18 
     / Transaction during the year  -  - 
  / Closing balance  8,200.18  8,200.18 

“   -              
Nature and Purpose - This is distributable reserve created out of surplus in profit and loss of the Company.
  / Retained earnings
 / Particulars 31  2021 

As at 
31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
  / Opening balance  78,862.08  63,155.42 
     / Transaction during the year - 
  / Profit / (loss) for the year  31,566.79  29,175.10 
      / Other comprehensive income for the year  (1,200.37)  (810.13)
   /          
 
Impact on account of prior period items/ Ind As Adjustment recognised in 
Retained Earnings

 (0.69)  - 

  / Bonus Share  (8,636.50)
 / Dividend  (9,353.00)  (12,658.31)
  / Closing balance  91,238.23  78,862.08 
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 () 

71    2020-21

   -                
Nature and Purpose - Retained earnings represents accumulated earnings and losses made by the Company over the 
years.

 19A -   
Note 19A - Non Controlling Interest 

 	 (`  )
General reserve 	  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
  / Opening balance  11.17  11.21 

   - / Transaction during the year  24.17  (0.04)

  / Closing balance  35.34  11.17 

 20 -  -   � (`  )
Note 20 - Other non-current financial liabilities �  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
 /    / Lease Liability/Finance lease obligations  31.80  40.50 

 / Others  20.03  0.01 

 / Total  51.83  40.51 

 21 - -  � (`  )
Note 21 - Non-current provisions � (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 
)	      / a) Provision for employee benefits  15,711.20  11,741.31 

)	  / b) Others
	    / Other long term provision  154.69  184.91 

	     # / Provision for entry tax #  67.79  67.79 

 / Total  15,933.69  11,994.01 

#                  ’   , 1999         
            ,  (CCT)             
     ,   ` 148.94  (  ` 148.94 )            
      ` 81.15  (  ` 81.15    ,         

# The Oscom unit of the Company, considering furnace oil and coal as raw material claimed set off of entry tax paid on them 
under the provisions of ‘Orissa Entry Tax Act, 1999. Against the disallowance of this by the Commissioner of Commercial Tax, 
Cuttack “CCT” the Company filed a writ petition before the Hon’ble Orissa High Court. However, the disputed amount of `148.94 
lakhs (previous year `148.94 lakhs) has been provided in the accounts. The Company adjusted an aggregate amount of ` 81.15 
lakhs (previous year ` 81.15 lakhs) with CCT as directed by the competent authorities which has been nettted against the gross 
liability.
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 22 - -  � (`  )
Note 22 - Other non-current liabilities � (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

  # / Other liabilities #  -  5,000.00 

 / Total  -  5,000.00 

#  -        ()             (  5000 
 )      . 

# Other Liabilities - Being Bank Guarantee encashed amount ` Nil (Previous year ` 5000 lakhs) off M/s TPPL due to non lifting 
of materials as per schedule.		

 23 -    � (`  )
Note 23 - Current trade payables�  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

    / Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs)  1,024.32  1,751.34 

 / Other than MSEs  3,760.53  2,420.11 

 / Total  4,784.85 4,171.45

 24 -     � (`  )
Note 24 - Other current financial liabilities�  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

  - ,    
Other Payables - Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSEs)

 207.31  360.57 

    / Liabilities for expenses  6,924.31  7,255.03 

  / Lease Liability  8.70  10.00 

    / Security and retention money  2,172.29  2,010.19 

   / Advance from customer  446.97  652.98 

  ## / Other liabilities ##  2,285.73  2,063.13 

 / Total  12,045.31  12,351.90 
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,      , 2006 (MSMED)           (  )   
     
The information regarding total outstanding dues (principal & interest) of micro and small enterprises as defined under 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) is given below.

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 31st March 2020 

  - 
 -
    


Non current 
- Long term 

liabilities -Trade 
payable & 

Other current 
liabilities

- 
   
  

 
Current 
-Trade 

payable 
& Other 
current 

liabilities 

  - 
 -
    

 
Non current 
- Long term 

liabilities -Trade 
payable & 

Other current 
liabilities

 - 
   
  

 
Current 
-Trade 

payable 
& Other 
current 

liabilities 
         
       
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the 
MSEs Act and remaining unpaid as at the end of year

  / NIL  1,231.63   / NIL  2,111.91 

        
       
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSEs 
Act and remaining unpaid as at the end of year

  / NIL   / NIL   / NIL   / NIL 

      ,     
      16   
   
Interest paid, under section 16 of the MSEs Act, 
to suppliers registered under MSEs, beyond the 
appointed day during the year

  / NIL   / NIL   / NIL   / NIL 

             
 (           
 )         
 
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been paid but 
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
ading the interest specified under MSEs Act.

  / NIL   / NIL   / NIL   / NIL 

             
.
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at 
the end of year.

  / NIL   / NIL   / NIL   / NIL 

    23       
   ,          
   ,           
        
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, until such date when 
the interest dues above are actually paid to the small 
enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance of a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSEs 
Act.

  / NIL   / NIL   / NIL   / NIL 
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 25 -    � (`  )
Note 25 - Other current liabilities�  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

    / Advances from Customers  5,545.94  3,883.15 

  / Statutory Liabilities  574.15  575.60 

  / Other liabilities  1,602.04  2,338.70 

 / Total  7,722.13  6,797.45 

 26 -   � (`  )
Note 26 - Current provisions	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 

31st March 2021 

31  2020  
As at 

31st March 2020 

     ## / Provision for employee benefits  10,837.46  7,484.79 

 / Others

  / Contractual Provision  2,265.06  2,220.37 

 / Total  13,102.52  9,705.16 

 27 -    � (`  )
Note 27 - Revenue from operations�  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

   / Sale of Products  93,066.80  96,680.57 

   /. Sale of Services  2,322.09  6,294.67 

   / Other Operating Revenues  2,024.28  1,088.15 

 / Total  97,413.17  104,063.39 

: / Note:

              ` 51473.11  (  ` 53742.35 )    
Sale of products includes earning in foreign exchange amounting to ̀  51473.11 lakhs (Previous year ̀ 53742.35 lakhs) calculated 
on FOB basis.		

  ( )           - ()        2010-
11     13 , 2012       `13,557/-             2012-
13  2020-21                    -        
,   (     )  /     (2020-21   `16919  )    
  2016-17       )     ,              
        ,   2016-17          ` 125.27 
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Revenue towards compensation for Nuclear Grade Amonium Di-uranate (NGADU) supplied exclusively to Government of India 
(GoI) is continued to be recognised on the basis of rate approved for the year 2010-11 vide communication dated 13th April, 2012; 
i.e. at ` 13,557/- per kg. This rate has been consistently applied for the initial recognition for all year from 2012-13 to 2020-21. 
This is because even though a higher rate may at times be claimed, the actual cost incurred (Which is the basis of the claim) may 
at difference plants/processes be less than the last approved rates (`16919 per kg approved in 2020-21 for supplied effected in 
2016-17 from OSCOM). Upon receipt of specific approval, the differential impact is considered as part of the revenue in the year 
of receipt of such approval. Accordingly, ` 125.27 Lakhs being the difference of the sum initially recognised for F.Y.2016-17 and 
the sum now approved for those years is recognised as revenue in the year 2020-21.

 28 -   � (`  )
Note 28 - Other income�  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

          
Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortised cost

	    / On Bank deposits  3,046.11  3,482.93 

	    / On others  1,021.80  749.77 

               
Dividend income from financial assets measured at Fair value through 
profit or loss

 407.34  376.45 

    / Net foreign exchange gain  490.32  213.79 

,       
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

 9.77  5.17 

 -  / Other non-operating income  5,423.81  631.77 

 / Total  10,399.15  5,459.88 

: / Note:		

 -        ()            2010-11  
   -      5000.00   ( -)     

Other Non-Operating Income includes the amount of ` 5000.00 lakhs (Previous year-Nil) written back from other non-current 
liabilities being bank guarantee encashed in the year 2010-11 due to non lifting of materials as per the schedule by M/s Titanium 
Products Private Ltd.(TPPL).	

 29 -     � (`  )
Note 29 - Cost of materials consumed� (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

   / Raw material consumed  8,887.52  6,787.83 

  / Chemicals consumed  1,875.83  2,600.16 

 / Total  10,763.35  9,387.99 
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 29  -     � (`  )
 Note 29A - Purchase of Stock in Trade� (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

     / Purchase of stock in trade  2,849.10  1,922.04 

 / Total  2,849.10  1,922.04 

 30 -      , --  - � (`  )
Note 30 - Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work-in-progress�  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

    / At the end of the Year
	   / Finished Goods  12,454.75  7,628.81 

	    / Work-In-Progress  4,778.13  3,564.17 

	 -- () / Stock-in-Trade(Canalization)  -  - 

	        
	 Intermediate product for further processing

 106.92  30.90 

 17,339.80  11,223.88 
    / At the beginning of the Year
	   / Finished Goods  7,628.81  8,865.60 

	    / Work-In-Progress  3,564.17  2,957.23 

	 -- () / Stock-in-Trade(Canalization)  -  - 

	        / Intermediate product for further processing  30.90  635.69 
 11,223.88  12,458.52 

 / Total  (6,115.92)  1,234.64 

 31 -    � (`  )
Note 31 - Employee benefits expense� (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

   / Salaries and wages  18,886.94  20,431.29 

       / Contribution to provident and other 
funds

 2,217.78  2,310.59 

   / Staff welfare expense  6,122.57  2,920.49 

:  /          
  
Less: Expenditure transferred to other heads & recoupment of overhead 
charges from the Government projects/capital works 

 (122.53)  (112.43)

 / Total  27,104.76  25,549.94 



228

 () 

71    2020-21

  / () / Acturial Gain / (Loss) 	 (`  ) / (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

 / Gratuity  (1,442.21)  (990.41)

 (PRMS) / PRMS  (174.87)  (94.15)

  / Resettlement Allowances  12.99  1.94 

 / Total  (1,604.08)  (1,082.61)

 :              -19      41    
Note: Disclosures required by Ind AS -19 in respect of provision made towards various Employees benefits is shown under Note 
no 41		

 32 -  � (`  )
Note 32 - Finance costs�  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

         
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

 -  / Interest - others  45.23  4.78 

 / Total  45.23  4.78 

 33 -   � (`  )
Note 33 - Other expenses�  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

     # / Consumption of stores and spares#  2,506.51  2,733.68 

   / Power and fuel  7,458.69  7,563.87 

 / Rent  147.54  186.02 

   / Repairs to buildings  776.13  780.58 

   / Repairs to machinery  1,195.03  1,328.34 

 -  / Repairs- others  1,330.71  2,406.90 

 / Insurance  201.15  80.09 

    / Rates and taxes excl.export duty  311.79  134.55 

 / Royalty  2,620.18  2,359.50 

     / R & D Expenses  173.88  179.49 

   / Waste disposal expenses  108.25  139.92 

     / Packing and handling expenses  2,873.77  2,788.04 

 / Commission  9.11  13.55 
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 / Particulars 31  2021   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

  /   ,     
Loss on property, plant and equipment sold/discarded

 7.81  0.50 

 ,       
Provision for doubtful debts,assets and advances

 162.47  - 

    / Loss of non-moving stores  29.10  93.06 

   / CSR & Sustainability  422.15  271.80 

 -  / Travelling Expenses  94.30  328.40 

   / Statutory Audit fees  9.02  8.92 

    / Tax audit fees  1.90  1.80 

   / Cost Audit fees  0.60  0.60 

  / Other services  0.35  0.38 

    / Travelling and out of pocket expenses  1.80  6.46 

    / Export Duty on minerals  769.72  731.36 

      / Expenses for Pvt. Security Arrangements  1,087.50  1,056.99 

   . / Mining Lease exp.  1,680.46  1,778.36 

   / Outsourced Service Charges  1,887.01  178.20 

  / Miscellaneous expenses  2,083.65  2,045.11 

 27,950.58  27,196.47 

:        /    
  
Less: Expenditure transferred to other heads & recoupment of overhead 
charges from Government projects/capital works  (260.97)  (211.57)

 / Total  27,689.61  26,984.90 

# : 31  2021      /         
# Note: Value of imported / Indigenous spare parts & components consumed For the year ended 31st March 2021

 / Particulars 31  2021   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

 (%) / Imported (%)  -  - 

 (%) / Indigenous (%)  100.00  100.00 

 / Total  100.00  100.00 

# #  -   / # # Note - CSR Expenditure		

()	             ` 484.49  (  ` 241.32)
(a) 	 Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year `484.49 lakhs (PY `241.32)		

()	    31.03.2021      ` 422.14 (  ` 271.80 )
(b) 	 Amount spent during the year on 31.03.2021 ` 422.14 (PY ` 271.80 lakhs)			 
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 / Particulars 31  2021   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

31  2020   
    

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

(i) 	     /  / Construction / acquisition of any asset  115.32  43.68 

(ii) 	       / On purposes other than above  306.83  228.12 

 / Total  422.15  271.80 

           ` 17.83  (  ` 32.15 )

Yet to be paid in cash for the year is ` 17.83 lakhs (PY ` 32.15 lakh)

 34:    � (`  )
Note 34: Income tax expense� (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

() (a) 	   / Income tax expense  

	   / Current tax

	     / For Current Year

		    / Income tax 12,067.31  11,617.62 

	     / For earlier years

 		    / Income tax  (1,076.01)  - 

	    / Total of Current tax  10,991.30  11,617.62 

	   / Deferred Tax

		     / () / Deferred tax charge/(credit)  (1,049.19)  (498.93)

   / Total of Deferred tax  (1,049.19)  (498.93)

 / Total  9,942.11  11,118.69 

 34.1:               
Note 34.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

     / Net Profit before tax  41,507.83  40,293.00 

25.168 %     ( : 25.168%)
Tax at the rate of 25.168% (Previous year: 25.168%) 

 12,067.31  11,617.62 

    (MAT) / MAT utilised  - 

                 /  
  
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / not taxable in 
calculating taxable income

 / Depreciation  (218.03)  (743.85)

     / Provision for credit impaired  (40.87)  33.05 

 43     / Disallowance u/s 43B  128.42  (42.86)
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 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

     / Post retirement medical scheme  (887.05)  496.96 

   / Other timing differences  (34.58)  (234.72)

  / Unabsorbed Loss  -  - 

  / Unabsorbed Depreciation  -  - 

    / Deferrement of interest income  0.40  0.14 

   / Finance lease obligation  2.52  (7.65)

         
Reversal of excess provision made in earlier year

 (1,076.01)  - 

   / Income Tax expense  9,942.11  11,118.69 

      
Deferred tax balance in relation to 

1  2020 
As at

1st April 2020

    
   
 /  
Recognised/

reversed
through profit

and loss

  
  / 


Recognised in
/ reclassified

from OCI

31  2021  
As at  

31st March
2021

      :
Deferred tax liabilities on account of:

       
Difference between book and tax depreciation

 473.77  (218.03)  255.74 

    / Total deferred tax liabilities  473.77  (218.03)  -  255.74 

     :
Deferred tax assets on account of:

      43      
  
Disallowances U/s 43B allowable as timing 
differences

 650.75  (128.42)  362.97  885.30 

      
Provision for Doubtful debts and Advances

 58.10  40.87  98.97 

    
Post Retirement Medical Scheme

 1,521.72  887.05  44.01  2,452.78 

   / Other timing differences  2,877.31  34.58 -3.27  2,908.62 

    / Deferrement of interest income  0.43  (0.40)  0.03 

   / Finance lease obligation  12.71  (2.52)  10.19 

MAT   / MAT credit entitlement  -  -  - 

    / Total deferred tax assets  5,121.02  831.16  403.71  6,355.89 

 / Total  4,647.25  1,049.19  403.71  6,100.15 
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 35:    / Note 35: Fair value measurements
    � (`  )
Financial instruments by category� (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020


FVTPL 

 
Amortised 

cost


FVTPL 

 
Amortised 

cost

  :  
Financial assets: Non-current

 -  / Non-current investments  1.42  -  1.42  - 

  / Security deposit  -  2,231.91  -  2,152.95 

   -  / Loans and advances - employees  -  856.93  -  824.41 

    / Other Loans and advances  -  22.21  -  7.17 

  / Bank Balances  2,092.08  483.27 

  :  / Financial assets: Current

 / Investment  8,385.13  -  5,693.72  - 

  / Trade receivables  -  2,075.53  -  5,650.15 

    / Cash and cash equivalents  -  5,806.64  -  4,090.97 

   / Other Bank balances  -  49,103.59  -  47,851.45 

   -  / Loans and advances - directors  -  -  -  - 

   -  / Loans and advances - employees  -  514.81  -  507.32 

    / Other Loans and advances  -  11,130.65  -  9,913.56 

   
Other current financial assets

 -  9,685.16  -  2,270.26 

   / Total financial assets  8,386.55  83,519.52  5,695.14  73,751.51 

  :  - 
Financial liabilites: Non-current

  / Trade payables  -  - 

    / Lease Liability & Others  -  51.83  -  40.51 

  :  / Financial liabilites: Current

  / Trade payables  -  4,784.85  -  4,171.45 

   
Other current financial liabilities

 -  12,045.31  -  12,351.90 

   / Total financial liabilities  -  16,881.99  -  16,563.86 
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I.	    / Fair value hierarchy

	                             
                   .       
                ()            () 
                          
             ,              
            

	 The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that 
are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed 
in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, 
the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An 
explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

	  1:  1                 ,     
           ( )           , 
                    

	 Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity 
instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including 
bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual 
funds are valued using the closing NAV.

	  2:               (  ,  , -- 
)                      
    -                   
  ,      2     

	 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the- 
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely 
as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, 
the instrument is included in level 2.

	  3:                 ,     3     
  -  ,      3       

	 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.  
This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

	              

	 There are no transfers between fair value hierarchy levels during the year.

	             2           3     


	 Loans to employees and security deposits have been categorised into level 2 of fair value hierarchy. All the other items 
have been categorised into level 3.

II.	             

II.	 Valuation technique used to determine fair value

	                  :

	 Significant valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
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	     ,   ,       , 10       ,  10   
                    

	 The fair values for Security deposits, loan to employees are based on discounted cash flows using a discount rate 
determined considering the average of prevailing interest rate of SBI, average yield rate on 10 year bond, last 10 years 
average prime lending rate.

III.	   / Valuation processes

	                        
               2         : 

	 The finance department of the company performs the valuation of assets and liabilities required for financial 
reporting purposes. The team directly reports to the Director Finance for approval of the valuation method. 
The main Level 2 input for the valuation process are derived and evaluated as follows:

	 •	�        , 10       ,  10          
                      

	 •	 Discount rates are determined considering the average of prevailing interest rate of SBI, average yield rate on 10 
year bond, last 10 years average prime lending rate that reflect current market assessment of the time value of 
money and the risk specific to the asset.

IV.	    -    : 
IV.	 Fair value hierarchy - recurring fair value measurement:

	    ` 8385.13                  1     
	 Investment in mutual fund amounting to ` 8385.13 lakhs accounted at Fair value through profit and loss is categorised into 

Level 1 of hierarchy.

V.	                      (   
   2    ) 

V.	 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed 
(It is categorised under Level 2 of fair value hierarchy)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

 
Carrying 
amount

 
Fair value

 
Carrying 
amount

 
Fair value

 : / Financial assets:
	   / Security deposit  2,231.91 1,882.97  2,152.95 1,879.42

	    -  
	 Loans and advances - employees

 1,371.74 1,986.48  1,331.73 1,960.51

  : -
Financial liabilites: Non-current
	   / Lease Liability  31.80  35.61  40.51  47.67 

 ,    ,       - ,    ,    ,   
          ,     -           
The carrying amounts of Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances - directors, other Loans and 
advances, other current financial assets, trade payables and other current financial liabilities are considered to be the same as 
their fair values, due to their short-term nature.
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- 36:   

Note 36: Financial risk management

  ,                        
      ,                   
       ,    ,                 
       (FVTPL)     

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise finance lease obligations, trade and other payables. The main purpose of 
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade 
and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTPL 
investments in co-operative societies and Mutual Fund.

  ,                     .

The Company is exposed to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the 
management of these risks.

I.	   / Credit risk

	     (      )     (       
)      

	 The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its financing 
activities (deposits with banks and other financial instruments).

	    / Credit risk management

	       ,                    
   ,               ,        


	 To manage the credit risk, the Company follows a policy wherein the customers are required to make an advance payment 
before procurement of goods. Thus, the requirement of assessing the impairment loss on trade receivables does not arise, 
since the collectibility risk is mitigated.

	                           

	 Bank balances are held with only high rated banks and majority of other security deposits are placed majorly with 
government agencies.

      ,     � (`  )
Age of receivables that are past due but not impaired � (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March 2021

31  2020 
As at 31st March 2020

6   / Upto 6 months  1,489.64  5,063.87 

6  12  / 6 to 12 months  1.62  448.84 

12  24  / 12 to 24 months  446.46  0.34 

24  36  / 24 to 36 months  0.74  0.03 

36    / More than 36 months  137.07  137.07 

 / Total  2,075.53  5,650.15 
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II. 	   / Liquidity risk

	                             
     ,        ,            
  	

	 Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a 
reasonable price. For the company, liquidity risk arises from obligations on account of financial liabilities such as finance 
lease, trade payables and other financial liabilities.						    

	 ()	    / (a) 	Liquidity risk management

	          -        ,       
                         
      

	 The Company’s corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement. In addition, 
processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company’s 
net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.		

31  2021  / As at 31st March 2021						    
-     � (`  )
Maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities�  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 6   
Less than 6 

months

6   1  
6 months to 1 

year

1  5   
Between 1 and 

5 years

5   
Beyond 5 

years

 
Total

  / Trade payables  1,664.70  2,986.81  124.87  8.47  4,784.85 

  / Financial Lease & Others  -  1.61  43.79  6.43  51.83 

   / Other financial 
liabilities

 4,577.20  5,775.89  1,553.10  139.12  12,045.31 

 / Total  6,241.90  8,764.31  1,721.76  154.02  16,881.99 

31  2020  / As at 31st March 2020						    
-    � (`  )
Maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities	  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 6   
Less than 6 

months

6   1  
6 months to 1 

year

1  5   
Between 1 and 

5 years

5    
Beyond 5 

years


Total

  / Trade payables  3,463.39  176.98  521.18  9.90  4,171.45 

  / Finance lease  7.17  7.17  35.65  82.11  132.10 

  
Other financial liabilities

 9,312.90  1,072.42  1,648.72  317.86  12,351.90 

 / Total  12,783.46  1,256.57  2,205.55  409.87  16,655.45 

III.	    / Market risk

	    
	 Foreign currency risk

	                   (  )      
   

	 The company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the company’s operating 
activities due to major overseas sales (i.e. US dollars). 
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	 ,       ,       ,              
,          

	 Hence, to combat the foreign currency exposure, the company follows a policy wherein the sale is made only on receipt of 
advance from the customers. Thus, the company is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

	    / Price risk

	                             
 .

	 The company is exposed to price risk from its investment in mutual fund and classified in the balance sheet at fair value 
through profit and loss.

	             ,               
                       

	 To manage its price risk arising from the investment, the Company has invested in the mutual fund after considering it’s 
risk and return profile i.e. the debt profile of the mutual fund indicates that the debt has been given to creditworthy banks 
and other institutional parties.

(`  ) (` in lakh)

 / Sensitivity 31  2021 
As at 31st March 2021

31  2020 
As at 31st March 2020

  2%          
Impact on profit after tax for 2% increase in NAV

 167.70  113.87 

  2%           
Impact on profit after tax for 2% decrease in NAV

 (167.70)  (113.87)

 37:   / Note 37: Capital management		

     ,                         
            
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves 
attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder 
value.		

 / Dividends 	 (`  ) (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

(i) 	   / Equity shares
	 31  2020      ̀  1013.49  (  ̀  463.15) 

            
	� Final dividend For the year ended 31st March 2020 of ` 1013.49 (PY 

` 463.15) per fully paid share

	 11,253.00  4,000.00 

(ii) 	   2020-21  2019-20       
(ii) 	 Interim Dividened paid for the financial year 2020-21 & 2019-20

 7,100.00 6500.00

(iii) 	            
(iii) 	 Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

 2,371.00  2,253.00 

:- 2019-20    ` 14  2021  2500     
Note:- Dividend of 2019-20 includes ` 2500 lakh paid on 14th June 2021.
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- 38:    
Note 38: Segment information

      / Description of segments and principal activities

      -                   
             ,              
           -26 / 2015-2020  21-08-2018       
                      /    2019-20  
          ,    2019-20              
 2020-21  ,       : 

The company’s chief operating decision maker - Group of executive directors examines the company’s performance. The 
management has identified the operating segment on the basis of review by chief operating decision maker. For management 
purposes, the Company is organised into business units based on its products i,e mineral division and chemical division. Govt.
of India vide notification no-26/2015-2020 Dt.21-08-2018 has notified that IREL shall act upon as a State Trading Enterprises for 
all exports of Beach Sands Minerals. The operation/ transactions in this regard was initiated during the financial year 2019-20. 
Since the nature of activities are different, hence a new segment is being recognised during the financial year 2019-20. As such 
for the year 2020-21,there are three reportable segments, as follows:

()	  ,  ,      

(a) 	 Mineral division, which comprises of OSCOM, M.K. and Chavara units

()	  ,        

(b)	 Chemical units, which comprises of MOPP and RED units.

()	       

(c)	 Trading of Beach Sand Minerals

                     ,        
           ,   “     ”  “     ”  
       ,                  ,  “ 
    /”        -              
             

Revenue and expenses has been accounted on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Income 
and expenses, which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been 
included under “Unallocable Income” and “Unallocable Expenses” respectively. Assets and Liabilities, which relate to the 
enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been included under “Unallocable Assets/ 
Liabilities”. Inter-segment transfers are accounted for at competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated customers for similar 
goods.
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   	 (`  )
Segment revenue and results:	  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

 
 

Mineral 

Divisions

 


Chemical 
Divisions

 - 

State 

Trading- 
Exports


Total

 
 

Mineral 

Divisions

 


Chemical 
Divisions

 - 

State 

Trading- 
Exports


Total

 / Revenue

  / External customers  82,461.07  9,988.15  2,939.67  95,388.90  87,285.07  13,706.89  1,983.28  102,975.24 

-  / Inter-Segment Sales  -  -  -  -  -  - 

  / Other Income  - 

  / External customers  2,748.85  157.93  -  2,906.78  1,491.40  104.97  -  1,596.36 

 - / Inter-Segment  -  -  - 

    / Total segment revenue  85,209.93  10,146.08  98,295.68  88,776.47  13,811.86  104,571.60 

    / Unallocable  9,516.65  4,951.67 

  (   -)
Total Revenue (Net-off Inter-segment)

 107,812.33  88,776.47  13,811.86  109,523.27 

 / Results

  / Segment result  37,649.90  (2,141.90)  90.57  35,598.57  38,236.48  1,360.13  61.24  39,657.85 

      ()
Unallocated Corporate expenses (Net)

 1,886.59  (3,782.07)

  Operating Profit  37,485.16  35,875.78 

   / Interest Expenses  (45.22)  (4.77)

   / Interest Income  4,067.89  4,422.00 

    / Profit Before Tax  41,507.83  40,293.00 
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   : 

Segment assets and liabilities:								      

                         
       

Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assets and liabilities are 
allocated based on the operations of the segment and the physical location of the asset.

(`  ) / (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

  

Mineral 

Divisions

 


Chemical 
Divisions

 - 

State 

Trading- 
Exports


Total

 
 

Mineral 

Divisions

 


Chemical 
Divisions

 - 

State 

Trading- 
Exports


Total

  / Segment 
assets

 65,051.33  22,202.55  -  87,253.88  61,291.22  22,306.60  86.98  83,684.80 

     
Unallocated assets

 83,133.21  62,085.61 

  / Total assets 170,387.09  145,770.41 

  / Segment liabilities  30,363.24  24,917.36  125.31  55,405.92  24,299.54  21,404.09  335.99  46,039.62 

     / 
Unallocated liabilities

 (1,765.58)  4,020.86 

  / Total liabilities  53,640.34  50,060.48 

  / Other disclosures

  / Capital Expenditure  5,187.60  796.44  5,984.04  4,719.13  562.94  5,282.07 

     
Unallocated capital expenditure

 44.62  962.10 

 / Total  6,028.66  6,244.17 

 / Depreciation  2,307.59  1,619.14  3,926.73  2,335.42  1,721.72  4,057.15 

    - -
Unallocated depreciation

 41.64  88.84 

 / Total  3,968.36  4,145.98 

   - 
Non-cash expenses other than 
depreciation

 961.82  295.33  1,257.14  1,172.35  393.45  1,565.80 

      
 - 
Unallocated non-cash expenses 
other than depreciation

 953.33  1,886.62 

 / Total  2,210.48  3,452.42 



241

IREL (India) Limited

71st Annual Report 2020-21

 / Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

  

Mineral 

Divisions

 


Chemical 
Divisions

 - 

State 

Trading- 
Exports


Total

 
 

Mineral 

Divisions

 


Chemical 
Divisions

 - 

State 

Trading- 
Exports


Total

   ( , 
     )
Non Current Assets (Other 
than Financial Instrument, 
DTA& Employee Benefits)

 / India  33,132.85  31,114.57 

   / Outside India  -  - 

 / Total  33,132.85  31,114.57 

 39:     
Note 39: Related party transactions									       
  24 “  ”  ,         -      : 
As per Ind AS 24 “Related party Disclosures”, disclosure of transactions with the related parties as defined in the Accounting 
Standard are given below:									       

()	   (  )
(A) 	 Subsidary Company (IREL IDCOL Limited)									       

          :	 (`  )

Details of transactions with Subsidiary Company are as follows:				     	 (` in lakh)

 .   . 
Sr No

 / Particulars 31.03.2021   
  

Balance Receivable 
as on 31.03.2021

31.03.2020   
  

Balance Receivable 
as on 31.03.2020

1   / Balance Receivable -  25.50 
2       / Share Purchased during the year  58.65 -

()	     : / (B) Key Management Personnel:							     
	  : / Functional Directors:							     
1 	    / Shri D. Singh 				    :	     / Chairman and Managing Director

2 	  .. / Shri K K Mohanty 			   :	  () / Director (Marketing) 

3 	  .  / Shri A. Roy Chowdhury		  :	 () / Director (Finance) 

4 	  ..  / Sh V P Yajurvedi			   :	   / Independent Director 

5 	  .. / Sh B B Pandian			   :	   / Independent Director 

6 	    / Shri Rupender Dhiman		  :	   / Company Secretary 
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        :
Details of transactions with Independent directors are as follows: 							     

    2020-21        ` 3.07  ( : ` 2.95 )      

An amount of ` 3.07 lakh (Previous year : `2.95 lakh) was paid to the independent directors towards sitting fees during the 
year 2020-21.

          :�
Details of transactions with key management personnel are as follows: 	 (` in lakh)

..
Sr No

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

1  / Remuneration
   / Short term employee benefits  260.65  262.71 

     / Post employment benefits  39.31  33.71 

   / Long term employee benefits  8.82  (1.70)

  / Termination benefits  -  - 

    / Share based payment  -  - 

  / Total Remuneration  308.78  294.72 
2        / Repayment of loans and advances given  -  1.71 
3    / Advances given  -  1.28 
4 31    : / Outstanding balance as at 31st March:

   / Amount recoverable  -  - 

     
Related party disclosure of Subsidary
   24 “  ”  ,               
 :
As per Ind AS 24 “Related party Disclosures”, disclosure of transactions with the related parties as defined in the Ind Accounting 
Standard are given below:	 						    
 -40:     : (        )� (`  )
Note-40: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)	 (` in lakh)

..
Sr 
No

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March, 2021

31  2020 
As at 31st March,2020

1   / Contingent Liabilities
()
(a)

           
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

i)  /   / Claims by Contractors/Suppliers
)	 / a) Chavara 10.38 10.13 

)	  / b) OSCOM 885.11 885.11 
ii)            

Suits filed by employees and others pending in Courts
)  - ,   
a) Employees- Alwaye, MK and OSCOM

137.20 135.56 

)  -   - ,   
b) Others – Forum workers-civil,loading & bagging

189.59 189.59 
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..
Sr 
No

 / Particulars 31  2021 
As at 31st March, 2021

31  2020 
As at 31st March,2020

iii)          (,   ) 
Higher Compensation for land acquired for the Company 
(Chavara, MK and OSCOM)

494.07 487.68 

iv)    ,            
 .
Claim by the Government of Orissa on account of revision of 
ground rent rates, cess and interest thereon.

401.31 401.31 

v)  /           
 
Claim by Provident fund authorities for belated payments of 
contract/forum workers dues 

0.00 1.11 

(vi)        
Unexpired value of Letters of credit opened and outstanding

8,625.43 0.00 

()
(b) 

 (          )
Guarantees (Unexpired value of Bank Guarantees given on 
behalf of company)

569.44 238.72 

()
(c)

         
Other Money for which company is contingently liable

i)     / Disputed Tax demands
)   / a) Sales tax 126.03 128.92 

)   / b) Entry tax 226.68 226.68 

)   / c) Road Tax 31.57 31.57 
ii)       - 

Claim for differential royalty on rebate – MK
68.75 68.75 

iii)         -
Service tax claim by central excise-Chavara

58.83 58.83 

iv) Excise Duty & Consequent Sales Tax on Minerals-PENALTY. 986.00 986.00 
v)               

   24  2021      
Demand against Compensation raised by National Green Trabunal 
for Chavara Unit, disposed off vide order dated 24th March 2021. 

 - 29,294.37 

vi)    ,     /   
      
Demand against Compensation raised by Steel & Mines 
Department, Govt.of Odisha pertaining to Environmental 
clearance/ consent to operate issues.

 35,512.59  - 

2   / Contingent Assets
   13   16      - 
Export Duty Refund claim on Ilmenite from Mar'13 to Dec'16-
OSCOM

3,254.37 3,254.37 

3  / Commitments
              
    
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account and not provided for 

13,523.04 18,170.25 
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 41:    
Note 41: Employee benefit obligations
   ()-19 ’’ ’’            :
As per Ind AS-19 “ Employee Benefits”, the disclosures as defined in the Indian Accounting Standards are furnished below :
()	    / (a) Short term employee benefits:
	                         .	
	 The liability towards short term employee benefits is recognised as an expenses for the year in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss.
()	    / (b) Post employment benefits:�
i. 	   : / Defined contribution plan:� (`  ) (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

     
Employer’s contribution to Pension Scheme

128.49 150.83 

      
Employer’s contribution to New Pension Scheme

61.48 25.31 

     
Employer’s contribution to Superannuation scheme

550.00 530.47 

ii. 	   : / Defined Benefits Plan:
	        : / The Company has the following defined benefits plans:

 / Particulars  / Remarks
 / Gratuity     / Funded through LIC
 () / Provident Fund (PF)      / Funded through Trust
    ()
Post Retirement Medical Scheme (PRMS)

   / Unfunded

	  : / Gratuity:

	                        
        ,                 
                

	 The employees, gratuity fund scheme managed by a trust is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is 
determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which considers each period of service 
as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

	     : / The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

     / Mortality rate during Employment (2006-08) 


IALM (2006-08) 
Ultimate

(2006-08) 


IALM (2006-08) 
Ultimate

  ( ) / Discount rate (per annum) 6.57% 6.59%
       ( )
Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum)

6.57% 6.59%

     ( ) / Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 5.50% 5.50%
    ( ) / Rate of employee turnover (per annum) 2.00% 2.00%
  () / Retirement age (years) 60 60
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	                          
        

	 The expected rate of return considered in actuarial valuation is assumed to be available on risk free investments like PPF 
as the investment is with LIC and list of investments is not available. 

	           :� (`  )
	 Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation: � (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

       
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year

 11,895.63  11,631.76 

    / Current service cost  161.85  305.14 

   / Interest cost  783.92  888.66 

    -    / Past service cost- non vested benefit  -  - 

    -   / Past service cost- vested benefit  -  - 

 ()/ / Actuarial (gain)/loss  1,516.08  949.01 

   / Liability transferred in  -  2.45 

(  ) / (Liability transferred out)  -  - 

    / Benefits paid  (2,100.27)  (1,881.39)

      
Defined benefit obligation at year end

 12,257.21  11,895.63 

	     :� (`  )
	 Balance sheet reconciliation: � (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

  
Opening net liability

 1,175.24  897.67 

        
Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

 239.30  373.72 

 (OCI)    
Expenses recognised in OCI

 1,442.21  990.41 

    /()
Net Liability / (Asset) Transfer In

 -  - 

   ()/ 
Net (Liability) / Asset Transfer Out

 -  - 

(      )
(Benefits paid directly by the Employer)

 (245.71)

  
Employer’s contribution

 (1,392.43)  (840.85)

      () / 
Net (Liability)/ Asset recognized in the Balance Sheet

 1,464.32  1,175.24 
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 () 

71    2020-21

	    :
	 Investment details: � (  %) (% of investment)

   / Type of Assets 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

    / Government of India Assets  -  - 

  / Corporate Bonds  -  - 

   / Special Deposits Scheme  -  - 

     / Equity shares of listed Companies  -  - 

 / Property  -  - 

  / Insurance fund  100.00  100.00 

 / Others  -  - 

 / Total  100.00  100.00 

	       :� (`  )
	 Net Interest cost for Next year: 	�  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

        
Present value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the period

 12,257.21  11,895.63 

(        )
(Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Period)

 (10,792.89)  (10,720.39)

    / () / Net liability / (Asset) at the beginning  1,464.32  1,175.24 

   / Interest cost  788.16  783.92 

(  ) / (Interest income)  (691.95)  (706.47)

        / Net Interest cost for Current period  96.21  77.45 

	             :� (`  )
	 Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss during the Next year: � (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

    / Current Service cost  125.50  161.84 

    / Net Interest cost  96.21  77.45 

(   ) / (Expected contributions by the Employees)  -  - 

  / Net Cost  221.71  239.29 

	        :  � (`  )
	 Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Fund	 (` in lakh)

          
Projected Benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting

31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

1   / 1st Following year  2,749.52  2,335.63 

2    / 2nd Following year  1,715.65  1,456.45 

3    / 3rd Following year  2,432.92  2,096.52 

4    / 4th Following year  1,529.85  2,102.36 

5    / 5th Following year  1,468.76  1,280.23 

 6  10   / Sum of Years 6 to 10  3,456.02  4,004.75 
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	            � (`  )
	 Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets: � (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

        
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year

 10,720.39  10,734.09 

   / Interest Income  706.47  820.08 

     / Expected return of plan assets  73.87  (41.40)

   / Employer’s contribution  1,392.43  840.85 

    / Transfer from other Company  -  2.45 

(   ) / (Transfer to Other Company)

    / Benefits paid  (2,100.27)  (1,635.68)

        
Fair value of plan assets at year end

 10,792.89  10,720.39 

     / Actual return on plan assets  780.34  778.68 

	         :� (`  )
	 Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and obligations: � (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

   
Present value of obligation

 (12,257.21)  (11,895.63)

    
Fair value of plan assets

 10,792.89  10,720.39 

          
Unrecognized past service cost at the end of the period

 -  - 

        
Unrecognized transitional liability at the end of the period

 -  - 

      () / 
Net (Liability)/ Asset recognized in the Balance Sheet

 (1,464.32)  (1,175.24)

	        () /  :� (`  )
	 Actuarial (gain)/Loss recognized during the year:� (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

    () / 
Actuarial (gain)/Loss on plan assets

 (73.87)  41.40 

   () /  / Actuarial (gain)/Loss on obligation  1,516.08  949.01 

  / Net Total  1,442.21  990.41 
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71    2020-21

	       � (`  )
	 Net Interest cost for Current period � (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

        
Present value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the period

 11,895.63  11,631.76 

(        )
(Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Period)

 (10,720.39)  (10,734.09)

    / () / Net liability / (Asset) at the 
beginning

 1,175.24  897.67 

   / Interest cost  783.92  888.66 

( ) / (Interest income)  (706.47)  (820.08)

       / Net Interest cost for Current period  77.45  68.58 

	             :� (`  )
	 Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year:�  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

   / Current Service cost  161.85  305.14 

    / Net Interest cost  77.45  68.58 

    / Past service cost  -  - 

(   ) / (Expected Contributions by the Employees)  -  - 

(    () /
(Gains)/Losses on curtailments and settlements

 -  - 

        / Net effect of changes in Foreign 
exchange rates
   / Expenses recognised  239.30  373.72 

	        ()    :� (`  )
	 Expenses recognised in Other comprehensive Income (OCI) for current period:� (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

      / ()
Actuarial Gains / (losses) on obligation for the period

 1,516.08  949.01 

       
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest income

 (73.87)  41.40 

     
Change in Asset ceiling

 -  - 

 (OCI)       () / 
Net (Income) / Expense for the period recognised in OCI

 1,442.21  990.41 



249

IREL (India) Limited

71st Annual Report 2020-21

	  : / Sensitivity Analysis:

	  ,            -           
                        

	 Sensitivity analysis is analysis which will give the movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be true 
on different count. This only signifies the change in the liability if the difference between assumed and the actual is not 
following the parameters of the sensitivity analysis.� (`  ) (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

     
Projected Benefit Obligation on current assumptions

 12,257.21  11,895.63 

    + 1%    
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of discounting

 (400.29)  (409.02)

    -1%    
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of discounting

 438.61  446.79 

     + 1%    
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase

 226.47  303.23 

     - 1%    
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase

 (240.85)  (303.78)

     + 1%    
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee turnover

 54.54  50.67 

     -1%    
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee turnover

 (58.37)  (54.24)

	           :� (`  )
	 Amounts for the current annual period and previous four annual periods: � (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17
   
Present value of obligation

 12,257.21  11,895.63  11,631.76  12,058.44  10,820.06 

    
Fair value of plan assets

 10,792.89  10,720.39  10,734.09  10,850.24  10,191.38 

   / ()
Surplus /(Deficit)in the plan

 (1,464.32)  (1,175.24)  (897.67)  (1,208.20)  (628.68)

  :
Experience Adjustment:
  () / 
On plan liability (gain)/loss

 (73.87)  41.40  (47.21)  (103.97)  (258.34)

    / ()
On plan assets gain/(loss)

 73.87  (41.40)  47.21  103.97  65.01 

	   (PF) : / Provident Fund (PF) :

	                         , 
1952                        
      	

	 The Company manages provident fund through a provident fund trust for its employees which is permitted under the 
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The plan envisages contribution by employer and employees and 
guaranteed interest at the rate notified by the provident fund authority.
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71    2020-21

	                             
                          
   , 31  2021  31  2020     

	 The Company has an obligation to fund any shortfall on the yield of the Trust’s investments over the administered interest 
rates on an annual basis. The actuary has provided a valuation for providend fund liabilities on the basis of guidance 
issued by Actuarial Society of India and based on the below provided assumptions, there is no short fall As at 31st March 
2021 and 31st March 2020.

	                        :
	 The principal assumptions used in determining the present value obligation of interest guarantee under the deterministic 

approach are as follows :

(`  ) (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

  ( ) / Discount rate (per annum) 6.57% 6.59%

  ( ) / Guaranteed return (per annum) 8.50% 8.50%

      ()
Average remaining tenure of investment portfolio (Years)

4.26 Years 5.22 Years

	          :� (`  )
	 The details of fund and plan assets are given below: � (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

     / Fair value of plan assets  34,079.67  35,380.64 

(   ) / (Present value of obligation)  (33,509.28)  (34,787.32)

         
Net excess not recognised in books of the Company

 570.39  593.32 

	                
	 The plan assets have been primarily invested in government securities and corporate bonds

	       ():
	 Post Retirement Medical Scheme (PRMS):

	                (    )   
                  

	 The post retirement medical scheme provides for reimbursement of health care costs (both domicilliary & hospitalisation) 
to employees post their retirement. The reimbursement is subject to an overall ceiling based on cadre of the employee at 
the time of retirement.
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	      :
	 The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

      / Mortality Table during employment 
IALM (2006-08)  
 / Ultimate


IALM (2006-08)  
 /Ultimate

    
/ Mortality Table after employment

   
Indian Individual AMT 

(2012-15)


IALM (2006-08)  
 / Ultimate

   ( ) / Discount rate (per annum) 6.91% 6.81%

    () / Normal retirement age (years) 60 60 

 () ( ) / Attrition rate (per annum) 2.00% 2.00%

    / Medical cost inflation rate 3.50% 3.50%

	            6.91%            ,    
               6.91 %       .

	 The present values of the future liabilities have been arrived at on the basis of 6.91% interest rate in actuarial valuation, 
assuming that the medical reserve arrived at by this valuation and the future increases thereon will be credited with at least 
6.91% interest rate.

	       � (`  )
	 Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

       
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year

 6,046.21  5,709.06 

      / Current service cost  292.25  184.85 

    / Interest cost  585.56  444.17 

  -    / Past service cost- non vested benefit  3,490.16  - 

  -  / / Past service cost- vested benefit  -  - 

   / Liability transferred in  -  - 

(  ) / (Liability transferred out)  -  - 

 () /  / Actuarial (gain)/loss  174.87  94.15 

    / Benefits paid  (843.43)  (386.02)

       / Defined benefit obligation at year end  9,745.62  6,046.21 

	         :	� (`  )
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	 Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and obligations:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

     / Fair value of plan assets  -  - 

    / Present value of obligation  9,745.62  6,046.21 

          
Unrecognized past service cost at the end of the period

 -  - 

      / Amount recognized in balance sheet  9,745.62  6,046.21 

	     :� (`  )
	 Net Interest cost: 	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

        
Present value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the period

 6,046.21  5,709.06 

(        )
(Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Period)

 -  - 

    /() / Net liability / (Asset) at the beginning  6,046.21  5,709.06 

   / Interest cost  585.56  444.17 

(  ) / (Interest income)  -  - 

      

Net Interest cost for Current period

 585.56  444.17 

	            :	 (`  )
	 Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

   / Current Service cost  292.25  184.85 

    / Net Interest cost  585.56  444.17 

    / Past Service Cost  3,490.16  - 

(   ) / (Expected contributions by the Employees)
  / Net Cost  4,367.97  629.02 

	        ()    :	 (`  )
	 Expenses recognised in Other comprehensive Income (OCI) for current period:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

       / (
Actuarial Gains / (losses) on obligation for the period

 174.87  94.15 

    ,    
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest income

 -  - 

    
Change in Asset ceiling

 -  - 

 (OCI)        () / 
Net (Income) / Expense for the period recognised in OCI

 174.87  94.15 

	    : 						      (`  )
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	 Balance sheet reconciliation:	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

  
Opening net liability

 6,046.21  5,709.06 

        
Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

 4,367.97  629.02 

 (OCI)   
Expenses recognised in OCI

 174.87  94.15 

Net Liability / (Asset) Transfer In
   ()/ 

 -  - 

Net (Liability) / Asset Transfer Out
   ()/ 

 -  - 

(      ) / (Benefits paid directly by the Employer)  (843.43)  (386.02)

  
Employer’s contribution

      () / 
Net (Liability)/ Asset recognized in the Balance Sheet

 9,745.62  6,046.21 

	       :� (`  )
	 Net Interest cost for Next year:� (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

         
Present value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the period

 9,745.62  6,046.21 

(        )
(Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Period)

 -  - 

    / () / Net liability / (Asset) at the beginning  9,745.62  6,046.21 

   / Interest cost  673.42  411.75 

(  ) / (Interest income)  -  - 

       / Net Interest cost for Current period  673.42  411.75 

	             :	 (`  )
	 Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss during the Next year: 	 (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

   / Current Service cost  313.53  198.81 

   / Net Interest cost  673.42  411.75 

(    / (Expected contributions by the Employees)  -  - 

  / Net Cost  986.95  610.56 

	        :  	 (`  )
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	 Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the employer	 (` in lakh)

          
Projected Benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting

31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

1  
1st Following year

 607.20  352.81 

2   
2nd Following year

 584.03  346.16 

3   
3rd Following year

 591.73  347.84 

4   
4th Following year

 591.60  350.48 

5   
5th Following year

 591.71  348.34 

 6  10  
Sum of Years 6 to 10

 2,849.26  1,679.88 

	   : / Sensitivity analysis:

	  ,            -           
                        	

	 Sensitivity analysis is analysis which will give the movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be true 
on different count. This only signifies the change in the liability if the difference between assumed and the actual is not 
following the parameters of the sensitivity analysis.

(`  ) / (` in lakh)

 / Sensitivity 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

     
Projected Benefit Obligation on current assumptions

 9,745.62  6,046.21 

    1%      
Change in liability for 1% increase in discount rate

 (856.81)  (515.85)

    1%     
Change in liability for 1% decrease in discount rate

 1,033.90  613.88 

    1%      
Change in liability for 1% increase in Medical Cost Inflation

 912.32  499.46 

    + 1%      
Change in liability for 1% decrease in Medical Cost Inflation

 (1,370.01)  (417.81)

	           :	 (`  )
	 Amounts for the current annual period and previous four annual periods:	  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17
   
Present value of obligation

 9,745.62  6,046.21  5,709.06  5,108.60  5,418.80 

    
Fair value of plan assets

 -  -  -  -  - 

  / ()
Surplus /(Deficit)in the plan

 (9,745.62)  (6,046.21)  (5,709.06)  (5,108.60)  (5,418.80)

()	      / (c) Other Long Term Benefits:



255

IREL (India) Limited

71st Annual Report 2020-21

	    / Leave liability

	 i.	    “   ”                  
 	

	 i. 	 Leave liability is under “Other long term employee benefit” and is valued actuarially and provided in the books 
accordingly.

(`  ) / (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 31  2021
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

  / Gross liability  7,593.34  7,298.09 

	 ii.	  :        “  51    ”         ̀  58.93 
 (  ` 65.93)       

	 ii. 	 Resettlement allowance: Resettlement allowance on retirement from the Company is considered as “Other long 
term unfunded employee benefit”. The provision amounting to ` 58.93 lakh (previous year ` 65.93 lakh) in the books 
is made based on actuarial valuation.

	 iii.	 -      (LTC):   LTC   ̀  47.77  (  ̀  55.83 )     
       

	 iii. 	 Leave Travel Concession (LTC) for non-executives: Provision for LTC amounting to ` 47.77 lakh (previous year 
` 55.83 lakh) in the books is made based on actuarial valuation.

	  / Notes:

	 i.	              , , ,       
 ,         

	 i. 	 The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

	 ii.	        2020-21     ( )       ` 912.45  ( 
 ` 895.90 )  	

	 ii. 	 The Company estimates that the amount to be contributed to the gratuity fund for the financial year 2020-21 will be 
` 912.45 lakhs (Previous year ` 895.90 lakhs)		

 42:    (EPS)
Note 42: Earnings per share (EPS)

 /Particulars 31  2021 
31st March 2021

31  2020
31st March 2020

        / () (`  )
Net Profit / (loss) after tax for the year (` in lakhs)

 31,565.73  29,174.31 

      /  (`  )
Profit / loss attributable to equity share holders (₹ in lakhs)

A  31,565.73  29,174.31 

      ()
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (Nos.)

B  1,079,563  1,079,563 

        (`)
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (₹)

A/B  2,923.94  2,702.42 

    (`)
Face Value per Share (₹)

 1,000.00  1,000.00 

 43 / Note 43:
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   , ̀  87416.24  (  ̀  76332.14 )               ̀  88003.42 
 (  ` 78893.85 )        ` 587.19  (  ` 2561.71 )       
 ,    -            (  8 ) 
At the end of the year, provision for tax amounting to ` 87416.24 lakhs (previous year ` 76332.14 lakhs) has been adjusted 
against the total amount of advance tax and TDS aggregating to ` 88003.42 lakhs (previous year ` 78893.85 lakhs) and the 
balance amount is included under Non-current tax assets ` 587.19 lakhs (Previous year ` 2561.71) Ref. Note 8.

 44 / Note 44:

    (GoI)                      
            ` 1228.72  (  ` 2112.78 )       

The Company has been entrusted with the execution of certain strategic projects on behalf of the Government of India (GoI). The 
entire cost of the said projects is funded by the Government. The amount unspent is booked under current liability is of ` 1228.72 
lakhs (previous year `2112.78 lakhs).

 45:   :				    (`  )
Note 45: Disclosure of Provisions	  (` in lakh)

 / Particulars 01.04.2020  
 

Closing balance as 
on 01.04.2020

     


Provision made 
during the year

    


Provision adjusted 
during the year

01.04.2020   
 

Closing balance as 
on 31.03.2021

     - 


Provision for disputed entry  
tax-OSCOM 

 67.80  -  -  67.80 

 46 / Note 46:

                            
            ` 315.86  (  ` 315.86 )         , 
         ,             ,  ,    
29.06.2013       ()          ` 668.67     ,  
               ,    (SCN)        
                     

The Company has been entrusted with the execution of a project on behalf of the Government of India. The operations relating 
to this project are being carried on by the Company in its own name. The cash and bank balance of ` 315.86 lakhs (Previous 
year ` 315.86 lakhs) and other transactions pertaining to this project, though managed by the Company in its name, are not 
incorporated in the annual accounts of the Company, as advised by the Government of India. The Company received Demand 
cum Show-Cause Notice (SCN) dated 29.06.2013 from the Asst. Commissioner of Sales Tax, Mumbai demanding payment 
of Sales Tax, Interest thereon and penalty aggregating to ` 668.67 lakhs relating to this project. On behalf of the Government 
of India, the Company contested the said SCN and the assessment order passed by the assessing authority is set aside. The 
assessing authority is directed to assess afresh.



257

IREL (India) Limited

71st Annual Report 2020-21

 47 / Note 47:

1.	     :      ,          ,    
                           
                           

1. 	 Inventory Book Adjustment: In case of bulk finished goods which are to be quantified based on volumetric measurement 
which needs transshipment at various points, a deviation in the physical balance upto the acceptable limit of volumetric 
measurement is adjusted in the books of accounts after obtaining approval from unit head. Any deviation which is more 
than the said limit, adjustment in the book is made with the approval of competent authority. In this regard communication 
to the Units has been sent.

2.	        1947   12 (3)     . 01.07.2018        
 ` 2048.86 (   1884.77 )      

2. 	 Wage settlement u/s 12(3) of ID Act 1947 with workers’ unions has been due w.e.f 01.07.2018 and accordingly a provision 
of ` 2048.86 lakhs (previous year ` 1884.77 lakhs) has been provided in the book. 

3.	  1 , 2016                    1 , 2015 ,  
  101    ,         -      ,    
   () , 2014 (IGAAP)   7         133   ,    (GAAP) 


3. 	 Effective April 1, 2016, the Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance 
with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2015 as the transaction date. The 
transaction was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under section 133 
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP.

4.	   19              ,        ,  
   ,              ,         
              ,        /    
            /              ,   
,          , ,  ,  ,        
                         
              ,           
         

4. 	 In accordance with the Governments response to the ongoing health crisis caused by the Covid 19 pandemic, the company 
has given top priority to ensure the safety, health and well-being of all the company’s employees, facilities and communities 
across all locations. As a precaution, many employees have been asked to Work from Home to the extent possible. In view 
of the lockdown across the states due to the outbreak of the pandemic, operations in some of the company’s locations 
were temporarly scaled down/ partially shut down in compliance with the directives / orders issued by the local Government 
authorities. Considering the nature of the company’s shareholding, products and markets, as per management’s current 
assessment, there is no significant impact or adjustment required in the financial statements on carrying amounts of 
inventories, intangible assests, trade receivables, investments and other financials assests. The management will continue 
to monitor changes in future economic conditions. Considering the ongoing nature of the pandemic, the eventual outcome 
of its impact may be different from what is estimated as on the date of these Financial Statements.

5. 	       13  2021            

5. 	 The Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by Board of Directors on  
13th July 2021.



258

 () 

71    2020-21

-48 / Note-48			

        /          , : /:   
Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with current year’s classifications/
disclosures.

       
  ..    
  
   : 
107783W/W100395

      
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report of even date attached
M/s Pathak H.D & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:
107783W/W100395

 
 

. 
 ()

 
   
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Company Secretary

A. Roy Chowdhury
Director (F)

D Singh
Chairman & Managing Director

   
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71    2020-21

FORM NO. AOC.1
Statement containing salient features of the financial 
statement of Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint 

ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 
read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with 
amounts in `)

Sl. No. : 01
Name of the subsidiary : IREL IDCOL LIMITED
Reporting period for the 
subsidiary concerned, if different 
from the holding company’s 
reporting period

: Not Applicable

Reporting currency and 
Exchange rate as on the last date 
of the relevant financial year in 
the case of foreign subsidiaries

: Not Applicable

Share capital : ` 1,08,15,000/-
Reserves & surplus : (` 7,61,971/-)
Total assets : ` 1,02,73,577/-
Total Liabilities : ` 2,20,548/-
Investments : Nil
Turnover : Nil
Profit before taxation : (` 2,95,156/-)
Provision for taxation : ` 17,171/-
Profit after taxation : (` 3,12,327/-)
Proposed Dividend : Nil
% of shareholding : 66%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the 
end of the statement: Names of subsidiaries which are yet to 
commence operations : Nil

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold 
during the year : Nil

Note: Amount within bracket shown is negative balance and 
all the amount are as on 31.03.2021

 . AOC. 1 
 / /      

   

( () , 2014   5     129  
- (3)     )

 “ “:   

(              
)
  : 01

    :    

      
,      
   

:   

      
       
      

:   

  : ` 1,08,15,000/-

   : (` 7,61,971/-)

  : ` 1,02,73,577/-

  : ` 2,20,548/-

 : 

 : 

    : (` 2,95,156/-)

    : ` 17,171/-

    : (` 3,12,327/-)

  : 
  : 66%

 :         :  
        : 

             
: 

:              
31.03.2021   
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 “ :     -  
Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures – Not Applicable

        , 2013   129 (3)   
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

     
Name of Associates/Joint Ventures

 / Name 1  / Name 2  / Name 3

1. 	      
	 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

	        /   
2. 	 Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company 

on the year end

 / No.

/     
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

 %   / Extend of Holding %

     
Name of Associates/Joint Ventures

 / Name 1  / Name 2  / Name 3

3. 	       
3.	 Description of how there is significant influence

4. 	 /         ?
4.	 Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

5. 	           


5. 	 Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited 
Balance Sheet

6. 	     /  / Profit / Loss for the year

i.	        
	 Considered in Consolidation

	       
ii.	 Not Considered in Consolidation

                           
 
Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. Names of associates or joint ventures which 
have been liquidated or sold during the year.

 :                ( )     
Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified.

      
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
 
 

. 
 ()

 
   

Rupender Dhiman
Company Secretary

A. Roy Chowdhury
Director (F)

D Singh
Chairman & Managing Director
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 () 

71    2020-21

 / NOTES 



        
      
  “   ”   
,    ,  
  

Shri D. Singh, CMD, IREL receiving 
“CEO of the Year Award” during 
National Feather Award Ceremony 
conducted by The Economic Times as 
Media Partner. 

      
 -19     
 

IREL organizes a Covid-19 Vaccination 
for Employees and their dependents.

      
       
   , 

CMD, IREL’s visit to Health camp 
conducted by OSCOM Unit as part of 
its CSR initiatives.



“        
   (-2021)”   
        


Panel Discussion during the 
concluding session of virtual National 
Conference “Rare Earth Road Map for 
Energy Security of Self-Reliant India 
(REES-2021)”.

        
 ()     
        
, 

CMD, IREL interacting with Vietnam 
Delegation during 2nd Joint Committee 
Meeting (JCM) through Video 
Conference.

            ,   “   2021”   

CMD, IREL receiving “Leading Director Award 2021” during the Leading Directors’ conclave conducted by the Greentech 
Foundation.
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